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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 29, 2012
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition period from to
Commission file number 1-11657

TUPPERWARE BRANDS CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaefr)

Delaware 36-4062333

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

14901 South Orange Blossom Trail,
Orlando, Florida 32837

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
Registrant's telephone number, including area codg407) 826-5050
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) afie Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, $0.01 par value New York Stock Ergea

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢tie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a vkelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%edbéturities Act.  YedX] No O

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act. YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ék)filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 0f4193
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shqrégiod that the Registrant was required to filehskeports), and (2) has been subject to suchgfilin
requirements for the past 90 days. ¥ds No O

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant bamtted electronically and posted on its corpokibsite, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te b of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 tim®(or for such shorter period that the Registveas
required to submit and post such files). ¥ds No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitlers pursuant to Iltem 405 of Regulation S-K i$ contained herein, and will not be containedhi t
best of Registrant's knowledge, in definitive praxyjnformation statements incorporated by refeeeindPart 1l of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthis
Form 10-K.OO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantlésge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&ee
definitions of "large accelerated filer," "acceledfiler" and "smaller reporting company" in Rd2b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fildkl Accelerated filetd Non-accelerated filelll Smaller reporting compariy

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge
Act). YesOO No

The aggregate market value of the voting and ndmga@ommon equity on the New York Stock Exchangen@osite Transaction Listing on June 29,
2012 (the last business day of the registrant's neaently completed second fiscal quarter) waS%2899,643 .

As of February 21, 2013, 54,016,274 shares ottinemon stock, $0.01 par value, of the registramevesitstanding.

Documents Incorporated by Reference:

Portions of the Proxy Statement relating to the waiiMeeting of Shareholders to be held May 24, 2&x&3incorporated by reference into Part Il o§thi

Report.
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PART |

Item 1. Business
(a) General Development of Business

Tupperware Brands Corporation (“Registrant”, “Tuppare Brands” or the “Company”) is a global dirsetler of premium, innovative
products across multiple brands and categoriesitiiran independent sales force of 2.8 million. Bebthrands and categories include design-
centric preparation, storage and serving solutionthe kitchen and home through the Tupper#dmand and beauty and personal care
products through the Armand DupieAvroy Shlain®, BeautiControP, Fuller®, NaturCaré®, Nutrimetics® and Nuvo®brands. The
Registrant is a Delaware corporation that was degaihon February 8, 1996 in connection with thepoaaite reorganization of Premark
International, Inc. (“Premark”)n the reorganization, certain businesses of thgidRant and certain other assets and liabilitfeBremark ant
its subsidiaries were transferred to the Regist@ntMay 31, 1996, the Registrant became a pulbdtield company through the pro rata
distribution by Premark to its shareholders obélihe then outstanding shares of common stocke@fRegistrant. Prior to December 5, 2005,
the Registrant's name was Tupperware CorporatiorO@ober 18, 2000, the Registrant acquired 100gmeof the stock of BeautiControl,

Inc. ("BeautiControl”), and on December 5, 200% Registrant acquired the direct-to-consumer besewof Sara Lee Corporation.

(b) New York Stock Exchange-Required Disclosures

General. The address of the Registrant's principal office4801 South Orange Blossom Trail, Orlando, FloB88837. The names of the
Registrant's directors are Catherine A. Bertins&@uM. Cameron, Kriss Cloninger, Ill, E.V. Goingsee R. Lee, Angel R. Martinez, Antonio
Monteiro de Castro, Robert J. Murray, David R. Rarldoyce M. Roché and M. Anne Szostak. MembetiseoAudit, Finance and Corporate
Responsibility Committee of the Board of Directare Ms. Bertini, Ms. Cameron and Messrs. Clonir{@érair), Martinez and Parker. The
members of the Compensation and Management DevelapGommittee of the Board of Directors are Ms. lio(Chair), Ms. Szostak, and
Messrs. Lee, Monteiro de Castro and Murray. The bemof the Nominating and Governance CommittabeBoard of Directors are Mr.
Murray (Chair), Ms. Roché, Ms. Szostak, and MesSlsninger and Parker. The members of the Exec@mmmittee of the Board of
Directors are Mr. Goings (Chair), Ms. Roché and 84esCloninger, Murray and Parker. The Chairman@mef Executive Officer is E.V.
Goings and the Presiding Director is Robert J. lyuriThe Registrant's officers and the number ofiitployees are set forth below in Part
this Report. The name and address of the Registitaamsfer agent and registrar is Wells Fargo BahK., c/o Wells Fargo Shareowner
Services, 161 North Concord Exchange, South Si, RiI55075. The number of the Registrant's shaddshs is set forth below in Part I,
Item 5 of this Report. The Registrant is satisfyitsgannual distribution requirement to sharehaderder the New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE”) rules by the distribution of its Annual Rert on Form 10-K as filed with the United States&ities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC") in lieu of a separate annual report.

Corporate Governance. Investors can obtain access to periodic reportcanbrate governance documents, including boamthtittee
charters, corporate governance principles and coldesnduct and ethics for financial executiveg] arformation regarding the Registrant's
transfer agent and registrar through the Registra@bsite free of charge (as soon as reasonadtyigable after reports are filed with the
SEC, in the case of periodic reports) by going tamtupperwarebrands.com and searching under InvB&iations / SEC Filings and
Governance Documents. The Chief Executive Offiéehe Registrant has certified to the NYSE thatsheot aware of any violation by the
Registrant of NYSE corporate governance listingdsads.

BUSINESS OF TUPPERWARE BRANDS CORPORATION

The Registrant is a worldwide direct-to-consumenpany engaged in the manufacture and sale of Twapetproducts and cosmetics
and personal care products under a variety of tnadees, including Armand DupréeAvroy Shlain®, BeautiControf, Fuller®, NaturCaré,
Nutrimetics®and Nuvo’. Each business manufactures and/or markets a bneaof high quality products.
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I. PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS

Tupperware. The core of the Tupperware product line consisdesign-centric preparation, storage and servihgieas for the kitchen
and home. Tupperware also has an establishedfliitcben cookware and tools, microwave productisraifiber textiles and gifts. In
addition to its traditional kitchen and home linesch as the Modular Mates* and FridgeSmart* coeta and Tupperware* Impressions
serve ware, the Tupperware line has evolved towantislifestyle-oriented products and has levedhie research and development expertise
to bring new concepts to market, such as the Pdimee Savers Extra Chef* food processor system, wkimplifies and speeds up everyday
meal preparation. In 2012, key launches contemgdrizipperware classics, leveraging Tupperwarelgmesngineering and manufacturing
expertise to bring consumers the next generati@efing, fridge storage and microwave producte iéw ranges offer enhanced consumer
features and benefits without additional cost. €heslude the Blossom* serving range, Crystalwa@eheration |l microwave reheatable
line, Tupperware* MicroCook microwave cooking liard VentSmart* fridge storage line.

The Company continues to introduce new materiasighs, colors and decoration in its product linesary its offerings by season and
to extend existing products into new markets arahedvorld. The development of new products vaaig®ss markets in order to address
differences in cultures, lifestyles, tastes andisealthough most products are offered in a largalver of markets. New product development
will continue to be an important part of the Comyarstrategy.

Beauty. In Beauty, the Company manufactures and distribskascare products, cosmetics, bath and body taitetries, fragrances,
jewelry and nutritional product

New skin care products launched in 2012 includeI®ieen* Ginseng Energizing Anti-Wrinkle Facial Tme@nt, Armand Dupree*
Revitalizing Anti-Wrinkle Treatment, Armand DupreB¥e Contour Gel, Armand Dupree Reductive* BodyIfting Gel and Herbal 3*
Body Creams by Fuller Mexico; Regeneration* Tigkitm and Fill* Extreme Tri-Peptide Complex, Regeatem* Tight, Firm and Fill*
Extreme Lip Treatment and the BC Spa Bright lineBautiControl; Nutrimetics Ultra Care+* ExtremendiaRepair, Nutrimetics Ultra
Care+* Facial Rejuvenation Kit and Nutrimetics* Ree Anti-Aging Serum by Nutrimetics; as well as thun Caring* UV Protector Face
Lotion and Natur Radiance* Moistrich Base by Natame

Numerous new fragrances were also launched, susmaand Dupree Red*, Tour Collection New York*, ppare Fly* and celebrity
fragrances, Espinoza Paz* and Galilea*, by FullexMo; Sexy Red, BeautiControl Fancy*, Summer MBE, Man* and BeautiControl
Spirit* by BeautiControl; Pink Diamond*, Avroy ShiaDelite Me*, After Midnight Gold* and Be Mine Taght* by Avroy Shlain; and
Armand Dupree Acqua*, Ornella Piul Fresh and Belgifances by Nuvo.

New additions to the Company's cosmetics rangdésdacArmand Dupree* Extra Glossy Lipstick from FulMexico; BC Color
Hydrating Lip Color from BeautiControl; Nutrimeti¢$ydra Brilliance* Lipstick, Colour Impact Eyeshad@nd Pure Touch Blush from
Nutrimetics; as well as a complete color cosméiesunder the brand name Colorfull*, which inclsdgsticks, lip pencils, nail ename
mascara, eye pencils and eye shadow, from Avrogishl

Category expansions included baby care and jeviglfgeautiControl, with the BC Spa for Baby Collectiand BC Jewelry which
includes four jewelry collections, customized terespond with BeautiControl's eBeauti Style onfaghion diagnostic tool; and a family
range including Camphor Cream, as well as a Natuealge which includes body butters by Avroy Shlain

(Words followed by * are registered or unregisteradlemarks of the Registrant.)
II. MARKETS

The Company operates its business under five ri@egasegments in three broad geographic region®geu(Europe, Africa and the
Middle East), Asia Pacific and the Americas. Mankenetration varies throughout the world. Sever@sithat have low penetration, such as
Latin America, Asia and Eastern and Central Eurppavide the Company significant growth potentiddie Company's strategy continues to
include greater penetration in markets throughloeitorld.
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Tupperware Brands' products are sold around thé&dwoder eight brands: Tupperware, Armand Dupre&py Shlain, BeautiControl,
Fuller, NaturCare, Nutrimetics and Nuvo. The Comypdefines its established market economy unithase in Western Europe (including
Scandinavia), Australia, Canada, Japan, New Zeaaddhe United States. All other units are cléssifs operating in emerging market
economies. Businesses operating in emerging maaketsunted for 61 percent of 2012 sales, whilertassies operating in established
markets accounted for the other 39 percent. Fopaisefive fiscal years, 86 to 90 percent of teeéakenues from the sale of Tupperware
Brands' products have been in international markets

[ll. DISTRIBUTION OF PRODUCTS

The Company's products are distributed worldwidearily through the “direct-to-consumer” methodden which products are sold by
an independent sales force to consumers outsidigidreal retail store locations. The system faathis the timely distribution of products to
consumers, without having to work through retaiéimediaries, and establishes uniform practiceardigg the use of Tupperware Brands'
trademarks and administrative arrangements, suohdas entry, delivery and payment, along withraeruiting and training of the sales
force.

Products are primarily sold directly to distribigpdirectors, managers and dealers (“sales fothedughout the world. Where
distributorships are granted, they have the righmharket the Company's products using parties #mel aon-retail methods and to utilize
Tupperware Brands' trademarks. The vast majorith@fkales force are independent contractors anemmployees of Tupperware. In certain
limited circumstances, the Company has acquiredeostrip of distributorships for a period of timetilan independent distributor can be
installed, in order to maintain market presence.

In addition to the introduction of new products al@velopment of new geographic markets, a key aleofehe Company's strategy is
expanding its business by increasing the sizesafdtes force. Under the system, distributorscthre and managers recruit, train, and
motivate a large number of dealers. Managers arelaiged from among the dealer group and promotedsest in recruiting, training and
motivating dealers, while continuing to sell protiuc

As of December 29, 2012 , the Company's distrilousigstem had approximately 1,800 distributors, @8 hanagers and 2.8 million
dealers worldwide. During the year, 22 million goquresentation sales events, or parties, took placklwide.

Tupperware relies on the “party” method of saldsicl is designed to enable the purchaser to agieg¢hrough demonstration, the
features and benefits of the Company's productsieBare held in homes, offices, social clubs aiher locations. Products are also prom
through brochures mailed or given to people invitedttend parties and various other types of destnations. Some business units utilize a
campaign merchandising system, whereby sales foerebers sell through brochures generated everpitwree weeks, to their friends,
neighbors and relatives. Sales of products arestgrbthrough programs of sales promotions, salddraining aids and motivational
conferences for the sales force. In addition, fapsut its sales force, the Company utilizes catmgd television and magazine advertising,
which help to increase its sales levels with hardeach customers and generate leads for saleseandealers. A significant portion of the
Company's business is operated through distributoasy of whom stock inventory and fulfill orderktbe sales force that are generally
placed after orders have been received from engucoers. In other cases, the Company sells dirextlye sales force, also generally after
they have received a consumer order.

In 2012 , the Company continued to sell directhg/ar through its sales force, to end consumersghédnternet. It also entered into a
limited number of business-to-business transactionshich it sells products to a partner compamysiale to consumers through the partner's
distribution channel, with a link back to the couesiness.
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IV. COMPETITION

There are many competitors to Tupperware Brandshbases both domestically and internationally. gitiecipal bases of competition
generally are marketing, price, quality and inn@rabf products, as well as competition with ottdirect-to-consumer” companies for sales
personnel and demonstration dates. Due to theenafuithe direct-to-consumer industry, it is crititteat the Company provides a compelling
earnings opportunity for the sales force, alondghwigveloping new and innovative products. The Campaaintains its competitive position,
in part, through the use of strong incentives amanotional programs.

Through its Tupperwarbrand, the Company competes in the food storageingeand preparation, containers, toys and gétegories.
Through its beauty and personal care brands, tinep@ny also competes in the skin care, cosmetitsiries and fragrances categories. The
Company works to differentiate itself from its coetipors through its brand names, product innovatiprality, valueadded services, celebr
endorsements, technological sophistication, newymrbintroductions and its channel of distributimgluding the training, motivation and
compensation arrangements for its independent &aiess.

V. EMPLOYEES
The Registrant employs approximately 13,000 peagdleshom approximately 1,000 are based in the dinBtates.

VI. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Registrant incurred $18.9 million , $19.5 roliand $17.8 million for fiscal years 2012 , 20hd 2010 , respectively, on research
and development activities for new products.

VII. RAW MATERIALS

Many of the products manufactured by and for thenfany require plastic resins that meet its spetifins. These resins are purchased
through various arrangements with a number of latgamical companies located throughout the Compangtkets. As a result, the
Company has not experienced difficulties in obtagredequate supplies and generally has been stiddassbtaining favorable resin prices
on a relative basis. Research and developmeninglat resins used in Tupperwdrproducts is performed by both the Company and its
suppliers.

Materials used in the Company's skin care, cosnagticbath and body care products consist primefitgadily available ingredients,
containers and packaging materials. Such raw nadégeand components used in goods manufacturedsseddled by the Company and
through outsource arrangements are available fraomzber of sources. To date, the Company has lidericasecure an adequate supply of
raw materials for its products, and it endeavonsi&intain relationships with backup suppliers ireffiort to ensure that no interruptions occur
in its operations.

VIIl. TRADEMARKS AND PATENTS

Tupperware Brands considers its trademarks anchisatie be of material importance to its businessydver, except for the Tupperware
®, Fuller®and BeautiControltrademarks, Tupperware Brands is not dependent apypisingle patent or trademark, or group of patent
trademarks. The TupperwatgFuller”and BeautiControltrademarks are registered on a country-by-courasjsb The current duration for
such registration ranges from five years to temgjdzowever, each such registration may be ren@amadlimited number of times. The
patents used in Tupperware Brands' business astarxgl and maintained on a worldwide basis, withrgety of durations. Tupperware
Brands has followed the practice of applying fosiga and utility patents with respect to most sfsignificant patentable developments. The
Company has a patent on the formula for its “REGRNEION” “alpha-hydroxy acid-based products.

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

Compliance with federal, state and local environtakprotection laws has not had in the past, ambisxpected to have in the future, a
material effect upon the Registrant's capital exjteres, liquidity, earnings or competitive positio

4
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X. OTHER

Sales do not vary significantly on a quarterly babwever, third quarter sales are generally Idivan the other quarters in any year due
to vacations by dealers and their customers, asasebduced promotional activities during thismeia Sales generally increase in the fourth
quarter, as it includes traditional gift-giving @stons in many markets and as children returnhoaand households refocus on activities
that include party plan sales events and the uieed€ompany's housewares products, along witke@sed promotional activities supporting

these opportunities.

Generally, there are no working capital practiceBarklog conditions which are material to an ustherding of the Registrant's busine
although the Company generally seeks to minimizeét working capital position at the end of easbdl year and normally generates a
significant portion of its annual cash flow fromespting activities in its fourth quarter. The Reégist's business is not dependent on a small
number of customers, nor is any of its businesgestibo renegotiation of profits or terminationaafntracts or subcontracts at the election of

the United States government.

XI. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Following is a list of the names and ages of alExecutive Officers of the Registrant, indicataipositions and offices held by each
such person with the Registrant, and each suclopsrprincipal occupations or employment duringphst five years. Each such person has
been elected to serve until the next annual elecfmfficers of the Registrant (expected to oamuiMay 24, 2013 ).

Name and Age

Office and Experience

Edward R. Davis lll, age 50
R. Glenn Drake, age 60
Lillian D. Garcia, age 57

E.V. Goings, age 67

Josef Hajek, age 55

Simon C. Hemus, age 63
Timothy A. Kulhanek, age 48

Pablo Munoz, age 55

Michael S. Poteshman, age 49
Nicholas K. Poucher, age 51
Thomas M. Roehlk, age 62
Christian E. Skroeder, age 64

Vice President and Treasurer since May 2004.
Group President, Europe, Africa and the Middle Baste August 2006.

Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resoutidéser, after serving as Executive Vice
President and Area Vice President, Argentina, Uayglenezuela and Ecuador from January 2011 tc
December 2012, and as Executive Vice PresidenPagsident, Fuller Argentina since January 2010.
Prior thereto, she served as Executive Vice Prasigled Chief Human Resources Officer since
August 2005.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since Octd@297.
Senior Vice President, Tax and Governmental Affsinee February 2006.
President and Chief Operating Officer since Jan@afy.

Vice President, Internal Audit and Enterprise Rig&nagement since June 2010 after serving as Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer, BeautiCohtirec., since August 2007.

Group President, Americas, after serving as Graegi@ent, Latin America from January 2011 to
September 2012, and as Area Vice President, Tugperand Beauty, Latin America since January
2006.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offisece August 2004.
Vice President and Controller since August 2007.
Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer & &sary since August 2005.

Group President, Asia Pacific since January 20f0€r, serving as Senior Vice President, Worldwide
Market Development since April 2001.
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Positions and Offices Held and Principal Occupatios
of Employment During Past Five Years

Name and Age Office and Experience

Jose R. Timmerman, age 64 Executive Vice President, Supply Chain Worldwidecsi February 2010, after serving as Senior Vice
President, Supply Chain since March 2009 and Se&fiaa President, Worldwide Operations since
August 1997.

Robert F. Wagner, age 52 Vice President and Chief Technology Officer sinaggAst 2002.
William J. Wright, age 50 Senior Vice President, Global Product Marketingsi®ctober 2010, after serving as Senior Vice
President, Global Third Party Sourced Products &dBct Development since June 2010. Prior

thereto, he served as Vice President of MarketirjBusiness Development of Tupperware Europe,
Africa and the Middle East since August 2006.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing the Company. Other events that the Company does not currently
anticipate or that the Company currently deems immaterial also may affect results of operations and financial condition.

Sales Force Factors

The Company’s products are marketed and sold thrthey "direct-to-consumer" method of distributionwhich products are primarily
marketed and sold to consumers, without the usetafl establishments, by a sales force made updependent contractors. This distribut
system depends upon the successful recruitmeanti@h and motivation of a large force of salespenel to grow and compensate for a |
turnover rate. The recruitment and retention césébrce members is dependent upon the competitivieonment among direct-to-consumer
companies and upon the general labor market, ursgmmgnt levels, general economic conditions, andadgaphic and cultural changes in
the workforce. The motivation of the sales forcdeépendent, in part, upon the effectiveness of @msation and promotional programs of
Company, the competitiveness of the same compaitbcbiher direct-tosonsumer companies, the introduction of new pradantl the abilit
to advance through the sales force structure.

The Company’s sales are directly tied to the atieivels of its sales force, which is in largetgatemporary working activity for sales
force members. Activity levels may be affected g tlegree to which a market is penetrated by theepice of the Comparsysales force, tt
amount of average sales per order, the amounted par sales force member, the mix of high-maagit low-margin products sold at parties
and elsewhere, and the activities and actionseoCtbmpany’s product line and channel competitoraddition, the Company’s sales force
members may be affected by initiatives undertakethb Company to grow its revenue base that majtie¢éhe inaccurate perception that
independent sales force system is at risk of bphaged out.

I nternational Operations

A significant portion of the Company’s sales andfippcomes from its international operations. Altigh these operations are
geographically dispersed, which partially mitigaties risks associated with operating in particatauntries, the Company is subject to the
usual risks associated with international operatidmese risks include local political and econoerigzironments, adverse new tax regulat
and relations between U.S. and foreign governments.
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The Company derived 90 percent of its net salen fiperations outside the United States in 201ZaBse of this, movement in
exchange rates may have a significant impact ol€tdmpany’s earnings, cash flows and financial pmsitThe Company’s most significant
exposures are to the euro, the Indonesian rupidiirenMexican peso. Business units in which the gamy generated at least $100 millior
sales in 2012 included Brazil, Tupperware Frana@ntany, Indonesia, Malaysia/Singapore, Fuller Mexiwpperware Mexico, and
Tupperware United States and Canada. Althouglctiriency risk is partially mitigated by the natunaldge arising from the Compasybcal
product sourcing in many markets, a strengthenirg dollar generally has a negative impact on the@any. In response to this fact, the
Company continues to implement foreign currencygiregiand risk management strategies to reducexjheseare to fluctuations in earnings
associated with changes in foreign exchange ratesCompany generally does not seek to hedge thadnof currency fluctuations on the
translated value of the sales, profit or cash fimerated by its operations. Some of the hedgmategiies implemented have a positive or
negative impact on cash flows as foreign currenitiesuate versus the U.S. dollar. There can bassurance that foreign currency
fluctuations will not have a material adverse intpatthe Company’s results of operations, cashdland/or financial condition.

Another risk associated with the Company’s intéomatl operations is restrictions foreign governrmsantly impose on currency
remittances. Due to the possibility of governmestrictions on transfers of cash out of countries @ntrol of exchange rates, the Company
may not be able to immediately access its cadheagxchange rate used to translate its financgstents. This is a particular issue currently
in Venezuela.

Legal and Regulatory I ssues

The Company's business may also be affected byrsctif domestic and foreign governments to redtnetactivities of direct-to-
consumer companies for various reasons, includiadimitation on the ability of direct-toensumer companies to operate through direct
without the involvement of a traditional retail cimel. Foreign governments may also introduce dtvens of protectionist legislation, such
limitations on the products which can be produ@eally or requirements that nalemestic companies doing or seeking to do busiples® :
certain percentage of ownership of legal entitiethe hands of local nationals to protect the corerakinterests of its citizens. Customs la
tariffs, import duties, export quotas and restoies on repatriation of foreign earnings and/or othethods of accessing cash generated
internationally, may negatively affect the Comparigternational operations. Governments may sebkreio impose taxes on independent
sales force members or to classify independens $afee members as employees of direct-to-conseompanies with whom they may be
associated, triggering employment-related taxetherpart of the direct-toensumer companies. The U.S. government may inmassection:
on the Company's ability to engage in businessfaredgn country in connection with the foreign igglof the United States.

Product Safety

Certain of the materials used in the Company’s pcbtines may give rise to concerns of consumesgdhaipon scientific theories which
are espoused from time to time, including the dfkertain materials leaching out of plastic coméas used for their intended purposes or the
ingredients used in cosmetics, personal care eitiongl products causing harm to human healthsTiéludes polycarbonate that contains
the chemical Bisphenol A. It is the Company’s pplic use only those materials or ingredients thaa@proved by relevant regulatory
authorities for contact with food or skin or fog#stion by consumers, as applicable.
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General Business Factors

The Company’s business can be affected by a witgeraf factors that affect other businesses. Weatld¢ural disasters, strikes,
epidemics/pandemics, political instability and palsicrutiny of the direct-to-consumer channel, aye a significant impact on the
willingness or ability of consumers to attend pestor otherwise purchase the Company’s productssiipply and cost of raw materials,
particularly petroleum and natural gas-based regiay have an impact on the availability or costhef Company’s plastic products. The
Company is also subject to frequent product copyingnterfeiting and other intellectual propertfrimgement, which may be difficult to
police and prevent, depending upon the availahiiitintellectual property rights, the ability toeidtify the source of such activities and the
existence and enforceability of laws affording pation to Company property. Other risks, as disadissmder the sub-heading “Forward-
Looking Statements” contained in Part Il, ltem 7Ahis Report, may be relevant to performance ag we

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

The principal executive office of the Registranbvgned by the Registrant and is located in Orlafidiarida. The Registrant owns and
maintains significant manufacturing and distribatfacilities in Brazil, France, Greece, Indonesipan, Korea, Mexico, New Zealand,
Portugal, South Africa and the United States, aadés significant manufacturing and distributiarilitées in Belgium, China, India and
Venezuela. The Registrant owns and maintains tlaeiB&ontrol headquarters in Texas and leases itgifaeturing and distribution facilities
in Texas. The Registrant conducts a continuing gamogof new product design and development at dititias in Florida, Texas, Belgium,
Mexico and New Zealand. None of the owned principaperties is subject to any encumbrance matkeridle consolidated operations of the
Company. The Registrant considers the conditioneattent of utilization of its plants, warehousesd ather properties to be good, the
capacity of its plants and warehouses generalbetadequate for its needs, and the nature of tiyepies to be suitable for its needs.

In addition to the above-described improved prapsrthe Registrant owns unimproved real estat®gnding its corporate headquarters
in Orlando, Florida. The Registrant prepared cenpairtions of this real estate for a variety of @lepment purposes and, in 2002, began
selling parts of this property. To date, approxiehaP00 acres have been sold and about 300 acresiréo be sold in connection with this
project, which is expected to continue for a nuniferears.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

A number of ordinancourse legal and administrative proceedings ag#iesRegistrant or its subsidiaries are pendingddition to suc
proceedings, there are certain proceedings thahievthe discharge of materials into, or otherwidating to the protection of, the
environment. Certain of such proceedings involwkefal environmental laws such as the Comprehemgiveonmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as wellséaste and local laws. The Registrant has establiskserves with respect to certain of such
proceedings. Because of the involvement of othdigsaand the uncertainty of potential environmeimtgoacts, the eventual outcomes of s
actions and the cost and timing of expendituresicbbe determined with certainty. It is not expddteat the outcome of such proceedings,
either individually or in the aggregate, will haaenaterial adverse effect upon the Registrant.

As part of the 1986 reorganization involving thenfiation of Premark, Premark was spun-off by DaKi&ft, Inc., and Kraft Foods, Inc.
assumed any liabilities arising out of any legalgaredings in connection with certain divested ecaitinued former businesses of Dart
Industries Inc., a subsidiary of the Registrantiuding matters alleging product and environmeliility. The assumption of liabilities by
Kraft Foods, Inc. remains effective subsequenhéodistribution of the equity of the RegistranPt@mark shareholders in 1996.
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As part of the 2005 acquisition of the direct-toysomer businesses of Sara Lee Corporation, thgpa@eynindemnified the Registrant for

any liabilities arising out of any existing litigah at that time and for certain legal and tax eratarising out of circumstances that might
relate to periods before or after the date of ficguisition.

Item 4. Mine Safety Procedures.

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’' s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

The Registrant has not sold any securities in 2Bddugh 2012 that were not registered under thenr8esxs Act of 1933. As of February
21, 2013, the Registrant had 58,628 shareholdaes adrd and beneficial holders. The principal BdiStates market on which the
Registrant’'s common stock is being traded is thes Merk Stock Exchange. The stock price and divideridrmation set forth in Note 19 to

the Consolidated Financial Statements, entitleddi@uly Financial Summary (Unaudited),” is includedtem 8 of Part Il of this Report and
is incorporated by reference into this Item 5.

Item 5a. Performance Graph

The following performance graph compares the peréorce of the Company's common stock to the Star&#®&wolor's 400 Mid-Cap
Stock Index and the Standard & Poor's 400 Mid-Capsimer Discretionary Index. The graph assumeshbatalue of the investment in the

Company's common stock and each index was $10@edbber 29, 2007 and that all dividends were rastede The Company's stock is
included in both indices.
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S&P 400
Tupperware Mid-Cap

Measurement Period Brands S&P 400 Consumer
(Fiscal Year Ended) Corporation Mid-Cap Discretionary Index
12/29/2007 100.0( 100.0( 100.0(
12/27/2008 64.7: 60.6: 57.8:
12/26/2009 152.5( 88.6: 94.2
12/25/2010 159.67 110.7( 124.57
12/31/2011 189.2: 108.4( 125.4°
12/29/2012 217.0¢ 125.7¢ 151.6¢

Item 5c. Changes in Securities, Use of Proceeds and Issuaréhases of Equity Securities

The following information relates to the repurchagehe Registrant of its equity securities dur@agh month of the fourth quarter of the
Registrant's fiscal year covered by this report:

Maximum

Number (or

Total Number of Approximate
Shares Dollar Value) of

Purchased as Shares that

Part of Publicly May yet be

Total Number of Announced Purchased
Shares Average Price Plans or Under the Plans
Purchased Paid Per Share  Programs (a) or Programs (a)
9/30/12-11/3/12 192,80( $60.5¢ 192,80( $460,638,11
11/4/12-12/1/12 885,70( 63.12 885,70( 404,736,08
12/2/12-12/29/12 493,70( 65.6¢€ 493,70( 372,319,38
1,572,201 $63.6( 1,572,200 $372,319,38

(&) The Company's Board of Directors approvedatober 2011, a program for repurchasing shardsamitaggregate cost up to $1.2
billion until February 1, 2015. In January 2013 tbompany's board further increased the sharealegse authorization 800 million
to $2 billion . The revised authorization is effeetuntil February 1, 2017.

ltem 6. Selected Financial Date

The following table presents the Company’s selebietbrical financial information for the last fiyears. The selected financial
information has been derived from the Company'stada@onsolidated financial statements which, fer data presented for fiscal years 2012
and 2011 and for some data presented for 2010ineteled as Item 8 of this Report. This data stidnd read in conjunction with the
Company's other financial information, includingdhagement's Discussion and Analysis of Financiald@imn and Results of Operations
(MD&A)" and the Consolidated Financial Statememid &lotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemaatsded as Items 7 and 8,
respectively, in this report.

Effective with the first quarter of 2011, the Compahanged its segment reporting to reflect thegggahic distribution of its businesses
in accordance with how it views the operations. €&amuently, the Company no longer has a Beauty G#wment, and the businesses
previously reported in that segment are now repaatefollows: Tupperware Brands Philippines in A#ific; the Company’s Central
America businesses in Tupperware North AmericaNgimetics businesses in Europe and Asia Pa@Bapplicable); and the businesse
South America as a separate geographic segmenpaabie information from the 2010, 2009 and 20884 years has been revised to
conform to the new segment presentation. The Coypéincal year ends on the last Saturday of Deegrabd, as a result, the 2011 fiscal
year contained 53 weeks as compared with 52 weekbhd other fiscal years present

11
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(in millions, except per share amounts) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Operating results

Net sales:

Europe $ 791« $ 848¢ $ 796.( $ 768¢ $ 789.c

Asia Pacific 780.7 714.( 584.( 494.( 451.¢

Tupperware North America 344.¢ 352.( 331t 296.¢ 306.<

Beauty North America 348.: 395.t 406.( 391.¢ 460.7

South America 318.¢ 274.¢ 182.¢ 176.1 153.7

Total net sales $2583.¢ $2585.( $2300: $2,127! $2,161.¢

Segment profit (loss):

Europe $ 131¢ $ 148 $ 14771 $ 1418 0§ 121

Asia Pacific 172.5 147.( 111.¢ 84.¢ 65.2

Tupperware North America 63.7 58.4 52.¢ 40.: 29.2

Beauty North America 30.2 37.¢ 58.¢ 52.2 60.5

South America (a) 61.C 48.€ 24.4 12.7 (4.5
Unallocated expenses (62.6) (58.9) (56.9) (51.9 (39.9)
Gain on disposal of assets including

insurance recoveries, net (b),(c) 7.6 3.8 0.2 21.¢ 24.¢
Re-engineering and impairment charges (i (22.9) (7.9 (7.€) (8.0 (9.0
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

(d) (76.9) (36.) 4.3 (28.0) (9.0
Interest expense, net (e) (32,9 (45.9) (26.€) (28.7) (36.9
Income before income taxes 272 295. 299.7 237.1 201.€
Provision for income taxes 79.¢ 77.C 74.1 62.C 40.E
Net income $ 193 $ 218% $ 2256 $ 1750 $ 1614

Basic earnings per common share (f) $ 34¢ $ 362 $ 36C $ 28 $ 261

Diluted earnings per commonshare(f) $ 34z $ 358 $ 352 $ 278 $ 2.5t

Profitability ratios
Segment profit as a percent of sales:

Europe 17% 17% 18% 18% 15%
Asia Pacific 22 21 19 17 14
Tupperware North America 19 17 16 14 10
Beauty North America 9 10 15 13 13
South America (a) 19 18 13 7 ne
Return on average equity (g) 37.4 30.C 31.7 31.¢ 29.5
Return on average invested capital (h) 18.7 20.5 21.4 18.1 15.¢

See footnotes beginning on the following page.
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(Dollarsin millions, except per share amounts) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Financial Condition
Cash and cash equivalents $ 119.¢ $ 1382 $ 24857 $ 112« $§ 124.¢
Net working capital 72.C 96.C 348.¢ 236.: 252.%
Property, plant and equipment, net 298.¢ 273.1 258.( 254.¢ 245.¢
Total assets 1,821.¢ 1,822.¢ 1,991. 1,818.¢ 1,789.¢
Short-term borrowings and current portic
of long-term obligations 203.¢ 195.% 1.8 1.¢ 3.8
Long-term obligations 414.¢ 415.2 426.¢ 426.- 567.¢
Shareholders’ equity 479.1 500.¢ 789.¢ 637.7 474.(
Current ratio 1.1C 1.14 1.7¢C 1.51 1.5¢
Other Data
Net cash provided by operating activitiesy 298.7 $ 27457 $ 299t $ 250¢ $ 131.(
Net cash used in investing activities (64.€) (68.9) (46.1) (26.9) (39.])
Net cash used in financing activities (252.5 (300.9) (103.9 (227.9 (66.5)
Capital expenditures 75.€ 73.€ 56.1 46.£ 54.4
Depreciation and amortization 49.€ 49.¢ 49.7 51.% 60.€
Common Stock Data
Dividends declared per share $ 14 $ 12 $ 10t $ 091 $ 08¢
Dividend payout ratio (i) 41.2% 33.1% 29.2% 32.5% 33.7%
Average common shares outstanding
(thousands):
Basic 55,27: 60,04¢ 62,55( 62,37« 61,55¢
Diluted 56,41 61,43: 63,84¢ 63,40: 62,97¢
Period-end book value per share (j) $ 84¢ $ 81f $ 1237 $ 101C $ 7.51
Period-end price/earnings ratio (k) 18.2 15.¢ 13.7 17.1 8.1
Period-end market/book ratio (l) 7.4 6.8 3.8 4.7 2.8

na- not applicable
a. Re-engineering and impairment charges prowidedverance and other exit costs. In fiscal y8@@B2the Company reached a decision to
begin selling beauty products in Brazil through Thgperware sales force and cease operating itsaegeauty business. As a result of
this decision, the Company recorded a $2.9 millibarge relating to the write-off of inventory, paggh assets and accounts receivable.
This amount was included in the South America tesul
b. In 2002, the Company began to sell land heldiéwvelopment near its Orlando, Florida headqusrfgnere were no land sales in the
2012, 2010 or 2009 fiscal years. During 2011 ar@BXBscal years, pretax gains from these sales &@remillion and $2.2 million,
respectively, and were included in gains on dispoassets including insurance recoveries, net.
c. Included in gain on disposal of assets includirgyifance recoveries, net ¢
*  Pretax gains of $0.2 million in 2012, $3.0 naitliin 2011 and $1.1 million in 2008, as a resultespective insurance recoveries from
flood damage in Venezuela in 2012, Australia in2@mhd France and Indonesia in 2008;
e Pretax gains of $7.5 million in 2012 from théesaf a facility in Belgium, and $0.2 million an@® million in 2010 and 2009,
respectively, from the sale of property in Austali
* Pretax gains of $19.0 million and $22.2 millior2009 and 2008, respectively, as a result ofrenste recoveries associated with a
2007 fire in South Carolina;
» A pretax loss of $0.6 million in 2008, as a regilasset disposals in the Philippines;
» A pretax gain of $0.2 million of equipment saleDi2
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Valuations completed on the Company’s intaregéssets resulted in the conclusion that certadetrames and goodwill values were
impaired. This resulted in non-cash charges of&i#éllion, $36.1 million, $28.1 million and $9.0 ldn in 2012, 2011, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. In 2010, the Company recorded a 84lign impairment related to certain intangibleslagoodwill, associated with a
decision by the Company to cease operating itsstaisle business as an independent entity. See5Notie Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In 2011, the Company entered into new credéemgents, which resulted in a non-cash write-offeferred debt costs to interest expense
of $0.9 million. In connection with the terminatiofithe previous credit facilities, the Companyoatepaired certain floating-to-fixed
interest rate swaps resulting in interest expef$4.8.9 million.

On December 28, 2008, the Company adopted &tatiee guidance addressing share-based paynsergactions and participating
securities, which requires that unvested shareebpagment awards with a nonforfeitable right tcefee dividends (participating
securities) be included in the two-class methodoofiputing earnings per share. The net income dlaita common shareholders for
2009 - 2012, were computed in accordance withghidance. The prior period has been retrospectaejysted, resulting in a $0.01
reduction in 2008 diluted and basic earnings paresiThe Company had 0.2 million, 0.2 million and fillion of unvested share-based
payment awards outstanding for 2010, 2009 and 2@8®gectively, which were classified as participgsecurities under this guidance.
The Company had no unvested share-based paymertsaglassified as participating securities in 2ahd 2011.

Return on average equity is calculated by digidhet income by the average monthly balance afedioldersequity

Return on average invested capital is calcdlbtedividing net income plus net interest expemsitiplied by one minus the estimated
marginal tax rate of 38%, by average sharehold&msity plus debt, for the last five quarters.

The dividend payout ratio is dividends declaredgtere divided by basic earnings per sl

Period-end book value per share is calculatecdtas-gnd shareholderstuity divided by average diluted sha

Period-end price/earnings ratio is calculatetha year-end market price of the Company’s comstock divided by full year diluted
earnings per share.

Period-end market/book ratio is calculatedrespgeriod-end market price of the Company’s comstook divided by period-end book
value per share.

14
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following is a discussion of the results of igi@ns for 2012 compared with 2011 and 2011 coegbarith 2010 , and changes in
financial condition during 2012 . The Company’'séibyear ends on the last Saturday of Decemberaana result, included 52 weeks during
2012 and 2010, as compared with 53 weeks in 20ii%.imformation should be read in conjunction wilie consolidated financial
information provided in Item 8 of this Annual Repor

The Company's primary means of distributing itsdoieis is through independent sales organizatiodsratividuals, which in many cas
are also its customers. The vast majority of then@any's products are, in turn, sold to end custeméio are not members of its sales force.
The Company is largely dependent upon these indigpersales organizations and individuals to reachcensumers, and any significant
disruption of this distribution network would haaeegative financial impact on the Company andbibty to generate sales, earnings and
operating cash flows. The Company's primary busikisers are the size, activity and productivityte® independent sales organizations.

As exchange rates are an important factor in utakedgng period-tgeriod comparisons, the Company believes the pratsem of result:
on a local currency basis, as a supplement to tegoesults, helps improve readers' ability to usidgad those results and evaluate
performance in comparison with prior periods. TlwrPany presents local currency information that garas results between periods as if
current period exchange rates had been the exchategein the prior period. The Company uses resuita local currency basis as one
measure to evaluate performance. The Company dgne&f@rs to such amounts as calculated on a l'leeaency" basis or "excluding the
impact of foreign currency."” These results showdbnsidered in addition to, not as a substituter&sults reported in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in theééhBtates ("GAAP"). Results on a local currencsidenay not be comparable to similarly
titted measures used by other companies.

Estimates included herein are those of the Comgangnagement and are subject to the risks andtaidess as described in the
Forward Looking Statements caption included in I#&n

Overview
(Dollarsin millions, except per share amounts)

Total Company results 2012 vs 2011

52 weeks 53 weeks Change
ended ended excluding )
the impact Foreign
December 29, December 31, of foreign exchange
2012 2011 Change exchange impact
Net sales $ 2,583.& $ 2,585.( — % 5% $ (127.9
Gross margin as a percent of sales 66.5% 66.€% 0.3pp ne ne
Delivery, sales & administrative expense i
a percent of sales 51.5% 51.8% (0.3pp ne ne
Operating income $ 306t $ 342: (10% 2% $ (29.9)
Net income 193.( 218.c (12 2 (22.2)
Net income per diluted share 3.4z 3.5 4 7 (0.3¢)
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Total Company results 2011 vs 2010

53 weeks 52 weeks Change
ended ended excluding )
the impact Foreign
December 31, December 25, of foreign exchange
2011 2010 Change exchange impact
Net sales $ 2,585.( $ 2,300. 12 % 9% $ 69.1
Gross margin as percent of sales 66.€% 66.7% (0.1pp ne ne
Delivery, sales & administrative expense :

a percent of sales 51.8% 51.9% (0.1pp ne ne
Operating income $ 342 $ 329« 4% 1% $ 8.7
Net income 218.c 225.¢ 3 (6) 6.5
Net income per diluted share 3.5t 3.5: 1 2 0.11

na not applicable
pp percentage points

Sales

Reported sales decreased slightly in 2012 compaited?011 . This included an estimated 1 percenfaget negative impact on the
comparison from the extra week in 2011. Excludimgitmpact of changes in foreign currency exchaatgsrsales increased 5 percent ,
reflecting strong growth in the Company’s emergimarket economy businesses, while its sales in lesttad market economy businesses
were down slightly compared with 2011. The Compdefjnes its established markets as those in WeElerope including Scandinavia,
Australia, Canada, Japan, New Zealand, and theet&tates. All other markets are classified as gimgmarkets. The Company’s emerging
markets accounted for 61 and 59 percent of repadéss in 2012 and 2011 , respectively. The 20fdrted sales in the emerging markets
were up 4 percent compared with the prior yeatuthing a negative $89.7 milliompact on the comparison from changes in foreigmeticy
exchange rates. Excluding the impact of foreigmenuy, these markets’ had strong growth of 11 p#rc&he strong results in the emerging
markets were led by Brazil, India, Indonesia, MalaiSingapore, Tupperware Mexico, Turkey and Veakzurhis primarily reflected
increases in their total and active sales forctgrdhan in Venezuela where the increase primegftected inflation related price increases.
Among the emerging markets, those with notableieslin local currency sales were Fuller Mexiccg tlua smaller and less active sales
force in light of heavy promotional investments ma 2011 that were not repeated to the same exrdtTupperware South Africa due to
less sales force productivity. In South Africastheflected the impact on confidence of the salesefin light of counterfeit and knocked-off
product in the market place and a generally wealswmer spending environment. The Company’s estaalisnarket businesses' sales were
down 6 percent in U.S. dollars, including a nega®37.6 million impact on the comparison from ctesn foreign currency exchange rates.
Excluding the impact of foreign currency, saleshiese markets were down 3 percent . Among thegs, tinére were local currency decreases
in BeautiControl and Tupperware United States aadafa due to smaller and less active sales faxsegell as in Tupperware France,
reflecting lower productivity. These decreases vpamially offset by an increase in Germany, rdftegcontinued strength in sales force
recruiting.
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Reported sales increased 12 percent in 2011 coohpatie 2010. This increase included an estimatpdrtentage point positive impact
from the extra week in 2011 compared with 2010.lEdiag the impact of changes in foreign currencghange rates, sales increased 9
percent, reflecting strong growth in the Comparmgytserging market economy businesses, while salestablished market economy
businesses were about even with 2010. The Compamesging markets accounted for 59 and 56 perdaeported sales in 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The 2011 reported sales in the emgngiarkets were up 18 percent compared with the paar, including a positive $19.6
million impact on the comparison from changes irefgn currency exchange rates. Excluding the imphftreign currency, these markets’
had strong growth of 16 percent. The strong resultise emerging markets were led by Brazil, Intli@onesia, Malaysia/Singapore, Turkey
and Venezuela. The core businesses in all of theise performed well through increases in theialtand active sales forces, along with
higher sales per active sales force member in oo, Of the emerging markets, Russia had the muisble decline in local currency sales
compared with 2010, due to a lower sales forcewitteless activity, as the Company worked to githan its top independent sales force
leaders. The decrease also reflected continueidudtfés in the consumer spending environment. Chepany’s established market
businesses were up 5 percent in 2011 reported, sadhsding a positive $49.6 million impact on tbemparison from changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. Excluding the foreign amghk benefit, sales in these markets were evern20ith. Germany, Italy and Tupperware
United States and Canada were the units with the mignificant sales growth during the year, rdfterlarger and more productive sales
forces, offset by declines by Tupperware Austratid BeautiControl, due to smaller and less ac@essforces.

Specific segment impacts are further discusselderSegment Results section.
Gross Margin

Gross margin as a percentage of sales was 66.8niénc2012 and 66.6 percent in 2Q1he increase of 0.3 percentage points ("pp")
primarily due to a better product mix, improved of@ndising and slightly less promotional pricing2(fap) and lower inventory obsolescel
(0.1 pp). These improvements were partially offgseincreased manufacturing costs, in part dubeddwer absorption of fixed costs from
lower sales volume in certain markets, mainly imdpe and Tupperware North America (0.8 pp), argba favorable country mix as sales
in some units with high gross margins (0.2 pp).

Gross margin as a percentage of sales was 66.6nténc2011 and 66.7 percent in 2010. The decnwaseorimarily due to higher resin
costs of $16 million (0.6 pp), partially offset tye leverage on fixed costs from higher sales velimcertain markets (0.2 pp), changes in
estimates of certain non-income tax costs (0.lapgd)reduced inventory obsolescence (0.2 pp).

Operating Expenses

Delivery, sales and administrative expense (DS&A\p@ercentage of sales was 51.5 percent in 268drapared with 51.8 percent in
2011 . The lower DS&A percentage in 2012 was maikig to lower commission expenses (0.3 pp), lowemption expenses (0.4 pp) and
lower marketing expenses (0.1pp). Partially offegtthese improvements was an overall increas@émating expenses and the impact of a
stronger U.S. dollar that offset some of the norbmadefit of the leverage on higher sales on thiaddenominated fixed cost elements of this
caption (0.5 pp).

DS&A as a percentage of sales was 51.8 percertlih, zompared with 51.9 percent in 2010. The |IdD8&A percentage in 2011 was
mainly due to lower commission expenses (0.4 @) absence of out-of-period amounts recorded isiR{8.2 pp) in 2010, and leverage
from higher sales volume due to the fixed natura pbrtion of the costs included in this captioartRlly offsetting these improvements was
higher spending on promations (0.4 pp) and margegin2 pp), reflecting efforts to grow the salescéosize and build brand recognition and
appreciation in certain markets. Also, the normelddit of the leverage on higher sales was offgghb impact of the strengthening of certain
foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar on noltad-denominated fixed cost elements of this capti
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The Company segregates corporate operating expenseslocated and unallocated expenses basedthpdime spent managing
segment operations. The allocated costs are theortagned to each segment based upon segment evehoe unallocated expenses reflect
amounts unrelated to segment operations. Operatipgnses to be allocated are determined at thariagiof the year based upon estimated
expenditures. Total unallocated expenses for 20d2ased $3.7 million compared with 2011 , reflegtigher incentive and equity
compensation due to improved operating resultaedisas impacts from variations in foreign exchanges.

Total unallocated expenses for 2011 increaseddflibn compared with 2010, largely reflecting ingte from variations in certain
foreign exchange rates.

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Findistetements, the Company includes costs relatétetdistribution of its products in
DS&A expense. As a result, the Company’s gross mangy not be comparable with other companiesiticdtide these costs in cost of
products sold.

Included in 2012 net income were pretax chargek2@f4 million for re-engineering and impairment igjes, compared with $7.9 million
and $7.6 million in 2011 and 2010 , respectivelye3e charges are discussed in the re-engineerstg section following.

The Company’s goodwill and intangible assets rgtat@arily to the December 2005 acquisition of dtheect-to-consumer businesses of
Sara Lee Corporation and the October 2000 acquisiti BeautiControl. The Company conducts an anasséssment of goodwill and
intangible assets in the third quarter of each yeer than for BeautiControl where the annualiagbn is performed in the second quarter,
and in other quarters in the event of a chang&daumstances that would lead the Company to belieata triggering event for impairment
may have occurred. Refer to Note 6 of the Cons@itiStatements.

During the second quarter of 2012, the Company detegh its annual impairment test of the BeautiGareporting units, resulting in an
impairment charge of $38.9 million related to ttemdwill in the BeautiControl United States and G#mAusiness. This was a result of the
rates of growth of sales, profit and cash flow arpectations for future performance that were balwvCompany's previous projections.
Also in the second quarter, the financial perforoeaaf the Nutrimetics reporting units fell belovethprevious trend line and it became
apparent that they would fall significantly shoffpoevious expectations for the year. Additionatlyguctions in the forecasted operating
trends of NaturCare, relating to declines in thieg@f growth of sales, profit and cash flows ia Jlapanese market, led to interim impairment
testing in both these businesses, as of the eNthpfand June 2012, respectively. The result ofgtiests was to record tradename
impairments of $13.8 million for Nutrimetics and.@9nillion for NaturCare, primarily due to the usidlower estimated royalty rates in light
of lower sales and profit forecasts for these uiaisswell as macroeconomic factors that incredsedliscount rates used in the valuations
versus those used previously. In addition, the Gomgpvrote off the $7.2 million and $7.7 million cging value of the goodwill of the
Nutrimetics Asia Pacific and Nutrimetics Europeading units, respectively, in light of then curteperating trends and expected fut
results, as well as the macroeconomic factorsitica¢ased the discount rates used in the valuations

During the third quarter of 2011, the financialuis of Nutrimetics were below expectations. TherPany also made at that time, the
decision to cease operating its Nutrimetics busiired/alaysia. As a result, the Company lowerediaitscast of future sales and profit. The
result of the impairment tests was to record aB&iillion impairment to the Nutrimetics goodwill the Asia Pacific reporting unit andba.0
million impairment to its tradename.

During 2010, the Company decided it would ceaseatimg its Swissgarde unit. As a result of thisisier, the Company concluded that
its intangible assets and goodwill were impairedntg, in the fourth quarter of 2010, the Companynaed a $2.1 million impairment to the
Swissgarde tradename, a $0.1 million impairmertteel to a sales force intangible and a $2.1 millopairment to goodwill relating to the
South African beauty reporting unit. During 201He Company sold its interest in Swissgarde for $illfon that resulted in a gain of $0.1
million .
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The Company continues working on its program tblaatl for development near its Orlando, Floridadguarters, which began in 2002.
During 2011, a pretax gain of $0.7 million was rguized as a result of a sale under this prograraréltvere no land sales under this prog
in 2012 or 2010 due to negative developments inghkestate market, including ramifications of ¢hedit crisis in the United States. Gains
on land transactions are recorded based upon whledanansactions close and proceeds are collectadsactions in one period may not be
representative of what may occur in future peri@isce the Company began this program in 2002, tative proceeds from these sales have
totaled $67.7 million and currently are expectetieaup to an additional $100 million when the pewgris completed. The carrying value of
the remaining land included in the Company's laaldssprogram was $23.2 million as of December 2922 This amount was included in
property, plant and equipment held for use withim Consolidated Balance Sheet as it is not coresidamobable that any land sales will be
completed within one year.

In 2012, the Company recognized a $7.5 millionaxetain from the sale of its old manufacturing lfgcin Belgium, and in 2010, the
Company recorded a pretax gain of $0.2 million fribve sale of property in Australia.

Re-engineering Costs

As the Company continuously evaluates its operatingcture in light of current business conditiansl strives to maintain the most
efficient possible structure, it periodically impients actions designed to reduce costs and immoeeting efficiency. These actions often
result in re-engineering costs related to factlibyvnsizing and closure, as well as related ass&t downs and other costs that may be
necessary in light of the revised operating langscén addition, the Company may recognize gaimnugisposal of closed facilities or other
activities directly related to its re-engineerirfipes. Over the past three years, the Companyrtasred such costs as detailed below that
were included in the following income statementtays (in millions):

2012 2011 2010

Re-engineering and impairment charges $224 $ 79 $ 7.6
Cost of products sold 0.2 1.7 —
Total pretax re-engineering costs $22€ $ 9€ $ 7.6

The Company recorded re-engineering and impairmiggntges of $5.3 million , $5.9 million and $6.5 linih in 2012 , 2011 and 2010,
respectively, related to severance costs incuoedduce head count in various units, mainly duenflementing changes in the businesses'
management structures. These costs were primatéied to operations in Argentina, Australia, RuMexico, Japan and exiting the
Nutrimetics businesses in Greece and the Unitedddm in 2012; France, Fuller Mexico, Japan and &dain 2011; and Australia, Fran
and Japan in 2010. In 2012, re-engineering andimmgat charges included $0.9 milliam exit costs, primarily related to the decisiorceas
operating the Nutrimetics businesses in GreecdtatUnited Kingdom. Also in connection with thedidation of the Nutrimetics business in
the United Kingdom, the Company incurred a $16.tioninon-cash charge that related to the reclesgibn of currency translation
adjustments from accumulated other comprehensoa@me into operating income, as well as a $0.2 omléharge to cost of sales for
inventory obsolescence. In 2011, re-engineeringimpeirment charges also included $1.3 million texdato the decision to merge the
Nutrimetics and Tupperware businesses in Malaysit$0.7 millionrelated to asset impairments, exit activities aldaation costs as well .

a $1.7 million charge to cost of sales for inveptolbsolescence. In 2010, re-engineering and immaitroharges also included $1.1 million
related to moving costs and the impairment of priyp@lant and equipment associated with the rélooaf a manufacturing facility in Japi

See also Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial B&t¢s, regarding the Company's re-engineeringrastio
Net I nterest Expense

Net interest expense was $32.4 million in 2012mgared with $45.8 million in 2011 . Excluding tmegact of the non-cash interest rate
swap impairment charge recorded in 2011 of $18IBomiand the write-off of deferred debt issuanosts of $0.9 million, interest expense
increased due to higher borrowing levels and higieighted average interest rates.
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Net interest expense was $45.8 million in 2011, garad with $26.8 million in 2010. This increasdeaeted the $18.9 million cost from
the impairment of floating-to-fixed interest swapkng with the write-off of deferred debt costhisTwas partially offset by higher interest
income earned on higher average cash balanceslitietdy 2011 in Brazil, China and India.

Tax Rate

The effective tax rates for 2012 , 2011 and 2016:w28.3 , 26.1 and 24.7 percent, respectively.cimparatively higher 2012 tax rate
was due to the impact of nondeductible goodwill @nment charges. As a result of tax law changégerico, an election was made during
2011 that resulted in a reduction of $20.4 millafrdeferred tax liabilities. The Company also irregrin 2011, additional costs of $16.0
million associated with the repatriation of foreigarnings. During 2011, the Company decided totrigp@ earnings from Australia and
certain other foreign units that were previousliedmined to be indefinitely reinvested in ordetdke advantage of historically favorable
exchange rates. The effective tax rates for 2@ 1 and 2010 are below the U.S. statutory ratkecteng the availability of excess foreign
tax credits, as well as lower foreign effective tates.

Tax rates are affected by many factors, includirgglobal mix of earnings, changes in tax legistgtacquisitions or dispositions as well
as the tax characteristics of income. The Compsmgduired to make judgments on the need to resefietred tax assets and liabilities,
uncertain tax positions and assessments regatunigealizability of deferred tax assets in detemgjrihe income tax provision. The Comp
has recognized deferred tax assets based upamaiisis of the likelihood of realizing the benefitberent in them. At December 29, 2012
and December 31, 2011 , the Company had valualimwances against certain deferred tax assetdrtgt8L03.1 million and $96.0 million ,
respectively. These valuation allowances relataxassets in jurisdictions where it is manageradi@st estimate that there is not a greater
than 50 percent probability that the benefit of éissets will be realized in the associated taxmsturhis assessment is based upon expected
future domestic results, future foreign dividenas then current year earnings and cash flows #mg doreign source income, including
rents and royalties, as well as anticipated gadleged to future sales of land held for developnmexar the Company's Orlando, Florida
headquarters. In addition, certain tax planningda&tions may be entered into to facilitate retiimeof these benefits. In evaluating uncer
tax positions, the Company makes determinationsro®gg the application of complex tax rules, retjales and practices. Uncertain tax
positions are evaluated based on many factorsdimgjubut not limited to changes in tax laws, newalepments and the impact of settlem
on future periods. Refer to the critical accounipadjcies section and Note 12 to the Consolidatedricial Statements for additional
discussions of the Company's methodology for evimlgaleferred tax assets.

As of December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011Cdtmepany's gross unrecognized tax benefit was $2#lion and $28.6 million ,
respectively. During the year ended December 292 2@he accrual for uncertain tax positions desed#$4.5 million due to the expiration of
the statute of limitations in various jurisdictio$ie accrual also increased for positions beikgrtaluring the year in various tax filings. The
accrual is further impacted by changes in foreigrhange rates.

The Company estimates that it may settle one oerfayeign audits in the next twelve months that mesult in a decrease in the amount
of accrual for uncertain tax positions of up to8tillion . For the remaining balance as of Decenfi$e 2012, the Company is not able to
reliably estimate the timing or ultimate settlemantount. While the Company does not currently elxpeaterial changes, it is possible that
the amount of unrecognized benefit with respetihéouncertain tax positions will significantly imerse or decrease related to audits in various
foreign jurisdictions that may conclude during thatiod or new developments that could also, in,titmpact the Company's assessment
relative to the establishment of valuation allonesagainst certain existing deferred tax assetthigitime, the Company is not able to make
a reasonable estimate of the range of impact obdlace of unrecognized tax benefits or the impadhe effective tax rate related to these
items.
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Net Income

For 2012 , operating income decreased 10 percempaed with 2011 , which included an 8 percent tiegampact on the comparison
from changes in foreign currency exchange ratesindeme decreased 12 percent on a reported Ipasigrily reflecting the negativienpact
from changes in foreign currency exchange ratesluging the impact of foreign exchange rates, nebine was 2 percent lower than 2011.
The decrease was due to the impact of lower sgl@&ehuty North America and a higher level of opegexpenses in Europe, as well as
lower gross margin from lower manufacturing voluim&urope. There were also non-cash charges refateidher goodwill and intangible
asset impairment charges in 2012, as well as $m8lidn related to the reclassification of currertegnslation adjustments from accumulated
other comprehensive income into operating income r@sult of the liquidation of the Nutrimetics mess in the United Kingdom. There was
also a higher income tax rate in 2012 than in 2@titnarily reflecting the impact of the higher neadictible foreign goodwill impairment
charges. These decreases were partially offsétéigher profit achieved from the businesses il Rscific and South America based on
the contribution margin on higher sales, while Tenyare North America had lower operating expensasléd to higher profit despite local
currency sales that were even with 2011. In additioe year-over-year comparison also benefiteah finot having the $18.9 million
impairment charge associated with interest ratepswacorded in 2011 as well as a $7.5 million gam the sale of an old manufacturing
facility in Belgium in 2012.

For 2011, operating income increased 4 percent aoapwith 2010, which included a 3 percent positirpact on the comparison from
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Netieocdecreased 3 percent on a reported basis, iariddluded a positive 3 percent impact
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.biusinesses in Asia Pacific, Tupperware North Acaeand South America achieved
higher profit based on the contribution margin aghler sales. These increases were offset by thadtrgd lower sales by Beauty North
America, as well as higher levels of promotionarsfing in Europe and Beauty North America, alonthhe $36.1 million impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets of the Nutrimetiasihesses and $19.8 million in costs incurred fleenimpairment of interest rate swaps and
the write-off of deferred debt issuance costs innaztion with the repayment of the underlying delihe second quarter of 2011. There was
also a higher income tax rate in 2011 than in 2@tigharily reflecting the impact of the nondedutdiforeign goodwill impairment charges.

International operations accounted for 90 percétti@Company's sales in both 2012 and 2011 ange8&nt in 2010. They accounted
for 98, 99 and 96 percent of the Company’s net ssgprofit in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively.
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Segment Results 2012 vs. 2011

Change
excluding
Change the Percent of total
impact of
foreign Foreign exchange
(Dollarsin millions) 2012 2011 Dollar Percent exchange impact 2012 2011
Net Sales
Europe $ 791« $ 848.¢ $(57.5) (M% 1% $ (62.0 31% 33%
Asia Pacific 780.7 714.( 66.7 9 12 (17.7) 3C 27
Tupperware North
America 344.¢ 352.( (7.2 2 — (7.2 13 14
Beauty North
America 348.: 395.¢ (47.2) 22 (9) (14.9) 14 15
South America 318.¢ 274.¢ 44.C 1€ 29 (26.€) 12 11
Total net
sales $2583.¢ $2585.( $ (1.2 — 5% $ (1279 10(% 10(%
Segment profit
Europe $ 131.€¢ $ 148 $(16.9) (11)% @)% $ (112 29% 34%
Asia Pacific 172.5 147.C 25.7 17 23 (6.9 38 33
Tupperware Nortt
America 63.7 58.4 5.3 9 13 (1.9 14 13
Beauty North
America 30.Z 37.¢ (7.7) (20 14 (2.6) 6 9
South America 61.C 48.€ 12.4 25 42 (5.6 13 11
Segment profit as a percent of sales
Europe ) )
16.€% 17.5% ne (0.Spp (0.€pp (0.D)pp na na
Asia Pacific 221 20.¢ ne 1kt 1.6 (0.9 na na
Tupperware Nortt
America 18.5 16.€ ne 1.¢ 2.1 (0.2 na na
Beauty North
America 8.7 9.€ ne (0.9 (0.6) (0.3 na na
South America 19.1 17.7 ne 1.4 1.7 0.3 na na

ppPercentage poir
neNot applicabl

Europe

Reported sales decreased 7 percent in 2012 comyitred011. Excluding the impact of foreign currency excharges, sales increas
1 percent . The slight improvement was due to allogrrency increase in the Compagg'stablished markets, which are composed of Wh
Europe, including Scandinavia. The increase inghmaarkets was driven by Germany, the largest mamkbe segment, and Scandinavia,
primarily reflecting larger and slightly more pradive sales forces, and was partially offset byerdases at Tupperware France due to lower
productivity resulting from the social and polifieavironment in that market in 2012.

Emerging markets accounted for $271.7 and $298libmof reported net sales in this segment in 28ta 2011 , respectively, which
represented 34 percent and 35 percent of repoetesbigment sales. Local currency sales in the éngengarkets were about even with 2011.
The most significant growth in these markets wakurkey, due to a larger sales force from improrestuiting and lower turnover, as well
increased activity during significant promotionahtpaigns. Positive results also came from the A@olain beauty business in South Africa,
reflecting a larger sales force, as well as mogestuth in Russia due to greater productivity. Tdriewth was offset by a significant sales
decrease in Tupperware South Africa, reflectingss lproductive sales force due to the impact ofidemte and decrease in sales leadership
associated with counterfeit and knocked off prodssiies, as well as a more challenging consumedgggenvironment.
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For 2012 , compared with 2011 , segment profit elesed $16.7 million , or 11 percent . Segment pasfa percentage of sales at 16.6
percent decreased 0.9 percentage points from 2Bgdluding the impact of foreign currency exchanates, segment profit decreased 4
percent . On a local currency basis, the decreasegment profit primarily reflected the declinesales in Tupperware France and
Tupperware South Africa, lower gross margin duthéoimpact on cost per unit of low production vokjras well as overall increased
operating expenses. These impacts were partidbgtlby increased profit from higher sales in Getyn&candinavia and Turkey, as well ¢
profit increase in Russia due to lower operatingt€o

The negative impact of foreign currency rates enyibar-over-year comparison of sales and profittferentire segment was primarily
attributable to the weaker euro and South Africamdrversus the U.S. dollar.

Asia Pacific

Reported sales in Asia Pacific increased 9 pelioe2®12, reflecting significant growth by the emerging ketrbusinesses. Excluding !
impact of foreign currency exchange rates, the sagisales increased 12 percebmerging markets include China, India, Indones@ea,
Malaysia/Singapore, the Philippines and Thailamd, accounted for $593.1 million and $511.5 milliaer 76 and 72 percent , of the sales in
this segment in 2012 and 2011 , respectively. Tartarging market sales increased $81.6 millionl6opercent , in 2012 compared with
2011 . The comparison was negatively impacted lapghs in foreign currency exchange rates totalig7million. Excluding the impact «
foreign currencies, these markets' sales increag@® percent in 2012 , primarily from substangiedwth in India, Indonesia and
Malaysia/Singapore. India grew primarily from ager active sales force, in part reflecting contohugarket penetration into new, densely
populated areas. Growth in Indonesia, which iSGbmpany's largest housewares unit, was attributatdentinued strength in recruiting and
retention resulting from well received sales fomcévity initiatives and attractive consumer oftdvtalaysia/Singapore drove an increased
sales force activity rate through strong marketing merchandising campaigns and successful newigrtainches.

Reported sales in the established markets decr@gsextent . The impact of changes in foreign ewayeexchange rates was minimal in
the established markets. The more significant @gsa®in local currency were in Nutrimetics Austratiue to a smaller and less active sales
force, and Tupperware Japan, reflecting lower petidity as it continued to shift its product mixward core housewares categories that, on
average, have lower price points than non-coregoaites.

Total segment profit increased $25.7 million , @rgercent , in 2012 . Segment profit as a percentdgales at 22.1 percent was higher
than 2011 by 1.5 percentage points. The segmefit poonparison was negatively impacted by changdsiieign currency, and excluding
this impact, segment profit increased 23 percemtpayed with 2011 . The increase was mainly frominffoved sales volume in the
emerging markets and the leverage these highes katkon the fixed components of DS&A spendingyalsas more efficient promotional
spending. These were partially offset by lower pratf Nutrimetics Australia and Tupperware Japafiecting the lower sales volume.

The negative impact from foreign currencies ongéiles and profit comparison of 2012 with 2011 wainiy attributable to the Indian
rupee and the Indonesian rupiah.

Tupperware North America

Reported sales decreased 2 percent in 2012 comyitred011 . Excluding the impact of foreign curcgrexchange rates, sales were
even with the prior year, reflecting strong growthTupperware Mexico due to a larger sales fordgs increase was offset by a decrease at
Tupperware United States and Canada, as less pgooraly driven recruiting initiatives led to a sreland less active sales force.

Segment profit increased $5.3 million , or 9 petcen 2012 compared with 2011 . Segment profia gercentage of sales at 18.5 percent
was 1.9 percentage points higher in 2012 than i1 20'he improvement was primarily in Mexico duehtgher sales volume and an
improved gross margin from more efficient manufaoty during the year. Notwithstanding the decraasales in the United States and
Canada, profit in this unit increased slightly doe higher realized gross margin percentage assddggressive promotional spending.
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Beauty North America

Reported sales for this segment were down 12 peic@012 . Excluding the impact of foreign currgrexchange rates, sales decreased
9%. This decrease was primarily a result of smaliet less active sales forces in both Fuller Mexiee to higher field manager turnover,
and BeautiControl, from higher achievement starsléodawards and fewer promotionally driven initias compared with 2011.

Segment profit decreased $7.7 million , or 20 paircén 2012 compared with 2011 . Segment profih @grcentage of sales, at 8.7
percent , was 0.9 percentage points lower than 26bteign currency exchange rates negatively itgobihie comparison by $2.6 million, or
6 percent. The decrease in profit was largely duewer sales and a slightly lower gross margircgetage due to promotional pricing of
certain products at Fuller Mexico. This was palyiaffset by value chain improvements at BeautiCointompared with 2011.

South America

Reported sales for this segment increased 16 parc2812 compared with 2011 . Excluding the impafathanges in foreign currency
exchange rates, sales increased 29 percent . Gteage was mainly in Brazil and Venezuela. In Bréze increase was driven by a larger
sales force as a result of strong recruiting pnogrand less turnover, and higher prices in ligidasfsumer inflation, while in Venezuela, the
increase was due primarily to higher prices as aek larger sales force. The Company estimatésdlfeof the overall local currency sales
increase for the segment was due to price increases

Segment profit increased $12.4 million , or 25 patg in 2012 compared with 2011 . Segment prafé percentage of sales, at 19.1
percent , was 1.4 percentage points higher th@01d . Excluding the impact of foreign currencyleaaege rates, segment profit increased 42
percent . The increase in profit was primarily tméhe contribution margin from the significantligher sales volume and the leverage these
higher sales had on the fixed cost componentseo¥atue chain.

The Company had expected to implement during 22registration of certain of its independent sédece members under new
requirements of the social security system in Bra¥hile most of the changes involved in the pracagre implemented in the fourth quarter
of the year, due to changes in some of the govemtaheegulations and process, the remainder ofinipdementation is now expected to take
place in 2013. While there could be a financial acipto the Company as the result of this changeadwrerse impact is not expected to be
significant.

The Company uses the "banded" exchange rate o6 %r&nslate the value of the Venezuelan bolivaswgthe U.S dollar. There were no
changes to this rate in 2012; however, in Febrd@i3, the Venezuelan government set a new offiahange rate of 6.3 bolivars to the |
dollar and abolished the banded exchange rate.2Adefeecontinues to be deemed hyper-inflationanatmounting purposes. As a result,
assuming the 6.3 exchange rate is the rate usdtel@ompany and remains in effect for the restddf3? the Company estimates it will rec
expense associated with the devaluation's impaits aret monetary assets and inventory producegeoaiired prior to the February 2013
devaluation, of $4 million in the first quarter ad#l million in the second quarter of 2013. To ithase the sensitivity of potential future
changes in the exchange rate, if the exchangevexie to further devalue to 18 bolivars to the Wi&lar as of the beginning of March 2013,
the Company estimates there would be an additioegétive impact upon translating the value of @8smonetary assets and inventory on
hand of $10 million in the first quarter of 2013de®4 million in the second quarter of 2013. In #iddi with respect to the translation of the
ongoing results of the Company's business in Vezlazthe negative impact on pretax earnings ofguie 6.3 rate for the succeeding 12
months is estimated to be between $2 and $3 mijltiod from a devaluation to 18, an additional $1an.

As of December 29, 2012 , the Company had $17anillh net monetary assets denominated in Venezbel@rars, which will be
directly impacted by any change in the exchangg matluding $24 million in cash and cash equividen

24




Table of Contents

Segment Results 2011 vs. 2010

Effective with the first quarter of 2011, the Compahanged its segment reporting to reflect thegggahic distribution of its businesses
in accordance with how it views the operations. €&amuently, the Company no longer has a Beauty G#wment, and the businesses
previously reported in that segment are now regaatefollows: Tupperware Brands Philippines inAlséa Pacific segment; the Company's
Central America businesses in the Tupperware Namtlerica segment; the Nutrimetics businesses ifEtitepe and Asia Pacific segments
applicable); and the businesses in South Amerieaseparate geographic segment. Comparable infomfadm 2010 has been reclassifie
conform with the new presentation.

Change
excluding
Change the Percent of total
impact of Foreign
foreign exchange
(Dollarsin millions) 2011 2010 Dollar Percent exchange impact 2011 2010
Net Sales
Europe $ 848¢ $ 796.C $ 52.¢ 7% 3% $ 25.¢ 33% 35%
Asia Pacific 714.( 584.( 130.( 22 15 34.¢ 27 25
Tupperware North
America 352.( 331.t 20.t 6 5 3.2 14 14
Beauty North Americe ~ 395.t 406.( (10.5 3 (©)] 3.C 15 18
South America 274.¢ 182.¢ 91.7 50 48 2.7 11 8
Total net sales $2,585.C $2,300.. $284.6 12% 9% $ 69.1 100% 10C%
Segment profit
Europe $ 148: $ 1471 $ 12 1% D)% $ 3.2 34% 3%
Asia Pacific 147.( 111.¢ 35.2 31 2€ 5.3 33 28
Tupperware North
America 58.4 52.¢ 5.€ 11 9 0.8 13 13
Beauty North America 37.¢ 58.¢ (21.00 (36) (36) 0.3 9 15
South America 48.¢ 24.¢ 24.2 99 92 0.8 11 6
Segment profit as a percent of sales
Europe ) ) )
17.5% 18.5% ne (1.Cpp (0.€pp (0.2pp na na
Asia Pacific 20.¢ 19.1 ne 1kt 1.7 (0.2 na na
Tupperware North
America 16.€ 15.¢ ne 0.7 0.€ 0.1 na na
Beauty North America 9.€ 14.t ne (4.9 (4.9 — na na
South America 17.% 13.c ne 4.4 4.1 0.3 na na

pgPercentage poir

neNot applicabl
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Europe

Reported sales increased 7 percent in 2011. Exagjutie impact of foreign currency exchange ratelessncreased 3 percent. The
improvement was due to a slight local currency imepment in the Company’s emerging markets and mdaless currency growth in the
established markets. Emerging markets accounte@8.1 and $292.3 million of reported net salethis segment in 2011 and 2010,
respectively, which represented 35 percent andeBdept of reported net segment sales. The impadtariges in foreign currency exchange
rates was minimal in the emerging markets. The aw@ment in emerging markets came from significaatwgh in Turkey, as well as strong
growth in the Avroy Shlain, due to larger and macéive sales forces in those markets. This groveh effset by a significant sales decrease
in Russia, resulting from a decline in consumendp®g power and a smaller sales force with lowdiviyg. Sales by the Tupperware South
Africa unit were up modestly for the full year,tadugh down in the fourth quarter, after severatyerobust growth. The lower sales in the
fourth quarter reflected a less favorable readiiotine holiday promotional program than in 201@Juding a lower number of active sellers
a result of lower confidence in light of countetfend knocked-off product activity in the country.

The established marketsicrease in reported sales, compared with 2010,dnresn by Tupperware France, Germany, and Italffecting
larger and more productive sales forces resultiognfa continued focus on recruiting, pay for paerfance under sales force compensatior
incentive programs, sales force leadership devedmpmnd training in these markets. These results partially offset by decreases in
Austria and Tupperware Greece, primarily from lesxuctive sales forces. In Greece particularlgrehwas an impact of lower consumer
spending in light of the difficult economic enviment.

For 2011, compared with 2010, segment profit ineeee$1.2 million, or 1 percent. Segment profit aercentage of sales of 17.5 percent
decreased 1 percentage point from 2010. The higgwment profit was due to the positive impact oéiffn currency exchange rates. On a
local currency basis, segment profit was down fijgtiue to elevated promotional spending in Itdigttresulted in a significant sales incre
but at a much higher than normal cost, as welllasvar gross margin from a variation in sales riixe decreases were partially offset by the
benefit of not having $7.6 million of out-of-peri@nounts recorded in Russia in 2010.

The year-over-year comparison on sales and pafithe entire segment was positively impacted bgifm currency rates, primarily a
stronger euro versus the U.S. dollar.

Asia Pacific

Asia Pacific achieved significant growth in 201twa 22 percent increase in reported sales, largéscting increases by the businesses
in emerging markets in this segment. Excludingittgact of foreign currency exchange rates, sale®ased 15 percent. Emerging markets
accounted for $511.5 million and $384.6 million,7@ and 66 percent, of the sales in this segme2®1i and 2010, respectively. Total
emerging market sales increased $126.9 milliol33opercent, in 2011 compared with 2010. The coraparivas positively impacted by
changes in foreign currency exchange rates tot$lir&y7 million. Excluding the impact of foreign cemcies, these markets increased by 29
percent in 2011, compared with 2010. This result fmam larger, more active sales forces, reflecsitngng recruiting, training and retention,
attractive consumer offers and successful promatiadativities.

Reported sales in the established markets incréapedcent. Excluding the impacts of foreign cucseexchange rates, the established
markets decreased by 9 percent compared with ZBEOmore significant decreases in local currencsevirethe Tupperware and Nutrimetics
businesses in Australia and the Tupperware businekpan, largely due to smaller and less actilessorces in light of continued difficult
consumer spending environments in these markets.

Total segment profit increased $35.2 million, ofgtcent, in 2011 compared with 2010. Segmenttpasfa percentage of sales at 20.6
percent was higher than 2010 by 1.5 percentagegadihe segment profit comparison was positivelganted by changes in foreign
currency, and excluding this impact, segment pinfiteased 26 percent compared with 2010. Thismaisly due to improved sales volume
in the emerging market units, as well as an impday®ss margin percentage, reflecting the leveoagixed costs from the higher sales
volume, lower inventory obsolescence, changestimates of certain non-income tax costs and a fawerable product mix. There was also
leverage from the higher sales on the fixed comptsnef DS&A spending. This was partially offset vhigher marketing expenses for
continued brand building initiatives.
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The positive impact from foreign currencies on shées and profit comparison of 2011 with 2010 wasniyg attributable to the Australi
dollar, the Indonesian rupiah and the Malaysiaggin

Tupperware North America

Reported sales increased 6 percent in 2011 compatie@010. Excluding the impact of foreign currgrexchange rates, sales increased
5 percent. The modest increase came primarily fyjoowth in core sales by both Tupperware Mexico tiedUnited States and Canada,
primarily reflecting a larger sales force in Mexiaod higher active sales forces in both units. Bowpre Mexico also overcame $5.2 million
less business-to-business sales than in 2010.

Segment profit increased $5.6 million, or 11 petcen2011 compared with 2010. Segment profit per@entage of sales at 16.6 percent
was 0.7 percentage points higher in 2011 than 1®20he improvement was primarily from the highalles volume in Mexico and lower
inventory obsolescence, along with a mix benefitaal core consumer sales by that unit, as conssales have a higher gross margin. Tt
improvements were partially offset by a lower profy the United States and Canada unit due to arlgnoss margin and planned investm
to activate the sales force and drive sales growth.

Beauty North America

Reported sales for this segment were down 3 pencé@ttl1l compared with 2010, primarily reflectimmgvier sales by BeautiControl No
America where there was a smaller and less actiles $orce. The impact of foreign currency exchanages on the comparison was minimal.
Fuller Mexico was also down slightly.

Segment profit decreased $21.0 million, or 36 perda 2011 compared with 2010. Segment profit peraentage of sales, at 9.6
percent, was 4.9 percentage points lower than ZD®impact of foreign currency exchange rateshercomparison was minimal. The
decrease in profit was largely due to lower salils lswer margins due to increased product cosbo#i BeautiControl and Fuller Mexico.
Both units also made significant promotional inwesitits for sales force recruiting and activatiotidtives during the year that did not
translate into incremental sales.

South America

Reported sales for this segment increased 50 parc2811 compared with 2010. Excluding the impafdioreign currency exchange
rates, sales increased 48 percent. The increasmaialy in Tupperware Brazil driven by a largeresaforce from strong recruiting, sales
force activation and higher productivity. Also cabtiting to the segment sales increase was Venenug to higher pricing reflecting
inflation and a modest increase in the size angigcof the sales force, as well as Uruguay andeftina due to higher pricing in line with
inflation. The Company estimates that one-thirthefoverall local currency sales increase by tigengmt was from price increases.

Segment profit increased $24.2 million, or 99 petci 2011 compared with 2010. Segment profit peraentage of sales, at 17.7
percent, was 4.4 percentage points higher than. 20impact of foreign currency exchange ratethercomparison was minimal. The
increase in profit mainly reflected higher salekiate in Brazil and, to a lesser extent, in Veneaua$ well as more efficient promotional
spending and leverage from the higher sales ofixéeé components of DS&A spending.

Financial Condition
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net working capital was $72.0 million as of Decem®@, 2012 , compared with $96.0 million as of Dmber 31, 2011 and $348.8
million as of December 25, 2010 . The current ratés 1.1 to 1 at the end of 2012 and 2011 , antb117at the end of 2010 .

The most significant component in the Company’s $@#lon reduction in net working capital in 2012 was $18liom less cash and ca
equivalents, which together with cash flow from i@timg activities, was the main source of funding tash outflow during the year for
investing activities, dividends and share repurebagvhile both inventory and accounts receivabtesimsed modestly, this was largely offset
by an increase in accrued liabilities, includingraed compensation related to management incentives
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The Company’s net working capital decreased aBeoéhd of 2011 compared with 2010, primarily reffega lower level of cash as of
the end of 2011 and borrowings under its revoldreglit facility, both of which were used to repuask shares. There was also an impact
from a reduction in receivables, reflecting theitignof collections around the Company's fiscal yeaad. There was a partial offset from a
higher level of inventory to support a higher legEbales generally, along with more specific ins&s where inventory was increased in units
to enable a better level of service to customedgsiatight of sales below expectations. There was an increase in deferred tax assets and a
decrease in accrued liabilities, largely from lowerome taxes payable due to the timing of the Caomgls tax payments around year end.

On June 2, 2011, the Company completed the s&#é0fF million in aggregate principal amount of 4.%68enior Notes due June 1, 2I
(the “Senior Notes”) at an issue price of 98.988%well as entered into a new $450 million multieacy revolving Credit Agreement (the
“Credit Agreement”). The proceeds were used toyepleof the Company's $405 million term loans ¢antsling under the Company's
previous credit facility from September 2007 ("@cdedit Facility"), which was terminated on the saglaée. The Company is permitted to
request, on up to three separate occasions, azaseto its borrowing capacity under the Crediteggrent by up to $200 million in the
aggregate (for a maximum aggregate Facility Amadfiigt650 million).

Loans made under the revolving credit facility biedéerest under a formula that includes, at the @amy's option, one of three different
base rates. The Company generally selects thedrimterbank offered rate (" LIBOR ") for the amalble currency and interest period as its
base for its interest rate. As provided in theitracility, a margin is added to the base. Theligpble margin is determined by reference to a
pricing schedule based upon the ratio (the “Codatdid Leverage Ratio”) of the consolidated funahelkbtedness of the Company and its
subsidiaries to the consolidated EBITDA (as defimethe Credit Agreement) of the Company and itssgliaries for the four fiscal quarters
then most recently ended. As of December 29, 2812 Credit Agreement dictated a base rate spredBobasis points, which gave the
Company a weighted average interest rate of 2.88peon $199.0 million of total borrowings undee Credit Agreement, of which $162
million was denominated in euréBhe Company routinely increases its revolver bomge under the Credit Agreement during each qués
fund operating, investing and financing activiteegl uses cash available at the end of each quanteduce borrowing levels. As a result, the
Company has higher foreign exchange exposure ovetlne of its cash during each quarter than aetiteof each quarter.

The Credit Agreement contains customary covenamtkjding financial covenants requiring minimumergst coverage and allowing a
maximum amount of leverage. As of December 29, 202 Company had, and currently has, considefablgay under its financial
covenants. However, economic conditions, adveraagés in foreign exchange rates, lower than foresakes and profit or the occurrence of
other events discussed under “Forward Looking 8tategs” and elsewhere could cause noncompliance.

The Company monitors the financial stability ofrthparty depository institutions that hold its casd aash equivalents and diversifies
cash and cash equivalents among counterpartieshwiinimizes exposure to any one of these entfieghermore, the Company is exposed
to financial market risk resulting from changesnterest rates, foreign currency rates and theilplesigquidity and credit risks of its
counterparties. The Company believes that it hf&®nt liquidity to fund its working capital anchpital spending needs and its current
dividend. This liquidity includes its year-end 20d&sh and cash equivalents balance of $119.8 milltash flows from operating activities,
and access to its $450 million Credit AgreementoABecember 29, 2012 , the Company had $247.9omi#lvailable under its Credit
Agreement and $85.6 millicavailable under other uncommitted lines of cretlite Company has not experienced any limitationgsoability
to access its committed facility. On February 1120n conjunction with executing its planned 2@h3&re repurchase program, the Company
entered into a 90-day $75 million promissory notthvhe same interest rate and covenant terms @er uts $450 million Credit Agreement.
The Company expects to make further changes fméacing arrangements in 2013 in order to fundnt@sting and financing activities.
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Cash and cash equivalents (“cash”) totaled $119lBmas of December 29, 2012 . Of this amountl&ZX million was held by foreign
subsidiaries. Approximately 50 percent of the dasld outside of the United States was not eligibteepatriation due to the level of past
statutory earnings by the foreign unit in which tiash was held or other local restrictions. Theaiaing cash is subject to repatriation tax
effects. The Company's current intent is to indedip reinvest these funds in its foreign operagioms the cash is needed to fund on-going
operations. In the event circumstances changeinigaad the conclusion that these funds will notrgefinitely reinvested, the Company
would need to provide at that time for the incomreet that would be triggered upon their repatnmatio

The Company’s most significant foreign currency@syores are to the euro, Indonesian rupiah and Mexjeso. Business units in which
the Company generated at least $100 million ofssal®012 included Brazil, Tupperware France, FiMexico, Germany, Indonesia,
Malaysia/Singapore, Tupperware Mexico and Tuppesvinited States and Canada. A significant downituthe Company’s business in
these units would adversely impact its ability émgrate operating cash flows. Operating cash fleaudd also be adversely impacted by
significant difficulties in the recruitment, ret@n and activity of the Comparg/independent sales force or the success of nedugtoand/c
promotional programs.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities in 20158298.7 million , compared with $274.7 million2@11 . Net income before the
impacts of non-cash charges for goodwill and inilalegassets and gains on disposal of assets ingeotbds, reclassification of cumulative
translation adjustments into operating income ih28nd non-cash interest swap impairments in 204%,$8 million higher in 2012 than
2011. Other more significant factors impacting ylear-over-year comparison of cash flow from opegatctivities were a smaller increase in
inventory due to success in managing to a lowerbearrof days on hand, and offsetting effects indbmparison of trade receivables and
accounts payable and accruals associated withdh®p@ny's fiscal year ending before the end of #ientar month of December in 2012 but
not in 2011.

Net cash provided by operating activities in 20ks\8274.7 million, compared with $299.5 million2@10. The decrease in operating
cash flow in 2011, notwithstanding a $44.0 millianrease in net income excluding the non-cash impait charges, primarily reflected the
timing of distributions for payables and accruatsuad the beginning of each year resulting frometkgea week in 2011. Inventory levels also
increased during 2011 due to purchases to supjgir¢hsales and customer service levels in centairkets and in light of sales below
forecast in other markets.

I nvesting Activities

In 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , the Company spent $78liém, $73.9 million and $56.1 million , respeatiy, for capital expenditures. The
most significant type of spending in all years vigrsmolds for new products, with the greatest am@pent in Europe, and vehicles for the
sales force. In 2012, capital was also investdtiérpurchase of a new office in Venezuela for $ionito support expanding operations and
as a natural hedge against possible currency de@i, the expansion of warehouse and office spabelonesia for $8 million, as well as
$17 million for manufacturing capacity in India,&il and various other operations. In 2011, the gamy also spent capital for molding
machinery and increasing warehouse and manufagtagpacity in South Africa, India and Brazil. In18) the Company also spent capital on
molding machines and outfitting a new leased mastufang facility in India.

Partially offsetting the capital spending were 8lfillion , $5.0 million and $10.0 million of proeds related to the sale of certain
property, plant and equipment and insurance recavar 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively. hyadirs, there were proceeds related to the
sale of vehicles that had been purchased for tles f@arce. Another significant source of proceed2012 was the sale of an old
manufacturing facility in Belgium.
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Financing Activities

In 2012 , the Company made net payments on borgsaoh $2.3 million , mainly related to its schedllease payments. The Company
also had a net inflow of $6.0 million from incredd®rrowings under its Credit Agreement. In 20h&, Company made net payments on
longterm borrowings of $14.1 million in connection witke issuance of the Senior Notes and terminafictheoOld Credit Facility, as well
scheduled lease payments. The Company also hadrelae of $193.5 million from borrowings undesiCredit Agreement. In 2010, the
Company made $2.0 million in net payments to rechareowings, mainly related to its capital leaségations.

Dividends

During 2012, 2011 and 2010 , the Company paididivils of $1.44 , $1.20 , and $1.00 per share ofremmstock, respectively, totaling
$77.6 million , $73.8 million and $63.2 millionespectively.

Going forward, the Company expects its Board o&Btiors to evaluate its dividend rate annually vitgtdeclaration in the first quarter of
each year. In the first quarters of 2013 and 2@ Board increased the regular quarterly divideedshare by 72 percent, to $0.62 in 2013
and 20 percent to $0.36 in 2012. It also incre@isedegular quarterly dividend by 20 percent tB88Qer share with its declaration in
November 2010. The payment of a dividend on comsi@mes is a discretionary decision and subjectsigraficant event that would requi
cash, the ability to continue to comply with debvenants, cash needed to finance operations, makicgssary investments in the future
growth of the business, required or discretionatytdepayment obligations or other cash needhkelktis an event requiring the use of cash,
such as a strategic acquisition, the Company woeét! to reevaluate whether to maintain its dividesygbut.

Sock Option Exercises

During 2012, 2011 and 2010 , the Company receivedeeds of $12.9 million , $16.1 million and $16Blion , respectively, related to
the exercise of stock options. The correspondigeshwere issued out of the Company’s balanceihé¢idasury.

Sock Repurchases

The Company's Board of Directors increased itstiexjshare repurchase authorization in Februar20ahllow open market
repurchases with an aggregate cost of up to $3Bi@muntil February 1, 2015. The Company expectadhat time, to use proceeds from
stock option exercises and excess cash generatibe lyisiness to offset dilution associated with@ompany's equity incentive plans, with
the intention of keeping the number of shares antihg at about 63 million. In 2011, the Compabyard increased the share repurchase
authorization on two occasions to a total of $ilibh. In January 2013, the Board further increh#ige share repurchase authorization by
$800 million to $2 billion and extended the termtlod authorization by two years to February 1, 2@ding forward, in setting share
repurchase amounts, the Company expects to targetime a debt-t@&BITDA ratio of 1.75 times consolidated funded déis defined in th
Company's Credit Agreement), which is an incredsequarter point from its previous target leveraa@ of 1.5 times consolidated funded
debt, as targeted since 2011.

During 2012 , 2011 and 2010 the Company repurchiastied open market 3.3 million , 7.1 million an@ illion shares under this
program at an aggregate cost of $200.0 million26%4 million and $60.3 million , respectively. Sénmception of the program in May 2007,
and through December 29, 2012 , the Company hadclepsed 15.5 million shares at an aggregate ¢&82Y.7 million .

Employees are also allowed to use shares to péeliting taxes, up to the minimum statutory amamall stock incentive plans. For
2012, 2011 and 2010, the value of shares usedifioholding taxes was $5.1 million , $2.5 milliamd $2.2 million , respectively, which is
included as stock repurchases in the ConsolidateSent of Cash Flows.
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Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes the Company’s contractiigations at December 29, 2012 and the effedt sitigations are expected to
have on its liquidity and cash flow in future petso(in millions).

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5years 5 years

Debt obligations $ 617.¢ $ 203.< $ 48 $ 48 $ 404.¢
Interest payments on long term obligations 165.¢ 19.€ 39.t 39.C 67.4
Pension benefits 189.2 14.2 34.€ 52.€ 87.7
Post-employment medical benefits 25.7 2.9 5.8 5.5 11t
Income tax payments (a) 1.8 1.8 — — —
Capital commitments (b) 6.C 4.5 1.t — —
Operating lease obligations 96.1 33.C 37.2 16.4 9.t
Total contractual obligations (c) $1,102 $ 279.¢ $ 123« $ 118t $ 580.¢

(a)The Company has not included in the above tableuatsaelated to its other unrecognized tax positias it is unable to make a reliable
estimate of the amount and period in which thesmstmight lead to payments. As of December 29, 20d Zompany’s total gross
unrecognized tax positions were $24.9 millionis Iteasonably possible that the amount of uncetéipositions could materially
change within the next 12 months based on thetsesfitax examinations, expiration of statutesmithtions in various jurisdictions
and additions due to ongoing transactions andigctitowever, the Company is unable to estimateirty@act of such events.

(b)Capital commitments represent signed agreemergs@scember 29, 2012 on relatively minor capitaj@ects in process in the Compasy’
Brazil, Indonesia, Portugal manufacturing and Tupaee South Africa units.

(c)The table excludes information on recurring purelsas inventory as these purchase orders are maliAlgi, are generally consistent from
year to year, and are short-term in nature.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Estmates

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations is based uperCitmpany’s Consolidated
Financial Statements that have been prepared or@excce with accounting principles generally aceéph the United States of America. 1
preparation of these financial statements requir@sagement to make estimates and assumptiondféetttae reported and disclosed
amounts. Actual results may differ from these eaten under different assumptions or conditions. Thmpany believes the implementation
of the following critical accounting policies aigetmost significantly affected by its judgments astimates.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.

The Company maintains current receivable amourtts most of its independent distributors and sadesef in certain markets. It also
maintains longerm receivable amounts with certain of these eusts. The Company regularly monitors and assetsgask of not collectin
amounts owed to it by customers. This evaluatidrased upon an analysis of amounts current anddpastlong with relevant history and
facts particular to the customer. It is also bageah estimates of distributor business prospeatsicplarly related to the evaluation of the
recoverability of long-term amounts due. This eatiln is performed market by market and accourdadnpunt, based upon historical
experience, market penetration levels and simdletoirs. It also considers collateral of the custotinat could be recovered to satisfy debts.
The Company records its allowance for uncollectddeounts based on the results of this analysis.aflalysis requires the Company to m
significant estimates and as such, changes in éactcircumstances could result in material chang#te allowance for doubtful accounts.
The Company considers any receivable balance mlected within its contractual terms past due.
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I nventory Valuation

The Company writes down its inventory for obsolesesor unmarketability in an amount equal to thHiedince between the cost of the
inventory and estimated market value based upoaated future demand and pricing. The demand awthgris estimated based upon the
historical success of product lines as well agptiogected success of promotional programs, newymidtroductions and new markets or
distribution channels. The Company prepares priojestof demand and pricing on an item by item b#siall of its products. If inventory on
hand exceeds projected demand or the expected twailke is less than the carrying value, the exisegsitten down to its net realizable
value. However, if actual demand or the estimatmarket decreases, additional write-downs wouldelgiired.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniaethe future tax consequences attributable tqtrary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of assetdiabdities and their respective tax bases. Defitex assets also are recognized for credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabiliies measured using the enacted rates applicatdgdble income in the years in which the
temporary differences are expected to reversetendredits are expected to be used. The effecefamréd tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income irpréod that includes the enactment date. At Dece@®e2012 and December 31, 2011 , the
Company had valuation allowances against certerge tax assets totaling $103.1 million and $96ilion , respectively. These valuation
allowances relate to tax assets in jurisdictionsnetit is management's best estimate that theretia greater than 50 percent probability that
the benefit of the assets will be realized in tegoaiated tax returns. At the end of 2012, the Gomhad gross domestic deferred tax assets
of approximately $378.0 million against which auetion allowance of $4.2 million has been providefithese total assets, approximately
$103.8 million relates to recurring type tempordifferences which reverse regularly and are repldgenewly originated items. The balance
is primarily related to foreign tax credits anddeal and state net operating losses that, otharftreghe amount for which a valuation
allowance has been provided, are expected to tizegégrior to expiration. This assessment is bageth expected future domestic results,
future foreign dividends from then current yeaméags and cash flows and other foreign source izantluding rents and royalties, as well
as anticipated gains related to future sales af kaid for development near the Company's OrlaRttwida headquarters. In addition, certain
tax planning transactions may be entered intodiitite realization of these benefits. These estén are made based upon the Company's
business plans and growth strategies in each markkeare made on an ongoing basis; consequenilyefmaterial changes in the valuation
allowance are possible. Any change in valuatioovedince amounts is reflected in the period in wiighchange occurs.

As of December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011Cdtmepany's gross unrecognized tax benefit was $2#lion and $28.6 million ,
respectively. During the year ended December 292 2@he accrual for uncertain tax positions deseda$4.5 million due to the expiration of
the statute of limitations in various jurisdictio$e accrual also increased for positions beikgrtaluring the year in various tax filings. The
accrual is further impacted by changes in foreigrhange rates.

Interest and penalties related to uncertain takipos in the Company's global operations are medras a component of the provision
for income taxes. Accrued interest and penaltie®6.9 million and $5.8 million as of December 2912 and December 31, 2011 ,
respectively. Interest and penalties included egtovision for income taxes totaled $0.3 millidki,2 million and $0.8 million for 2012 ,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Company estimates that it may settle one oerfayeign audits in the next twelve months that mesult in a decrease in the amount
of accrual for uncertain tax positions of up to8tillion . For the remaining balance as of Decenfi$e 2012, the Company is not able to
reliably estimate the timing or ultimate settlemantount. While the Company does not currently elxpeaterial changes, it is possible that
the amount of unrecognized benefit with respetihéouncertain tax positions will significantly imerse or decrease related to audits in various
foreign jurisdictions that may conclude during thatiod or new developments that could also, in,timpact the Company's assessment
relative to the establishment of valuation allonesagainst certain existing deferred tax assetthigitime, the Company is not able to make
a reasonable estimate of the range of impact obdlace of unrecognized tax benefits or the impadhe effective tax rate related to these
items.
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Promotional and Other Accruals

The Company frequently makes promotional offer¢stindependent sales force to encourage them & specific goals or targets for
sales levels, party attendance, recruiting or dblisiness critical activities. The awards offereglia the form of cash, product awards, spe
prizes or trips. The cost of these awards is resmrtlring the period over which the sales forcdifigsfor the award. These accruals require
estimates as to the cost of the awards based hiomages of achievement and actual cost to beieduithe Company makes these estimates
on a market by market and program by program bHsisnsiders the historical success of similamgpams, current market trends and
perceived enthusiasm of the sales force when thgram is launched. During the promotion qualifieatperiod, actual results are monitored
and changes to the original estimates that aressapgare made when known. Like promotional acsrudher accruals are recorded at the
time when the liability is probable and the amagneasonably estimable. Adjustments to amountgiquely accrued are made when char
occur in the facts and circumstances that geneth&dccrual.

Goodwill and I ntangible Assets

The Company’s recorded goodwill relates primardytiiat generated by its acquisition of BeautiCdritr@ctober 2000 and the Sara Lee
direct-to-consumer businesses in December 2005CBhngpany conducts an annual impairment test eéiterded goodwill in each of its
eight reporting units in the second and third ceraof each year related to BeautiControl and thenéo Sara Lee direct-to-consumer units,
respectively. Additionally, in the event of a charig circumstances that leads the Company to déterthat a triggering event for
impairment testing has occurred, a test is comglatehat time.

The annual process for evaluating goodwill begiith an assessment for each entity of qualitatietofs to determine whether the two-
step goodwill impairment test is necessary. Furntésting is only performed if the Company determittet it is more likely than not that the
reporting unit's fair value is less than its cargyvalue. The qualitative factors evaluated byGbenpany include: macro-economic conditions
of the local business environment, overall finahp&formance, sensitivity analysis from the mestent step one fair value test, and other
entity specific factors as deemed appropriate. WherCompany determines the two-step goodwill impant test is necessary, the first step
involves comparing the fair value of a reportingt tim its carrying amount, including goodwill, afteny long-lived asset impairment charges.
If the carrying amount of the reporting unit excedéd fair value, a second step is performed terd@he whether there is a goodwill
impairment, and if so, the amount of the loss. Bitép revalues all assets and liabilities of th®réng unit to their current fair value and then
compares the implied fair value of the reporting'sigoodwill to the carrying amount of that gootwif the carrying amount of the reporting
unit's goodwill exceeds the implied fair value lof tgoodwill, an impairment loss is recognized irmarount equal to the excess. Prior to 2!
the Company's annual assessment began with thetepampairment test.

The Company recorded as assets the fair valuermfugatrademarks and tradenames acquired in cotunwith its purchase of the Sara
Lee direct-to-consumer businesses. Certain tradesane allocated between multiple reporting uiiite Company early adopted Account
Standards Update 2012-02, "Testing Indefinite-Lilrgdngibles for Impairment” ("the ASU") in connixt with the performance of its 2012
annual impairment testing of its tradenames. UtlieASU, entities are provided the option of figetforming a qualitative assessment thi
similar to the assessment performed for goodwilhéWWthe Company determines it is necessary, thetitatave impairment test for the
Company's tradenames involves comparing the eghfatr value of the assets to the carrying amouotdetermine if fair value is lower a
a writedown required. If the carrying amount of a tradeaaxceeds its estimated fair value, an impairmeatge is recognized in an amo
equal to the excess.
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During the second quarter of 2012, the Company ¢etegh its annual impairment test of the BeautiCalrrgporting units, resulting in an
impairment charge of $38.9 million related to ttewdwill in the BeautiControl United States and G#mAusiness. This was a result of the
rates of growth of sales, profit and cash flow arpectations for future performance that were balvCompany's previous projections.
Also in the second quarter, the financial perforoeaaof the Nutrimetics reporting units fell belovethprevious trend line and it became
apparent that they would fall significantly shoffpoevious expectations for the year. Additionatlyguctions in the forecasted operating
trends of NaturCare relating to declines in thesatf growth of sales, profit and cash flows iniapanese market led to interim impairment
testing in both these businesses, as of the eNthpfand June 2012, respectively. The result ofgtiests was to record tradename
impairments of $13.8 million for Nutrimetics and.@9nillion for NaturCare, primarily due to the usidlower estimated royalty rates in light
of lower sales and profit forecasts for these uiaisswell as macroeconomic factors that incredsedliscount rates used in the valuations
versus those used previously. In addition, the Gompvrote off the $7.2 million and $7.7 million cging value of the goodwill of the
Nutrimetics Asia Pacific and Nutrimetics Europeading units, respectively, in light of then curteperating trends and expected fut
results, as well as the macroeconomic factorsitica¢ased the discount rates used in the valuatiorike third quarter of 2012, the Company
completed the annual impairment assessments fof @ik reporting units and tradename intangil#&sept for BeautiControl which was
completed in the second quarter, determining the®no impairment.

In the third quarter of 2011, the Company complé¢bhedannual impairment tests for all of the repaytiinits and tradenames, other than
BeautiControl, which was completed in the secorarigu. During the third quarter of 2011, the finahcesults of Nutrimetics were below
expectations. The Company also made at that timegécision to cease operating its Nutrimeticsriass in Malaysia. As a result, the
Company lowered its forecast of future sales anditpilhe result of the impairment tests was taordca $31.1 million impairment to the
Nutrimetics goodwill in the Asia Pacific reportingit and £$5.0 million impairment to its tradename.

During 2010, the Company completed the annual impeaxit tests for all of the reporting units and é@mes, determining there was no
impairment. The Company subsequently decided itldvoslase operating its Swissgarde unit in SoutAdrina as a separate business. As a
result of this decision, the Company concluded iisahtangible assets and goodwill were impaired eecorded a $2.1 million impairment to
the Swissgarde tradename, a $0.1 million impairmelated to the sales force intangible and a $2lliomimpairment to goodwill relating to
the South African beauty reporting unit. During 20the Company sold its interest in Swissgardes€? million that resulted in a gain of
$0.1 million .
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Fair value of the BeautiControl United States aadi&tia, Nutrimetics and NaturCare reporting units determined by the Company in
the second quarter of 2012 using a combinatioh@fricome and market approaches with generallgatgr weighting on the income
approach ( 75 percent ). When the characterisfitseoreporting unit are more similar to the guidelpublic companies in terms of size,
markets and economy, then a more equal weightinged between the income and market approachesnddme approach, or discounted
cash flow approach, requires significant assumpttordetermine the fair value of each reportind.uriese include estimates regarding
future operations and the ability to generate dmsts, including projections of revenue, costslizdition of assets and capital requirements,
along with an estimate as to the appropriate distrate to be used. The most sensitive estimatgsrvaluation is the projection of operating
cash flows, as these provide the basis for theraiket valuation. The Company’s cash flow modeksusrecasts for periods of about 10
years and a terminal value. The significant assianptfor these forecasts in 2012 included annuadmae growth rates ranging frcnegative
7 percent to positive 10.0 percent with an avegageith rate of positive 3 percent . The growth satere determined by reviewing historical
results of these units and the historical resdlth® Company’s other business units that are amhil those of the reporting units, along with
the expected contribution from growth strategieglemented in the units. Terminal values for allowimg units were calculated using a long-
term growth rate of 3 percent . In estimating thie ¥alue of these reporting units in 2012, the @any applied discount rates to the projected
cash flows ranging from 12.5 to 14.0 percenhe discount rate at the high end of this range fer the Nutrimetics Asia Pacific reporting 1
due to higher country-specific risks. The markegirapch relies on an analysis of publicly-traded pames similar to Tupperware and
deriving a range of revenue and profit multiplese publicly-traded companies used in the marketaggh were selected based on their
having similar product lines of consumer goods ubearoducts and/or companies using direct-to-corewor network marketing distribution
methods. The resulting multiples were then applietthe reporting unit to determine fair value.

The fair value of the Nutrimetics and NaturCarelér@ames were determined in the second quarter tignglief from royalty method,
which is a form of the income approach. In thismoef the value of the asset is calculated by satpobyalty rates, which estimate the
amount a company would be willing to pay for the o§the asset. These rates were applied to thg&ay’s projected revenue, tax affected
and discounted to present value. Royalty rates weed selected by reviewing comparable trademagnging agreements in the market and
the forecasted performance of the business. Asudtyéhe royalty rates were reduced to 1.5 perfremt 3.0 percent for Nutrimetics and 3.75
percent from 4.75 percent for NaturCare. In esiingathe fair value of the tradenames, the Compampjied discount rates of 15.2 and 13.5
percent , respectively, and annual revenue groariging from negative 7 percent to positive 7 perc&rith an average growth rate of
positive 2 percent , and a long-term terminal glovette of 3 percent .

With the tradename impairment recorded in the curyear for Nutrimetics and NaturCare, these asgetsit a higher risk of additional
impairments in future periods if changes in cerssaumptions occur. There is no longer a goodwlktce recorded related to Nutrimetics or
BeautiControl United States and Canada. The estuhfair value of the NaturCare reporting unit extszbthe carrying value by 29 percent as
of June 2012. Given the sensitivity of the valuasito changes in cash flow or market multiples,Gbenpany may be required to recogniz
impairment of goodwill or intangible assets in fbaure due to changes in market conditions or ofhetors related to the Company’s
performance. Actual results below forecasted resulia decrease in the forecasted future resutteea€ompany’s business plans or changes
in discount rates could also result in an impairhodrarge, as could changes in market characteristituding declines in valuation multiples
of comparable publicly-traded companies. Furthgrdirment charges would have an adverse impacte@tmpany’s net income and
shareholders' equity.

Additionally, as of December 29, 2012 the Compaag $5.0 millionincluded on its Consolidated Balance Sheets asahe of acquire
sales forces. The estimated annual amortizatioeresgpassociated with these intangibles for eattedive succeeding years is $1.4 million ,
$1.0 million , $0.7 million , $0.6 million and $0rdillion , respectively. As of December 29, 20E2product formulation asset recorded as
part of the acquisition was fully amortized.
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Retirement Obligations

Pensions

The Company records pension costs and the fundagssif its defined benefit pension plans usingaghyiglicable accounting guidance
defined benefit pension and other postretiremeanil This guidance requires that amounts recogiizée financial statements be
determined on an actuarial basis. The measurermém oetirement obligations and costs of providiemefits under the Company’s pension
plans involves various factors, including sevesslianptions. The Company believes the most crititiiese assumptions are the discount
rate and the expected long-term rate of returnlan assets.

The Company determines the discount rate primbyilyeference to rates of high-quality, long-termpawate and government bonds that
mature in a pattern similar to the expected paymenbe made under the plans. The discount ratergi®ns used to determine pension
expense for the Company’s U.S. and foreign plarsasdollows:

Discount Rate 2012 2011 2010
U.S. Plans 3.7% 4.7% 5.1%
Foreign Plans 3.2 3.¢ 4.3

The Company has established strategic asset atloqagrcentage targets for significant asset ctagstl the aim of achieving an
appropriate balance between risk and return. Thepgany periodically revises asset allocations, whaggropriate, in an effort to improve
return and manage risk. The estimated rate ofiésupased on long-term expectations given cuirestment objectives and historical
results. The expected rate of return assumptioad bg the Company for its U.S. and foreign plangevess follows:

Expected rate of return 2012 2011 2010
U.S. Plans 8.2% 8.2% 8.2%
Foreign Plans 4.1 4.1 4.4

The following table highlights the potential impact the Company’s pension expense due to changestain key assumptions with
respect to the Company’s pension plans, basedsatsaznd liabilities at December 29, 2012 :

50 basis points

(In millions) Increase Decrease
Discount rate change by 50 basis points $ 15 % 0.¢
Expected rate of return on plan assets change &8 points 0.€ 0.€

Other Post Retirement Benefits

The Company accounts for its post-retirement bép&fh in accordance with applicable accountinglgace, which requires that
amounts recognized in financial statements be e on an actuarial basis. This determinatiomireg the selection of various
assumptions, including a discount rate and healté cost trend rates used to value benefit obtigatiThe Company determines the discount
rate primarily by reference to rates of return arhkguality, long term corporate bonds that maiara pattern similar to the expected
payments to be made under the plan. The discotmaissumptions used by the Company to determirez ptst retirement benefit expense
were 4.0 percent , 5.0 percent , and 5.3 percenh&?2012 , 2011 and 2010 fiscal years, respdgtidechange in discount rate of 50 basis
points would not be material.
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The following are the assumed health-care costitrates used by the Company:

Health-care trend rates 2012 2011 2010
Initial health-care cost trend 7.2% 7.2% 7.2%
Ultimate health-care cost trend 5.C 5.C 5.C
Year Ultimate trend rate achieved 2019  201¢ 2017

The healthcare cost trend rate assumption may &aignificant effect on the amounts reported. A paeentage point change in the
assumed healthcare cost trend rates would havieltbeing effects:

One percentage point

(In millions) Increase Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost congris $ 01 $ 0.1
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation 1.¢ 1.7

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when the price is fixedrities and rewards of ownership have passed tousteimer who, in most cases, is one
of the Company’s independent distributors or a memal its independent sales force, and when cadleés reasonably assured. When
revenue is recorded, estimates of returns are mwadleecorded as a reduction of revenue. Discoamnted based on promotional programs in
place, volume of purchases or other factors aedtmated at the time of revenue recognitionracdrded as a reduction of that revenue.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures compensation cost for stasadmvards at fair value and recognizes compensatier the service period for
awards expected to vest. The Company uses the Blelskles option-pricing model to value stock opgiomhich requires the input of
assumptions, including dividend yield, risk-fregeirest rate, the estimated length of time employeksetain their vested stock options
before exercising them (expected term) and thenestid volatility of the Company's common stock @iiwer the expected term. Furtherm
in calculating compensation expense for these asydné Company is also required to estimate thenéxo which options will be forfeited
prior to vesting (forfeitures). Many factors aresmlered when estimating expected forfeituresuificlg types of awards, employee class and
historical experience. To the extent actual resartspdated estimates differ from current estimaash amounts are recorded as a cumul
adjustment to the previously recorded amounts.

Impact of Inflation

Inflation, as measured by consumer price indicas,dontinued at a low level in most of the coustifewhich the Company operates,
except for Argentina and Venezuela.

New Pronouncements

Refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial $tatets for a discussion of new accounting pronoucesn

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

One of the Company's market risks is its exposuthe impact of interest rate changes on its bamgsv The Company's borrowings
under the Credit Agreement carry a variable intenate. The Company has elected to manage thishiekigh the maturity structure of its
borrowings and the currencies in which it borrows.
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Loans taken under the Credit Agreement bear intereter a formula that includes, at the Companyt®n, one of three different base
rates, plus an applicable spread. The Company aiénselects the London interbank offered rate BOR"). As of December 29, 2012 , the
Credit Agreement dictated a spread of 150 basistpoivhich gave the Company an interest rate & gdicent on borrowings under the
Credit Agreement. Going forward, in light of ther@pany's share repurchase program, the Companggititeg an increase in its debt-to-
EBITDA ratio from 1.5 times consolidated fundedebtedness to 1.75 times consolidated funded indebss (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) as of the end of each quarter. At thisllof leverage, the spread would increase bya3tstpoints.

Of the Company's short-term borrowings as of Deeam2h, 2012 , $162.0 million was denominated iroeaurrd $37.0 million in U.S.
dollars. If short-term interest rates varied bypEdcent, with all other variables remaining constdre Company's annual interest expense
would not be significantly impacted.

The Company routinely increases its revolver bomge under the Credit Agreement during each quéstérnd operating, investing and
financing activities and uses cash available aetiteof each quarter to reduce borrowing levelsa Assult, the Company has higher foreign
exchange exposure on the value of its cash dugnl quarter than at the end of each quarter.

A significant portion of the Company's sales anofipcome from its international operations. Altlgbuthese operations are
geographically dispersed, which partially mitigattes risks associated with operating in particatauntries, the Company is subject to the
usual risks associated with international operatidmese risks include local political and econoerigcironments and relations between
foreign and U.S. governments.

Another economic risk of the Company is exposurehianges in foreign currency exchange rates orahaings, cash flows and finant
position of its international operations. The Comp& not able to project, in any meaningful wédne possible effect of these fluctuations on
translated amounts or future earnings. This istdukee Company's constantly changing exposureriowscurrencies, the fact that all foreign
currencies do not react in the same manner inal#& the U.S. dollar and the large number of encies involved, although the Company's
most significant exposures are to the euro, Indarrepiah and Mexican peso, as well as the Braziigal and Malaysian ringgit.

Although this currency risk is partially mitigateg the natural hedge arising from the Company‘allpooduct sourcing in many marke
a strengthening U.S. dollar generally has a negatipact on the Company. In response to this faetCompany uses financial instruments,
such as forward contracts, to hedge its exposucertain foreign exchange risks associated witbréign of its investment in international
operations. In addition to hedging against therxasheet impact of changes in exchange ratebetige of investments in international
operations also has the effect of hedging a podfarash flows from those operations. The Compdsy laedges, with these instruments,
certain other exposures to various currenciesmgrisom amounts payable and receivable, non-perntantercompany loans and forecasted
purchases. The Company generally does not seaddipetthe impact of currency fluctuations on thadiaed value of the sales, profit or ¢
flow generated by its operations.

While the Company's hedges of its equity in it®fgn subsidiaries and its fair value hedges ofrizasheet risks all work together to
mitigate its exposure to foreign exchange gainesses, they result in an impact to operating €asts as they are settled. The cash flow
impact of these currency hedges was an inflow of $#llion and $6.1 million in 2012 and 2011, resfpeely, and an outflow of $5.9 million
in 2010.

The U.S. dollar equivalent of the Company's magtificant net open foreign currency hedge positiasief December 29, 2012 were to
buy U.S. dollar $69.9 million; euro $66.6 millioktalaysian ringgit $17.2 million and Indonesian rlpi$11.3 million, and to sell Swiss franc
$53.8 million; Japanese yen $32.8 million; Mexigeaso $22.0 million; Australian dollar $15.5 milliand Turkish lira $12.3 million. In
agreements to sell foreign currencies in exchaog®fS. dollars, for example, an appreciating dollersus the opposing currency would
generate a cash inflow for the Company at settl¢meéth the opposite result in agreements to bugifm currencies for U.S. dollars. The
above noted notional amounts change based upogetamthe Company's outstanding currency exposBesed on rates existing as of
December 29, 2012 , the Company was in a net payzdsition of approximately $2.7 million relatedit®ocurrency hedges, which, upon
settlement, could have a significant impact onGbenpany's cash flow. The Company records the imgiaforward points in net interest
expense.
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A precise calculation of the impact of currencycfluations is not practical since some of the catsrare between non-U.S. dollar
currencies. The Company continuously monitorsdtsifyn currency exposure and may enter into additioontracts to hedge exposure in the
future. See further discussion regarding the Coryipdredging activities for foreign currency in N@8t¢o the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The Company is subject to credit risks relatingh® ability of counterparties of hedging transawtito meet their contractual payment
obligations. The risks related to creditworthinaeg nonperformance have been considered in thendesgion of fair value for the
Company's foreign currency forward exchange cotdrate Company continues to closely monitor itsnterparties and will take action, as
appropriate and possible, to further manage itseitawparty credit risk.

The Company is also exposed to rising materiakgrio its manufacturing operations and, in paréicithe cost of oil and natural gas-
based resins. This is the primary material usg@aduction of most Tupperwafgroducts, and the Company estimates that 20%8of sale
will include about $160 million for the cost of iesn the Tupperwar€brand products it produces. The Company uses miffieyetht kinds o
resins in its products. About three-fourths ofrésins are “polyolefins” (simple chemical structueasily refined from oil), and as such, the
price of these is strongly affected by the undedyprice of oil and natural gas. The remaining tmeth of its resins is more highly
engineered, where the price of oil and naturalpgdags a less direct role in determining price. Witbomparable product mix and exchange
rates, a 10 percent fluctuation in the cost ofr@siuld impact the Company's annual cost of safeablout $16 million compared with the
prior year. For 2012 , the Company estimates it$ absales of the Tupperwdtgroducts it produced was positively impacted byualsi
million in local currency due to resin cost changescompared with 2011 . For the full year of 2018 impact of resin cost changes, on a
local currency basis, on the Company's cost obsafithe TupperwarBproducts it produces is expected to be positiveniiilon, as
compared with 2012 . The Company partially manatgassk associated with rising resin costs byizitilg a centralized procurement function
that is able to take advantage of bulk discountdewhaintaining multiple suppliers and also eniats short-term pricing arrangements. It
also manages its margin through the pricing gbitelucts, with price increases generally in linehveionsumer inflation in each market, and
its mix of sales through its promotional programd discount offers. It may also, on occasion, madkeance material purchases to take
advantage of current favorable pricing. At thisrpan time, the Company has determined that ergerito forward contracts for resin is not
practical or cost beneficial and has no such cotgria place. However, should circumstances warthetCompany may consider such
contracts in the future.

The Company has a program to sell land held foeligyment around its Orlando, Florida headquariéns program is exposed to the
risks inherent in the real estate development gdacluded among these risks is the ability taioball government approvals, the success
of buyers in attracting tenants for commercialesidential developments in the Orlando real esteateket or obtaining financing and general
economic conditions, such as interest rate inceed3ee Company's land sale program has been nelyaitivpacted by the drivers and
ramifications of the credit crisis and real estagrket conditions in the United States, which h@&layed the completion of this program.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain written and oral statements made or inaaed by reference from time to time by the Compamnigs representatives in this
report, other reports, filings with the Securitgesl Exchange Commission, press releases, confarencgherwise are “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of the Private SéesrLitigation Reform Act of 1995. Statementshiis report or elsewhere that are not
based on historical facts or information are forvkmoking statements. Such forward-looking stateimé@nolve risks and uncertainties which
may cause actual results to differ materially fritnose projected in forward-looking statements. Sigkts and uncertainties include, among
others, the following:

. successful recruitment, retention and productiMgtyels of the Company's independent sales fc

. disruptions caused by the introduction of nestrddutor operating models or sales force compé@msalystems or allegations by
equity analysts or others as to the legality obiity of the Company's business model;

. success of new products and promotional progi
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. the ability to implement appropriate product mixignicing strategie

. governmental regulation of materials used irdpris coming into contact with food (e.g. polycaraéie), as well as beauty,
personal care and nutritional products;

. the impact of changes in consumer spendingnpat@nd preferences, particularly given the glolaalire of the Company's
business;

. the value of longerm assets, particularly goodwill and indefiniteet intangibles associated with acquisitions, toedrealizability
of the value of recognized tax assets;

. changes in plastic resin prices, other raw matedatl packaging components, the cost of convestiaf items into finished goo
and procured finished products and the cost of’detig products to customers;

. the introduction of Company operations in new megkeitside the United Stat

. general social, economic and political conditiamsniarkets

. issues arising out of the sovereign debt cimsEurope, resulting in potential economic and afienal challenges for the

Company's European supply chain, heightened cquartgrcredit risk due to adverse effects on custeraad suppliers, exchange
controls and translation risks due to potentialaimpents of investments in affected markets angtiential for banks with whic
the Company maintains lines of credit to be unabhelfill their commitments;

. disruptions resulting from either internal or ert@rlabor strikes, work stoppages, or similar diffties

. changes in cash flow resulting from changespierating results, working capital management, galgtments, share repurchases
and hedge settlements;

. the impact of currency fluctuations on the vadfiéoreign operations generally, and particulanly¥enezuela, including their cash
balances, the results of those operations, theoé@sturcing products across geographies and ttezss of foreign hedging and
risk management strategies;

. the impact of natural disasters and epidemic odearc disease outbrea

. the ability to repatriate, or otherwise makeikalde, cash in the United States and to do sofav@rable foreign exchange rate and
with favorable tax ramifications;

. the ability to obtain all government approvats and to control the cost of infrastructure oliigras associated with, land
development;

. the ability to timely and effectively implememtansition, maintain and protect necessary inftionaechnology systems and
infrastructure;

. the ability to attract and retain certain executificers and key management persor

. the success of land buyers in attracting tenamtsdmmercial and residential development and obitgifinancing

. the costs and covenant restrictions associatedthgtiCompany's credit arrangeme

. integration of nortraditional product lines into Company operatis

. the effect of legal, regulatory and tax procegdi as well as restrictions imposed on the Compgeyations or Company

representatives by foreign governments, includixgpsure to tax responsibilities imposed on thessilce and their potential
impact on the sales force's value chain and reguttisruption to the business;

. the effect of competitive forces in the markietsvhich the Company operates, particularly reldatedgales of beauty, personal care
and nutritional products, where there are a greatetber of competitors;

. the impact of changes in U.S. federal, state arelgo tax or other law

. the Company's access to, and the costs of, fingnam
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. other risks discussed in Item 1A, Risk Factassyell as the Company’s Consolidated Financigk8tants, notes, other financial
information contained in this report and the Compmuother filings with the United States Securiteesl Exchange Commission.

The Company does not intend to update forward-tapkiformation other than in its quarterly earnimgleases unless it expects diluted
earnings per share for the current quarter, exatudems impacting comparability and the impactlwdinges in foreign exchange rates, to be
significantly below its previous guidance.

Investors should also be aware that while the Complaes, from time to time, communicate with se@sianalysts, it is against the
Company's policy to disclose to them any matemaijpublic information or other confidential commerdiaflormation. Accordingly, it shou
not be assumed that the Company agrees with atgyretat or report issued by any analyst irrespecfthe content of the confirming
financial forecasts or projections issued by others

41




Table of Contents

Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

Tupperware Brands Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Income

(In millions, except per share amounts)
Net sales
Cost of products sold
Gross margin
Delivery, sales and administrative expense
Re-engineering and impairment charges
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Gains on disposal of assets
Operating income
Interest income
Interest expense
Other expense
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Basic earnings per common share

Diluted earnings per common share

Year Ended
December 29, December 31, December 25,
2012 2011 2010
$ 2583¢ $ 2585( $ 2,300.
856.¢ 862.5 766.2
1,727 .. 1,722.% 1,534..
1,329.! 1,340.( 1,193.:
22.4 7.8 7.€
76.€ 36.1 4.z
7.S 3.8 0.2
306.¢ 342.: 329.¢
2.5 3.2 2.5
34.€ 49.C 29.:
1.8 1.2 2.6
272.¢ 295.¢ 299.7
79.€ 77.C 74.1
$ 193.C $ 218.: $ 225.¢
$ 3.4¢ $ 3.6: $ 3.6(
$ 34z $ 358 % 3.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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TUPPERWARE BRANDS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

December 29, December 31, December 25,

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Net income $ 193.C $ 218 $ 225.¢
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments 32.2 (54.2) 18.7
Deferred (loss) gain on cash flow hedges, netxoptavision of $0.1,
$8.7 and $1.0, respectively (0.5) 14.5 2.€
Pension and other post-retirement costs, net dieaefit of $2.9,
$2.9 and $1.7, respectively (7.5 9.3 (4.5
Other comprehensive income (loss) 24.2 (49.0 16.¢
Total comprehensive income $ 217: § 1691 § @ 242«

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.

43




Table of Contents

Tupperware Brands Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 29, December 31,

(In millions, except share amounts) 2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 119.¢  $ 138.2
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $30.4 &&d8$ respectively 173.2 163.]
Inventories 313.¢ 302.t
Deferred income tax benefits, net 94.¢ 94.2
Non-trade amounts receivable, net 39.C 47.5
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 25¢ 23
Total current assets 766.5 769.¢
Deferred income tax benefits, net 359.] 317.€
Property, plant and equipment, net 298.¢ 273.1
Long-term receivables, less allowances of $22.4%2%13, respectively 24.¢ 232
Trademarks and tradenames 138.¢ 157.1
Other intangible assets, net 5.C 7.2
Goodwill 192.¢ 241.¢
Other assets, net 36.8 33.¢
Total assets $ 1,821.¢ $ 1,822t
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Accounts payable $ 154.¢  $ 157.2
Short-term borrowings and current portion of loegat debt and capital lease
obligations 203.¢ 195.%
Accrued liabilities 336.< 320.t
Total current liabilities 694.5 673.
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 414.¢ 415.2
Other liabilities 233.¢ 233.2

Shareholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000,000 sharthorized; none issued — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 600,000,000 shaitkodzed; 63,607,090

shares issued 0.€ 0.€
Paid-in capital 151.2 126.¢
Retained earnings 1,172.¢ 1,091.°
Treasury stock, 9,547,436 and 7,099,345 shargsectgely, at cost (573.9 (422.9
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (271.9) (295.5)
Total shareholders' equity 479.1 500.¢
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 1821¢ $ 1,822

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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Tupperware Brands Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

Accumulated

Common Stock Treasury Stock Other Total

Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Shareholders'
(In millions, except per share amounts) Shares  Dollars Shares  Dollars Capital Earnings Loss Equity
December 26, 2009 636 $ 06 06 $ (26.) $911 $ 836.1 $ (263.9) $ 637.1
Net income 225.¢ 225.¢
Other comprehensive income 16.€ 16.€
Cash dividends declared ($1.05 per share) (66.€) (66.€)
Repurchase of common stock 1.3 (60.%) (60.9)
Income tax benefit from stock and option awards 7.3 7.3
Stock and options issued for incentive plans (1.0 45.¢ 9.€ (25.9 29.:
December 25, 2010 63.6 $ 0.6 09 $ (41.F) $108.C $ 969.. % (246.5) $ 789.¢
Net income 218.: 218.:
Other comprehensive loss (49.0 (49.0
Cash dividends declared ($1.20 per share) (72.5) (72.5)
Repurchase of common stock 7.1 (426.) (426.7)
Income tax benefit from stock and option awar: 9.3 9.3
Stock and options issued for incentive plans (0.9 44.¢ 9.t (23.9 31.C
December 31, 2011 63.6 $ 06 7.1 $(422.¢) $126.6 $1,091.° $ (295.5) $ 500.¢
Net income 193.( 193.(
Other comprehensive income 24.2 24.2
Cash dividends declared ($1.44 per share) (80.9 (80.9
Repurchase of common stock 3.3  (200.0 (200.0)
Income tax benefit from stock and option awards 13.7 13.7
Stock and options issued for incentive plans 0.8 49.C 10.7 (31.9 27.¢
December 29, 2012 63.6 $ 0.6 9.6 $(573.) $151.2 $1,172.: $ (2717 % 479.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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Tupperware Brands Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended
December 29, December 31, December 25,
(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Operating Activities:
Net income $ 193.C $ 2185 $ 225.¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 49.€ 49.¢ 49.7
Equity compensation 20.1 18.C 14.¢
Unrealized foreign exchange losses — — 2.2
Amortization and write-off of deferred debt costs aL{e 1.4 0.7
Interest rate swap impairment — 18.¢ —
Net gains on disposal of assets, including insweaacoveries (7.9 (3.0) (0.2
Provision for bad debts 10.€ 11.5 11.1
Write-down of inventories 13.€ 11.2 18.7
Non-cash impact of impairment costs and re-enginger 93.c 36.5 4.4
Net change in deferred income taxes (30.9 (8.8 8.7
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment amaets (13.5) (9.0 (7.0
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts and notes receivable (21.0 2.7 (18.0
Inventories (23.9) (49.5) (28.9
Non-trade amounts receivable 1.1 4.2 (2.3
Prepaid expenses (0.8 (1.8 2.8
Other assets (6.9 (2.0 (3.2
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10.€ (12.7) 37.2
Income taxes payable 3.8 (8.9 (15.9
Other liabilities 2.7 11 3.7
Proceeds from insurance recoveries, net of costs 0.2 3.C —
Net cash impact from hedging activity 2.1 6.1 (5.9
Other (0.3 (0.3 0.4
Net cash provided by operating activities 298.1 274. 299.t
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (75.€) (73.9 (56.1)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egaigt 10.¢ 5.C 10.C
Net cash used in investing activities (64.¢) (68.9) (46.1)
Financing Activities:
Dividend payments to shareholders (77.€) (73.9) (63.2)
Net proceeds from issuance of Senior N&ies — 393.: —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 12.€ 16.1 16.€
Repurchase of common stock (205.0 (428.¢) (62.5)
Repayment of long-term debt and capital lease atitigs 2.3 (407.9 (2.2
Net change in short-term debt 6.C 193.t 0.2
Debt issuance costs — (3.0 —
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment amaergts 13.5 9.C 7.C
Net cash used in financing activities (252.5 (300.9 (203.9
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaémnts 0.2 (15.9 (3.2
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (18.9) (110.5 136.:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 138.2 248.7 112.¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 119.6 138.2 $ 248.1




®n addition to a debt discount, $400 million of peeds from issuance of Senior Notes was reduc& lsymillion for non-cash debt
issuance costs.
The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policie

Principles of Consolidation. The Consolidated Financial Statements include tieeunts of Tupperware Brands Corporation and atisof
subsidiaries (Tupperware Brands or the Company)sighificant intercompany accounts and transastioave been eliminated. The
Company’s fiscal year ends on the last Saturddyeafember and, as a result, included 52 weeks d@fidg and 2010 and 53 weeks in 2011 .

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally accepteth@ United States
of America requires management to make estima&ssumptions. These estimates and assumptiois dfereported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent lidlgk at the date of the financial statements, @l a6 the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual restduld differ materially from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith a maturity of three months or less when paseu
to be cash equivalents. As of December 29, 201Dswember 31, 2011 , $20.8 million and $28.6 milljgespectively, of the cash and cash
equivalents included on the Consolidated Balaneaethwere held in the form of time deposits, dedifs of deposit or similar instruments.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The Company maintains current receivable amourtts most of its independent distributors and sales
force in certain markets. It also maintains longreeceivable amounts with certain of these custsnithe Company regularly monitors and
assesses its risk of not collecting amounts owetdy customers. This evaluation is based upoareatysis of amounts current and past due,
along with relevant history and facts particulattie customer. It is also based upon estimatessilditor business prospects, particularly
related to the evaluation of the recoverabilityarfg-term amounts due. This evaluation is performegket by market and account by
account, based upon historical experience, maskattpation levels and similar factors. It also ¢dexs collateral of the customer that could
be recovered to satisfy debts. The Company redgtzrddowance for uncollectible accounts basedhenresults of this analysis. The analysis
requires the Company to make significant estimatesas such, changes in facts and circumstancés result in material changes in the
allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company carsi@ny receivable balance not collected withiatstractual terms past due.

Inventories . Inventories are valued at the lower of cost orkaion a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory castludes cost of raw material,
labor and overhead. The Company writes down iteninry for obsolescence or unmarketability in amam equal to the difference between
the cost of the inventory and estimated marketevalsed upon expected future demand and pricirgd&mand and pricing is estimated
based upon the historical success of product hsesell as the projected success of promotionarams, new product introductions and r
markets or distribution channels. The Company peepprojections of demand and pricing on an iteritdmy basis for all of its products. If
inventory on hand exceeds projected demand ondbected market value is less than the carryingeyahe excess is written down to its net
realizable value. However, if actual demand orabgmate of market decreases, additional write-dowould be required.

Internal Use Software Development Costs. The Company capitalizes internal use software adgwveént costs as they are incurred and
amortizes such costs over their estimated usefes Iof three to five years, beginning when thevearfé is placed in service. Net unamortized
costs of such amounts included in property, pladtequipment were $15.3 million and $8.5 milliorDetcember 29, 2012 and December 31,
2011 , respectively. Amortization cost relatedriteinal use software development costs totaled ®8lion , $3.1 million and $3.3 million in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment is initially statéd@st. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-iasis
over the following estimated useful lives of theets:

Years
Building and improvements 10 -40
Molds 4-10
Production equipment 10 -20
Distribution equipment 5-10
Computer/telecom equipment 3-5
Capitalized software 3-5

Depreciation expense was $44.1 million , $43.8iariland $42.5 million in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 pessively. The Company considers
the need for an impairment review when events ottmtrindicate that the book value of a long-liees$et may exceed its recoverable value.
Impairments of property, plant and equipment asewlised further in Note 2 to the Consolidated FizduStatements. Upon the sale or
retirement of property, plant and equipment, a gailoss is recognized equal to the difference betwsales price and net book value.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are cdameost of products sold or delivery, sales ahdliaistrative (DS&A) expense,
depending on the asset to which the expendituate|

Goodwill. The Company's recorded goodwill relates primandlyhiat generated by its acquisition of the Saradieect-to-consumer
businesses in December 2005 and BeautiControl folf@c 2000. The Company conducts an annual impatrassessment of its recorded
goodwill in each of its eight reporting units dugithe third quarter of each year, except for gotidvssociated with BeautiControl, which is
completed in the second quarter. Additionally,hia event of a change in circumstances that lead€dmpany to determine that a triggering
event for impairment testing has occurred, a tesbimpleted at that time. The annual process fa@uating goodwill begins with an
assessment for each entity of qualitative factoidetermine whether the tvgtep goodwill impairment test is necessary. Furtesting is onl
performed if the Company determines that it is nikely than not that the reporting unit's fair walis less than its carrying value. The
qualitative factors evaluated by the Company ineludacro-economic conditions of the local busiressronment, overall financial
performance, sensitivity analysis from the mosentstep one fair value test, and other entityifipdactors as deemed appropriate. When
the Company determines the two-step goodwill impaint test is necessary, the first step involvesparing the fair value of a reporting unit
to its carrying amount, including goodwill, aftaryalong-lived asset impairment charges. If theyiag amount of the reporting unit exceeds
its fair value, a second step is performed to detex whether there is a goodwill impairment, ansioif the amount of the loss. This step
revalues all assets and liabilities of the repgrtinit to their current fair value and then compahe implied fair value of the reporting unit's
goodwill to the carrying amount of that goodwifitthe carrying amount of the reporting unit's godbexceeds the implied fair value of the
goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in aroant equal to the excess. Prior to 2012, the Cogipamnual assessment began with the
two-step impairment test.

When a determination of fair value of the Compamgfsorting units is necessatry, it is determinediging either the income approach
combination of the income and market approachah, avgreater weighting on the income approachgefbent ). The income approach, or
discounted cash flow approach, requires signifieasumptions to determine the fair value of eapbnteng unit. These include estimates
regarding future operations and the ability to gateecash flows including projections of revenugsts, utilization of assets and capital
requirements, along with an estimate as to theggpiate discount rates to be used. Goodwill istrridiscussed in Note 6 to the Consolid;
Financial Statements.
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Intangible Assets . Intangible assets are recorded at their fair etarilues at the date of acquisition and defived intangibles are
amortized over their estimated useful livd$e intangible assets included in the Company's@atated Financial Statements at
December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011 were ddtatbe acquisition of the Sara Lee direct-to-comsr businesses in December 2005.
The weighted average estimated useful lives oCtimpany's intangible assets were as follows:

Weighted Average
Estimated Useful Life

Trademarks and tradenames Indefinite
Sales force relationships - single level 6 - 8 years
Sales force relationships - tiered 10 -12 year:
Acquired proprietary product formulations 3 years

The Company's indefinite lived intangible assetsearaluated for impairment annually similarly tadwill. When necessary, the fair
value of these assets is determined using thd fedim royalty method, which is a form of the incerapproach. In this method, the value of
the asset is calculated by selecting royalty ratbéch estimate the amount a company would benglto pay for the use of the asset. These
rates are applied to the Company's projected reyaay affected and discounted to present valugyusi appropriate rate.

The Company's definite lived intangible assets b the value of the acquired independent sfalee and product formulations. The
Company amortizes project formulas over a strdigbtbasis and as of December 29, 2012 , the anfoamtthe acquisition of the Sara Lee
direct-toconsumer units had been fully amortized. The dale® relationships are amortized to reflect theévested turnover rates of the se
force acquired and included in Delivery, Sales Adchinistration expense (DS&A) on the Consolidateéat&nents of Income.

Intangible assets are further discussed in Notetbe Consolidated Financial Statements.

Promotional and Other Accruals. The Company frequently makes promotional offersiembers of its independent sales force to
encourage them to fulfill specific goals or targetssales levels, party attendance, recruitingest sales force members or other business-
critical functions. The awards offered are in thef of cash, product, special prizes or trips.

A program is generally designed to recognize dale® members for achieving a primary objective.edample is to reward the
independent sales force for recruiting new salesefamembers. In this situation, the Company oféepsize to sales force members that
achieve a targeted number of recruits over a spdqiferiod. The period runs from a couple of wetekseveral months. The prizes are
generally graded, in that meeting one level mayltés receiving a piece of jewelry, with higher@é@vement resulting in more valuable
prizes such as a television set or a trip. Singitagrams are designed to reward current sales foesebers who reach certain goals by
promoting them to a higher level in the organizatichere their earning opportunity would be expanded they would take on additional
responsibilities for recruiting new sales force nens and providing training and motivation to newd &xisting sales force members. Other
business drivers, such as scheduling parties,asarg the number of sales force members, holdingegaor increasing end consumer
attendance at parties, may also be the focus afgram.

The Company also offers cash awards for achiewdrggted sales levels. These types of awards asragrbased upon the sales
achievement of at least a mid-level member of #iessforce and her or his down-line members. Thendline consists of those sales force
members that have been recruited directly by angbades force member, as well as those recruitdtebyr his recruits. In this manner, sales
force members can build an extensive organizati@n tme if they are committed to recruiting andreleping their units. In addition to the
bonus, the positive performance of a unit may alsitle its leader to the use of a company-providgicle and in some cases, the permanent
awarding of a vehicle. Similar to the prize progsamoted earlier, these programs generally offeyimgrlevels of vehicles that are dependent
upon performance.
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The Company accrues for the costs of these awaritsgdthe period over which the sales force quesifior the award and reports these
costs primarily as a component of DS&A expense s€haecruals require estimates as to the cost @theds, based upon estimates of
achievement and actual cost to be incurred. Dulirgyjualification period, actual results are mamitband changes to the original estimates
are made when known. Promotional and other sates fmmpensation expenses included in DS&A exptriaked $425.3 million , $436.4
million and $381.0 million in 2012 , 2011 and 20X@spectively.

Like promotional accruals, other accruals are @edrat the time when a liability is probable anel dmount is reasonably estimable.
Adjustments to amounts previously accrued are mdd changes occur in the facts and circumstaheg¢géenerated the accrual.

Revenue Recognition . Revenue is recognized when the price is fixeel rigks and rewards of ownership have passed toutstemer whe
in most cases, is one of the Company’s indeperdistitbutors or a member of its independent sadesef and when collection is reasonably
assured. When revenue is recorded, estimatesushsstire made and recorded as a reduction of rev@iscounts earned based on
promotional programs in place, volume of purchasesther factors are also estimated at the tinte#nue recognition and recorded as a
reduction of that revenue.

Shipping and Handling Costs . The cost of products sold line item includes sostated to the purchase and manufacture of geadsy
the Company. Among these costs are inbound freigdtges, purchasing and receiving costs, inspectiets, depreciation expense, internal
transfer costs and warehousing costs of raw méterak in process and packing materials. The wawsing and distribution costs of finist
goods are included in DS&A expense. Distributiosts@re comprised of outbound freight and assatiateor costs. Fees billed to custorr
associated with the distribution of products aessified as revenue. The distribution costs indudeDS&A expense in 2012 , 2011 and
2010 were $148.8 million , $151.7 million and $Bfillion , respectively.

Advertising and Research and Development Costs. Advertising and research and development coststagged to expense as incurred.
Advertising expense totaled $31.5 million , $34.ilion and $25.1 million in 2012, 2011 and 201@spectively. Research and development
costs totaled $18.9 million , $19.5 million and . illion , in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectiv@lgsearch and development expenses
primarily include salaries, contractor costs ardllify costs. Both advertising and research ancetigyment costs are included in DS&A
expense.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation . The Company has several stock-based employediggaior compensation plans, which are
described more fully in Note 14 to the Consolidat@thncial Statements. The Company records compiensaxpense using the applicable
accounting guidance for share-based payments daiatgtock options, restricted stock, restrictettlsuunits and performance share awards
granted to directors and employees.

Compensation cost for share-based awards is regtorta straight line basis over the required serpiriod. The fair value of the stock
option grants is estimated using the Black-Schopg®n-pricing model, which requires the input esamptions, including dividend yield,
risk-free interest rate, the estimated lengthroktemployees will retain their vested stock optibefore exercising them (expected term) and
the estimated volatility of the Company's commatktprice over the expected term. Furthermorealoutating compensation expense for
these awards, the Company is also required to agithe extent to which options will be forfeitaibp to vesting. Many factors are
considered when estimating expected forfeitureduding types of awards, employee class and hestbeixperience. To the extent actual
results or updated estimates of forfeiture diffenf current estimates, such amounts are recordadtasulative adjustment to the previously
recorded amounts. Compensation expense associdterkstricted stock, restricted stock units andgrenance share awards is equal to the
market value of the Company's common stock on #te df grant and is recorded pro rata over theiredservice period. For those awards
with performance criteria, the expense is recotzEskd on an assessment of achieving the criteria.

Current guidance governing share based paymenifres the benefits associated with tax deductiomscess of recognized
compensation cost, generated upon the exercideaK aptions, to be reported as a financing cash.fFor 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , the
Company generated $13.5 million , $9.0 million &7d0 million of excess cash benefits from optioereises, respectively.
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Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. Asset retirement obligations refer to a comparggsl obligation to perform an asset
retirement activity in which the timing and (or) thed of settlement are conditional on a future éteat may or may not be within the
control of the entity. The obligation to perfornetasset retirement activity is unconditional eveugh uncertainty exists about the timing
and (or) method of settlement. Thus, the timing @mimethod of settlement may be conditional datare event. Accordingly, a company is
required to recognize a liability for the fair valof a conditional asset retirement obligatiomhé fair value of the liability can be reasonably
estimated. The fair value of a liability for thenttitional asset retirement obligation should beogmized when incurred-generally upon
acquisition, construction, or development and {orpugh the normal operation of the asset. Unagstaibout the timing and (or) method of
settlement of a conditional asset retirement ohitigashould be factored into the measurement ofisiiadlity when sufficient information
exists. The Company has recognized a liabilitytfier fair market value of conditional future obliigais associated with environmental issues
in the United States that the Company will be regflito remedy at some future date, when thesesaasetetired. The Company performs an
annual evaluation of its obligations regarding thistter and is required to record depreciationa@als associated with accretion of the
obligation. This was not material in 2012 , 2018 2010 , and is not expected to be material ifuhee.

Income Taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognizethe future tax consequences attributable tgteary differences
between the financial statement carrying amountsseéts and liabilities and their respective tasebaDeferred tax assets also are recognizec
for credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets dmuilities are measured using the enacted ratelicapfe to taxable income in the years in
which the temporary differences are expected terss/and the credits are expected to be used.flelwe @n deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in incontaeérnperiod that includes the enactment date. Aasssnent is made as to whether or not a
valuation allowance is required to offset defert@dassets. This assessment requires estimate$wdsare operating results as well as an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the CompanyXptanning strategies. These estimates are mada ongoing basis based upon the
Company's business plans and growth strategiescim market and consequently, future material chaiirghe valuation allowance are
possible.

The Company accounts for uncertain tax positiorectordance with ASC 740, Income taxes. This guidgmescribes a minimum
probability threshold that a tax position must meefore a financial statement benefit is recogniZdés minimum threshold is defined as a
tax position that is more likely than not to betaireed upon examination by the applicable taxintpauity, including resolution of any related
appeals or litigation processes, based on the ieshmerits of the position. The tax benefit torbeognized is measured as the largest amoun
of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likdlpeing realized upon ultimate settlement.

Interest and penalties related to tax contingemgetilement items are recorded as a componehgegirbvision for income taxes in the
Company's Consolidated Statements of Income. Timep@ay records accruals for tax contingencies asrgponent of accrued liabilities or
other long-term liabilities on its balance sheet.

Net Income Per Common Share . Basic per share information is calculated bydling net income by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding. Diluted per share informasazalculated by also considering the impact of pitsecommon stock on both net income
and the weighted average number of shares outstntihe Company's potential common stock consfstenployee and director stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock unitd performance share units. Performance share awaedncluded in the diluted per share
calculation when the performance criteria are acgtde The Company's potential common stock is exadudom the basic per share
calculation and is included in the diluted per shaalculation when doing so would not be anti-dikit
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The Company accounts for unvested share based pagwards with a nonforfeitable right to receiveidiends ("Participating
Securities") using the two-class method of commguéarnings per share. The Company had 0.2 miliameested share-based payment
awards outstanding that were classified as Paaticig Securities in 2010 , and none in 2012 and 20he two-class method is an earnings
allocation formula that determines earnings peresfa common stock and Participating Securitiespeding to dividends declared and
participation rights in undistributed earnings. @nthat method, net income is reduced by the amafutividends declared in the current
period for common shareholders and Participatir@uBiges holders. The remaining earnings, or umidhisted earnings, are allocated between
common stock and Participating Securities to tiergxhat each security would share in earningsabof the earnings for the period had
been distributed. In applying the two-class mettibd,Company determined that undistributed earnshgsild be allocated equally on a per
share basis for common stock and Participating i@exsidue to the rights of the Participating Sé&@s holders and the Company's history of
paying dividends equally on a per share basis.

The elements of the earnings per share computatrens as follows (in millions, except per share ante):

2012 2011 2010
Net income $ 193.C $ 218.: $ 225.€
Less dividends declared:
To common shareholders 80.4 72.5 66.4
To participating security holders — — 0.2
Total undistributed earnings $ 1126 $ 145.¢ $ 159.(
Undistributed earnings to common shareholders $ 112.¢ $ 145¢ $ 158.7
Undistributed earnings to participating securitydeos — — 0.3
Net income available to common shareholders foicker®d diluted
earnings per share $ 193.C $ 2182 $ 225.1
Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding B5.< 60.C 62.€
Common equivalent shares:
Assumed exercise of dilutive options, restrictedrsh, restricted
stock units and performance share units 1.1 1.4 1.2
Weighted-average common and common equivalent sloartstanding 56.4 61.4 63.€
Basic earnings per share $ 3.4¢ $ 3.6 $ 3.6(
Diluted earnings per share $ 34z $ 358 % 3.5
Shares excluded from the determination of potentaimon stock
because inclusion would have been anti-dilutive 0.4 0.€ 0.5

Derivative Financial Instruments. The Company recognizes all derivative instrumeastsither assets or liabilities in its Consolidated
Balance Sheets and measures those instruments\alie. If certain conditions are met, a derivatmay be specifically designated as a
hedge. The accounting for changes in the valuedefriative accounted for as a hedge depends antireded use of the derivative and the
resulting designation of the hedge exposure. Dapgrah how the hedge is used and the designatiergain or loss due to changes in value
is reported either in earnings or initially in otlttemprehensive income. Gains or losses that amted in other comprehensive income
eventually are recognized in earnings, with thertgrof this recognition governed by ASC 8 Txrivatives and Hedging .
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The Company uses derivative financial instrumentsicipally over-the-counter forward exchange caats and local currency options
with major international financial institutions, odfset the effects of exchange rate changes omwestments in certain foreign subsidiaries,
certain forecasted purchases, certain intercomfmamytransactions, and certain accounts payabli@s@ad losses on instruments designated
as hedges of net investments in a foreign subgidiaintercompany transactions that are permamenafure are accrued as exchange rates
change, and are recognized in shareholders' egsiidycomponent of foreign currency translationgidjents within accumulated other
comprehensive loss. Forward points and option csgteciated with these net investment hedges elredad in interest expense and other
expense, respectively. Gains and losses on contlasignated as hedges of intercompany transadtiahare not permanent in nature are
accrued as exchange rates change and are recogninedme.

Gains and losses on contracts designated as hefligiesitifiable foreign currency forecasted puradsmare deferred and included in other
comprehensive income. The Company previously etllinterest rate swap agreements to convert aoparfiits floating rate U.S. dollar
long-term debt to fixed rate U.S. dollar debt unitkecredit facility that was terminated in 201hanges in the underlying market value of
swap arrangements that qualify as cash flow hedaitigities are recorded as a component of othepecehensive income. Changes in the
market value of swaps that do not qualify as chsh hedges are recorded in income each periodN®&=8 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Foreign Currency Trandlation. Results of operations of foreign subsidiaries mrdlated into U.S. dollars using average exchaaigs
during the year. The assets and liabilities of ¢hssbsidiaries, other than those of operationgghlyinflationary countries, are translated i
U.S. dollars using exchange rates at the balarest slate. The related translation adjustmentsnateded in accumulated other
comprehensive loss. Foreign currency transactiamsgand losses, as well as re-measurement of fimestatements of subsidiaries in highly
inflationary countries, are included in income.

Prior to 2010, the Company utilized the officiachange rate in Venezuela to translate the saleprarfit results of the subsidiary. At the
beginning of 2010, the Company began translatieg/tBnezuelan results at a "parallel rate" that avaslable. In May 2010, the Venezuelan
government closed the use of the parallel rate candequently, from that time forward, this rateswa longer available and has not been
used to translate the results in Venezuela. In 20046, several large Venezuelan commercial bangarbeperating the Transaction System
for Foreign Currency Denominated Securities (SITMi)ich established a new “banded” exchange rafe3bolivar to the U.S. dollar. As
the Company believed this would be the primary gtehich it would settle its non-bolivar denomigdiabilities and repatriate dividends, it
began translating its bolivar denominated traneastand balances at this rate beginning in Jun@.Z01ere were no changes to this rate in
2012; however, in February 2013, the Venezuelaregouent set a new official exchange rate of 6.8/ to the U.S. dollar and abolished
the banded exchange rate. As a result, the Compiinyse the new official rate to translate salad arofit results of the subsidiary unless a
more appropriate rate for settling its non-bolidanominated liabilities and repatriating dividelgsomes available.

Inflation in Venezuela has been at relatively Higlels over the past few years. The Company ubdsnaled index of the Consumer Pi
Index and National Consumer Price Index for deteing highly inflationary status in Venezuela. Thiended index reached cumulative
three-year inflation in excess of 100 percent atévaber 30, 2009 and as such, the Company transititmhighly inflationary status at the
beginning of its 2010 fiscal year. Gains and losseslting from the translation of the financialtsiments of subsidiaries operating in highly
inflationary economies are recorded in earningg Tbhmpany continued to use the banded rate ofdiabto the U.S. dollar in 2012. The
impact of the changes in the value of the Venezuleddivar versus the U.S. dollar on earnings in128ad 2010 was not significant. As of the
end of 2012 , the Company had approximately $1Wanibf net monetary assets in Venezuela, whicheveéra nature that would generate
income or expense associated with future exchaatgdluctuations versus the U.S. dollar. At the eh@012, there was also $9 million of
inventory on the balance sheet in Venezuela, whicén it is sold will be included in cost of salédtee dollar value at which it was origina
recorded.

Product Warranty. Tupperware® brand products are guaranteed agdiipgiing, cracking, breaking or peeling under nornat-
commercial use of the product with certain limivas. The cost of replacing defective products tsnmaterial.
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New Accounting Pronouncements . In December 2011, the FASB issued an amendmentisting guidance regarding disclosures about
offsetting assets and liabilities. In January 2ath8,FASB amended the guidance to limit the scopetivative instruments, repurchase
agreements and certain securities transactions. &8oendments are effective for annual reportingpgserbeginning on or after January 1,
2013, and interim periods within those annual giridAs the Company does not intend to use the afjbtfset in presenting the applicable
assets or liabilities, the amendment will not hamémpact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In July 2012, the FASB issued amendments to exigiiridance regarding indefinite-lived intangibleetsmpairment testing. The
amendments permit an entity to first make an ass@sisusing qualitative factors to determine whethisrmore likely than not that the fair
value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset isd¢han its carrying amount, as a basis for detgngniwhether it is necessary to perform a
guantitative impairment test. The amendments deetdfe for annual and interim impairment testsfgened for fiscal years beginning after
September 15, 2012, but early adoption is permifibé Company adopted this guidance for its animyghirment testing completed during
the third quarter 2012. The amendment did not lavienpact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued an amendmentistirg guidance regarding the reporting of amoueat$assified out of accumulated
other comprehensive income. The amendment recatirestity to present information about reclassificaadjustments from accumulated
other comprehensive income in its annual finarstialements in a single note or on the face ofittan€ial statements. The amendment is
effective prospectively for reporting periods bediy after December 15, 2012. As substantiallpgthe information that this amendment
requires is already disclosed elsewhere in the @moyip financial statements, it will not have a gigant impact on the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Reclassifications . Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifi¢ide Consolidated Financial Statements to confar current year
presentation.

Note 2: Re-engineering Cost

The Company continually reviews its business modetsoperating methods for opportunities to inceezfficiencies and/or align costs
with business performance. Pretax costs incurreldeme-engineering and impairment charges cajjorategory were as follows:

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Severance $ 52 $ 5¢ $ 65
Other 17.1 2.C 1.1

Total re-engineering and impairment charges $224 $ 7€ $ 7€

The Company recorded re-engineering and impairmigentges of $5.3 million , $5.9 million and $6.5 lioih in 2012 , 2011 and 2010,
respectively, related to severance costs incuoedduce head count in various units, mainly duenflementing changes in the businesses'
management structures. These costs were primatéied to operations in Argentina, Australia, RuMexico, Japan and exiting the
Nutrimetics businesses in Greece and the Unitedddm in 2012; France, Fuller Mexico, Japan and &dain 2011; and Australia, Fran
and Japan in 2010. In 2012, re-engineering andimmeat charges included $0.9 milliam exit costs, primarily related to the decisiorceas
operating the Nutrimetics businesses in GreecdtatUnited Kingdom. Also in connection with thedidation of the Nutrimetics business in
the United Kingdom, the Company incurred a $16.tioninon-cash charge that related to the recleesgibn of currency translation
adjustments from accumulated other comprehenssiito operating income. In 2011, re-engineerimdjiempairment charges also included
$1.3 million related to the decision to merge thdriinetics and Tupperware businesses in Malaysiaban7 million related to asset
impairments, exit activities and relocation cobts2010, re-engineering and impairment chargesiatdaded 1.1 million related to moving
costs and the impairment of property, plant andmmant associated with the relocation of a manufang facility in Japan.
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Pretax costs incurred in connection with the reksegring program included above and allocated s abproducts sold were as follows:

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Re-engineering and impairment charges $222 $ 7S $ 7.€
Cost of products sold 0.2 1.7 —
Total pretax re-engineering costs $22€ $ 9€ $ 7.€

The balances included in accrued liabilities reldtere-engineering and impairment charges as oébéer 29, 2012 , December 31,
2011 , and December 25, 2010 were as follows:

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Beginning balance $ 3C $ 24 $ 1t
Provision 224 7.€ 7.€
Cash expenditures:
Severance (6.0 (5.7 (5.9
Other 2.7 1.1 1.1
Non-cash charges (16.2) (0.5) (0.
Ending balance $ 15 $ 3C $ 24

The accrual balance as of December 29, 2012 erefatmarily to severance payments expected todmerby the end of the second
quarter of 2013 . In connection with the decisioré¢ase operating the Nutrimetics businesses ind8rand the United Kingdom in 2012 and
Malaysia in 2011, the Company recorded charge® & fillion and $1.7 million , respectively, to tas$ sales for inventory obsolescence.

Note 3: Inventories

(In millions) 2012 2011
Finished goods $ 2512 $ 241(
Work in process 22.¢ 22.C
Raw materials and supplies 39.¢ 39.t

Total inventories $ 313¢ $ 302t

Note 4: Property, Plant and Equipment

(In millions) 2012 2011
Land $ 52.C $ 51.1
Buildings and improvements 220.C 216.<
Molds 610.( 582.¢
Production equipment 315.2 298.¢
Distribution equipment 43.2 45.4
Computer/telecom equipment 60.¢ 65.C
Furniture and fixtures 24k 24.7
Capitalized software 69.5 60.2
Construction in progress 28.7 34.C
Total property, plant and equipment 1,424.( 1,377.¢
Less accumulated depreciation (1,125.) (1,104.)

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 298¢ § 2731
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The Company currently has construction projectanma to expand its manufacturing, warehousing astdlzlition facilities in China
and sales offices in Indonesia. The projects apeeted to be completed in 2014, and spending isa&d to be approxi mately $11 million .

Note 5: Accrued and Other Liabilities

(In millions) 2012 2011
Income taxes payable $ 13 $ 91
Compensation and employee benefits 99.4 88.t
Advertising and promotion 69.7 70.2
Taxes other than income taxes 28.% 25k
Pensions 3.7 3.1
Post-retirement benefits 2.€ 3.C
Dividends payable 19.4 16.¢
Foreign currency contracts 157 19.C
Other 83.L 85.2

Total accrued liabilities $ 336.c $ 320

(In millions) 2012 2011
Post-retirement benefits $ 305 $ 358
Pensions 144.1 127.t
Income taxes 16.5 17.4
Long-term deferred income tax 11.¢ 22.¢
Other 31.C 30.1

Total other liabilities $ 233.t § 233.-

Note 6: Goodwill and Intangible Asset:

The Company's goodwill and intangible assets regdetearily to the December 2005 acquisition of tlirect-to-consumer businesses of
Sara Lee Corporation and the October 2000 acaquisitf BeautiControl. The Company does not amoitizgoodwill or tradename intangik
assets. Instead, the Company performs an assesgniest these assets for impairment annually,anerfrequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate they may be impaired. Qettadenames are allocated between multiple rewpunits.

The annual process for evaluating goodwill begiith an assessment for each entity of qualitatietofs to determine whether the two-
step goodwill impairment test is necessary. Furntésting is only performed if the Company determittet it is more likely than not that the
reporting unit's fair value is less than its cargyvalue. The qualitative factors evaluated byGbenpany include: macro-economic conditions
of the local business environment, overall finahp&formance, sensitivity analysis from the mestent step one fair value test, and other
entity specific factors as deemed appropriate. WherCompany determines the two-step goodwill impant test is necessary, the first step
involves comparing the fair value of a reportingt tim its carrying amount, including goodwill, afteny long-lived asset impairment charges.
If the carrying amount of the reporting unit excedéd fair value, a second step is performed terd@he whether there is a goodwill
impairment, and if so, the amount of the loss. Bitép revalues all assets and liabilities of th®réng unit to their current fair value and then
compares the implied fair value of the reporting'sigoodwill to the carrying amount of that gootw the carrying amount of the reporting
unit's goodwill exceeds the implied fair value lof tgoodwill, an impairment loss is recognized irmarount equal to the excess. Prior to 2!
the Company's annual assessment began with thetepdmpairment test.
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The Company early adopted Accounting Standards té@i{zl2-02, "Testing Indefiniteived Intangibles for Impairment" ("the ASU")
connection with the performance of its 2012 anmmglairment testing of its tradenames. Under the A&tlities are provided the option of
first performing a qualitative assessment thainslar to the assessment performed for goodwill.eaWithe Company determines it is
necessary, the quantitative impairment test foiGbmpany's tradenames involves comparing the esgihfair value of the assets to the
carrying amounts, to determine if fair value is &vand a write-down required. If the carrying amaoafra tradename exceeds its estimated
fair value, an impairment charge is recognizedniraaount equal to the excess.

During the second quarter of 2012, the Company ¢etegh its annual impairment test of the BeautiGarreporting units, resulting in an
impairment charge of $38.9 million related to ttedwill in the BeautiControl United States and GimAusiness. This was a result of the
rates of growth of sales, profit and cash flow arpectations for future performance that were balvCompany's previous projections.
Also in the second quarter, the financial perforoeaaf the Nutrimetics reporting units fell belovethprevious trend line and it became
apparent that they would fall significantly shoffpoevious expectations for the year. Additionatlyguctions in the forecasted operating
trends of NaturCare relating to declines in thesatf growth of sales, profit and cash flows iniapanese market led to interim impairment
testing in both these businesses, as of the eNthpfand June 2012, respectively. The result ofgtiests was to record tradename
impairments of $13.8 million for Nutrimetics and.@9nillion for NaturCare, primarily due to the usidower estimated royalty rates in light
of lower sales and profit forecasts for these yiaisswell as macroeconomic factors that incredsedliscount rates used in the valuations
versus those used previously. In addition, the Gomipwrote off the $7.2 million and $7.7 million cging value of the goodwill of the
Nutrimetics Asia Pacific and Nutrimetics Europeading units, respectively, in light of then curteperating trends and expected fut
results, as well as the macroeconomic factorsitica¢ased the discount rates used in the valuatinorike third quarter of 2012, the Company
completed the annual impairment assessments fof @ik reporting units and tradename intangil#&sept for BeautiControl which was
completed in the second quarter, determining the®no impairment.

In the third quarter of 2011, the Company complé¢hedannual impairment tests for all of the repaytiinits and tradenames, other than
BeautiControl, which was completed in the secorarigu. During the third quarter of 2011, the finahcesults of Nutrimetics were below
expectations. The Company also made at that timegécision to cease operating its Nutrimeticsriass in Malaysia. As a result, the
Company lowered its forecast of future sales anditpiThe result of the impairment tests was tordca $31.1 million impairment to the
Nutrimetics goodwill in the Asia Pacific reportingit and £$5.0 million impairment to its tradename.

During 2010, the Company completed the annual impearit tests for all of the reporting units and éames, determining there was no
impairment. The Company subsequently decided itldvoslase operating its Swissgarde unit in SoutAdrina as a separate business. As a
result of this decision, the Company concluded iisahtangible assets and goodwill were impaired eecorded a $2.1 million impairment to
the Swissgarde tradename, a $0.1 million impairmelated to the sales force intangible and a $2lliomimpairment to goodwill relating to
the South African beauty reporting unit. During 20the Company sold its interest in Swissgardes€? million that resulted in a gain of
$0.1 million .
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Fair value of the BeautiControl United States aadi&tia, Nutrimetics and NaturCare reporting units determined by the Company in
the second quarter of 2012, using a combinatich@fncome and market approaches with generalhgater weighting on the income
approach ( 75 percent ). When the characterisfitseoreporting unit were more similar to the guiige public companies in terms of size,
markets and economy, then a more equal weightirggusad between the income and market approachesnddme approach, or discounted
cash flow approach, requires significant assumpttordetermine the fair value of each reportind.uriese include estimates regarding
future operations and the ability to generate dsts, including projections of revenue, costslizdtion of assets and capital requirements,
along with an estimate as to the appropriate discrate to be used. The most sensitive estimatgsrvaluation is the projection of operating
cash flows, as these provide the basis for theraiket valuation. The Company’s cash flow modeksusrecasts for periods of about 10
yearsand a terminal value. The significant assumptiemgtfese forecasts in 2012 included annual revgnueth rates ranging fromegative
7.0 percent to positive 10.0 percent with an aveigrgwth rate of positive 3.0 percent . The groraties were determined by reviewing
historical results of these units and the histdnieaults of the Company’s other business unitsdanasimilar to those of the reporting units,
along with the expected contribution from growttattgies implemented in the units. Terminal vafoesll reporting units were calculated
using a long-term growth rate of 3.0 percent .dtineating the fair value of these reporting unit2012, the Company applied discount rates
to the projected cash flows ranging from 12.5 t@Jgercent . The discount rate at the high endisfrange was for the Nutrimetics Asia
Pacific reporting unit due to higher country-spiecifsks. The market approach relies on an anabfgmblicly-traded companies similar to
Tupperware and deriving a range of revenue andtpnedtiples. The publicly-traded companies usethia market approach were selected
based on their having similar product lines of eoner goods, beauty products and/or companies astligect-to-consumer distribution
method. The resulting multiples were then appleethe reporting unit to determine fair value.

The fair value of the Nutrimetics and NaturCareléreames were determined in the second quarterl@, 2@ing the relief from royalty
method that is a form of the income approach. isiiiethod, the value of the asset is calculatesklscting royalty rates, which estimate the
amount a company would be willing to pay for the o§the asset. These rates were applied to thg&ay’s projected revenue, tax affected
and discounted to present value. Royalty rates weed selected by reviewing comparable trademagnging agreements in the market and
the forecasted performance of the business. Asudty¢he royalty rates were reduced to 1.5 perfrent 3.0 percent for Nutrimetics and 3.75
percent from 4.75 percent for NaturCare. In esiingathe fair value of the tradenames, the Compampjied discount rates of 15.2 and 13.5
percent , respectively, and annual revenue groariging from negative 7.0 percent to positive 7 &@et , with an average growth rate of
positive 2.0 percent , and a long-term terminalghorate of 3.0 percent .

With the tradename impairment recorded in the curyear for Nutrimetics and NaturCare, these asgetsit a higher risk of additional
impairments in future periods if changes in cersssumptions occur. There is no longer a goodwlktce recorded related to Nutrimetics or
BeautiControl United States and Canada. The estuhfair value of the NaturCare reporting unit extszbthe carrying value by 29 percent as
of June 2012, when a step 1 impairment analysidasiperformed. Given the sensitivity of the vailmas to changes in cash flow or market
multiples, the Company may be required to recogaizenpairment of goodwill or intangible assetsha future due to changes in market
conditions or other factors related to the Compamgrformance. Actual results below forecastedlt®su a decrease in the forecasted future
results of the Company’s business plans or chaingdiscount rates could also result in an impairedrarge, as could changes in market
characteristics including declines in valuation tiplés of comparable publicly-traded companiestir@rimpairment charges would have an
adverse impact on the Company’s net income ancbbhters' equity.
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The following table reflects gross goodwill and aewlated impairments allocated to each reportiggrest at December 29, 2012 ,
December 31, 2011 and December 25, 2010 :

TW Beauty
Asia North North South

(In millions) Europe  Pacific America America America Total

Gross goodwill balance at December 25, 2010 $ 34.C $86.1 $ 16.2 $160.t $ 7.C $303.¢
Effect of changes in exchange rates (0.9 2.€ — (129 (049 (11.¢

Gross goodwill balance at December 31, 2011 33.1 88.7 16.2  147.¢ 6.€ 292.:
Effect of changes in exchange rates 0.9) (2.9 — 8.€ (0.2 5.3

Gross goodwill balance at December 29, 2012 $ 32 $86.4 $ 16.2 $156.2 $ 6.4 $297.¢

Asia TW North Beauty North South
(In millions) Europe Pacific America America America Total
Accumulated impairment balance at
December 25, 2010 $ 166 $ 3C $ — $ — 3 — $ 19¢
Goodwill impairment — 31.1 — — — 31.1
Accumulated impairment balance at
December 31, 2011 16.€ 34.1 — — — 50.¢
Goodwill impairment 7.7 7.2 — 38.¢ — 53.¢
Accumulated impairment balance at
December 29, 2012 $ 245 $ 41° % — $ 38.¢ % — $104.7

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amadizaf the Company's intangible assets, other guadwill, were as follows:

December 29, 2012

Gross
Carrying Accumulated
(In millions) Value Amortization Net
Trademarks and tradenames $ 138.< $ — $ 138.2
Sales force relationships - single level 29.C 26.€ 2.4
Sales force relationships - tiered 31.¢ 29.2 2.€
Acquired proprietary product formulations 3.t 3.t —
Total intangible assets $ 202¢& 3 59.4 $ 143.4
December 31, 2011
Gross
Carrying Accumulated
(In millions) Value Amortization Net
Trademarks and tradenames $ 15770 % — $ 157.1
Sales force relationships - single level 26.¢ 23.¢ 3.C
Sales force relationships - tiered 35.¢ 31.7 4.2
Acquired proprietary product formulations 3.€ 3.€ —
Total intangible assets $ 223% $ 59.2 $ 164.
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A summary of the identifiable intangible asset actactivity is as follows:

Year Ending
December 29, December 31,
(In millions) 2012 2011
Beginning balance $ 223t % 239.:
Impairment of intangible assets (22.¢) (5.0
Effect of changes in exchange rates 2.1 (10.9)
Ending balance $ 202.¢  $ 223.%

Amortization expense was $2.0 million , $2.9 mifliand $3.9 million in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , retpely. The estimated annual
amortization expense associated with the abovagitites for each of the five succeeding years ig $dillion , $1.0 million , $0.7 million ,
$0.6 million and $0.4 million , respectively.

Note 7: Financing Obligations
Debt Obligations

Debt obligations consisted of the following:

(In millions) 2012 2011
Fixed rate Senior Notes due 2021 396.5 396.1
Five year Credit Agreement expiring 2016 199.( 192.:
Belgium facility capital lease 18.¢ 20.t
Other 3.k 2.C

Total debt obligations 617.¢ 610.¢
Less current portion (203.9) (195.9)

Long-term debt $ 414 $ 415.:

(Dollarsin millions) 2012 2011

Total short-term borrowings at year-end $199.C $ 193¢

Weighted average interest rate at year-end 2.(% 3.(%

Average short-term borrowings during the year $332.¢ $166.1

Weighted average interest rate for the year 2.1% 2.1%

Maximum short-term borrowings during the year $384.6 $425.:

Senior Notes

On June 2, 2011, the Company completed the s&#é0fF million in aggregate principal amount of 4.%68enior Notes due June 1, 2(
(the “Senior Notes”) at an issue price of 98.9898arsuant to a purchase agreement, dated as o2Ma3011, that included the Company
its 100% owned subsidiary, Dart Industries Ince (tBuarantor”).

The Senior Notes were issued under an Indentuee‘litidenture”) between the Company, the Guarantdr\&ells Fargo Bank, N.A., as
trustee. As security for its obligations under guarantee of the Senior Notes, the Guarantor reagegt a security interest in certain
"Tupperware" trademarks and service marks. Theagui@e and the lien securing the guarantee mayléesesl under certain circumstances
specified in the Indenture.
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Prior to March 1, 2021, the Company may redeengtrdor Notes, at its option, at a redemption peigeal to 100 percent of the
principal amount to be redeemed, accrued intereshanake-whole premium equal to the present w@ltiee remaining scheduled payments
of principal and interest. In determining the pregsalue of the remaining scheduled payments, pagiments shall be discounted to the
redemption date using a discount rate equal tdthasury Rate (as defined in the Indenture) plub&fs points. On or after March 1, 2021,
the redemption price will equal 100 percent ofphiacipal amount of the Senior Notes to be redeemed

The Indenture includes covenants which, subjecettain exceptions, limit the ability of the Compaand its subsidiaries to, among o
things, (i) incur indebtedness secured by lienseaih property, (ii) enter into sale and leasebaaikdactions, (iii) consolidate or merge with
another entity, or sell or transfer all or substdlytall of their properties and assets, and gl the capital stock of the Guarantor. In addi
upon a change of control, as defined in the Indenthe Company may be required to make an offezgarchase the Senior Notes at 101
percent of their principal amount, plus accrued amgiaid interest. The Indenture also contains coaty events of default. These restrictions
are not expected to impact the Company's operathmef December 29, 2012 , the Company was in diamge with all of its covenants.

On January 6, 2012, the company completed the gsdoeregister its Senior Notes under the SecsirKie of 1933. This was
accomplished through an exchange of the Seniord\fotenew notes that are identical in all materspects, except that the transfer
restrictions and rights under the registration tSghgreement do not apply.

Credit Agreement

Also on June 2, 2011, the Company and its whollpedvsubsidiary Tupperware International Holdingg.HBthe “Subsidiary
Borrower”), entered into a multicurrency Credit Agment (the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreatmmaakes available to the Company
and the Subsidiary Borrower a committed five -yaadit facility in an aggregate amount of $450 ol (the “Facility Amount”). The Credit
Agreement provides (i) a revolving credit faciligyailable up to the full amount of the Facility Ammt, (ii) a letter of credit facility, availab
up to $50 million of the Facility Amount, and (i&) swingline facility, available up to $50 milliari the Facility Amount. Each of such
facilities is fully available to the Company andhigailable to the Subsidiary Borrower up to an aggte amount not to exceed $225 million .
The Company is permitted to increase, on up teetbaeasions, the Facility Amount by a total of o200 million(for a maximum aggrege
Facility Amount of $650 million ), subject to ceirtaconditions. As of December 29, 2012 , the Conydzad $199.0 million of borrowings
outstanding under its $450 million Credit Agreemeith $162.0 million of that amount denominatectiwos. The Company routinely
increases its revolver borrowings under the Cradieement during each quarter to fund operatinggsting and financing activities and uses
cash available at the end of each quarter to redoigewing levels. As a result, the Company hasdidoreign exchange exposure on the
value of its cash during each quarter than at tigeof each quarter.

Loans made under the revolving credit facility bieéerest under a formula that includes, at the @amy's option, one of three different
base rates. The Company generally selects thedmimterbank offered rate (" LIBOR ") for the amalble currency and interest period as its
base for its interest rate. As provided in thed@rAgreement, a margin is added to the base. Ppécable margin is determined by refere
to a pricing schedule based upon the ratio (then40bdated Leverage Ratiodf the consolidated funded indebtedness of the Gompnd it:
subsidiaries to the consolidated EBITDA (as defimethe Credit Agreement) of the Company and itssgliaries for the four fiscal quarters
then most recently ended. As of December 29, 2012 Credit Agreement dictated a base rate spreafilobasis points, which gave the
Company a weighted average interest rate at tinat oif 2.03 percent on borrowings under the Credie&ment.

The Credit Agreement contains customary covenaiats among other things, generally restrict the gamy's ability to incur subsidiary
indebtedness, create liens on and sell assetsgeigéquidation or dissolutions, engage in mesgarconsolidations, or change lines of
business. These covenants are subject to sigrificareptions and qualifications. The agreement ladsocustomary financial covenants
related to interest coverage and leverage. Thasectens are not expected to impact the Compaspesations. As of December 29, 2012 ,
the Company had, and it currently has, considelabl@ay under its financial covenants and was mp@nce with all of its covenants.
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The Guarantor unconditionally guarantees all obiges and liabilities of the Company and the SuiasidBorrower relating to this Cre:
Agreement through a security interest in certaingfferware" trademarks and service marks.

Use of Proceeds

In connection with the closing of the Credit Agrem) the Company terminated its Credit FacilityedaSeptember 28, 2007 (the "Old
Credit Facility"). The net proceeds from the issteanf the Senior Notes, along with borrowings urtlernew Credit Agreement were usel
repay all of the Company's $405 million term loansstanding under the Old Credit Facility. As auftesf the termination of the Old Credit
Facility, the Company recorded a loss on the existgnent of debt of $0.9 millioof unamortized debt issuance costs, as well asldiiana
$18.9 million in interest expense reclassified frother comprehensive loss as hedges under refat@st rate swaps became ineffective. As
a result of the Senior Notes offering and the etienwof the new Credit Agreement, the Company edigied $5.6 million as deferred finance
costs.

At December 29, 2012 , the Company had $333.5aniltif unused lines of credit, including $247.9 ioillunder the committed, secured
$450 million Credit Agreement, and $85.6 millioredable under various uncommitted lines aroundvtbdd. Interest paid on total debt in
2012, 2011 and 2010 was $41.2 million , $36.0ianiland $25.7 million , respectively.

Contractual Maturities

Contractual maturities for debt obligations at Draber 29, 2012 are summarized by year as followm({ilions):

Year ending: Amount
December 28, 2013 $ 203.
December 27, 2014 2.4
December 26, 2015 2.4
December 31, 2016 2.t
December 30, 2017 2.3
Thereafter 404.¢
Total $ 617.¢

Capital Leases

In 2006, the Company initiated construction of aieipperware center of excellence manufacturingdifiain Belgium which was
completed in 2007 and replaced its existing Belgfaaility. Costs related to the new facility ancuggment totaled $24.0 million and was
financed through a sales lease-back transactioarunt separate leases. The two leases are baingreted for as capital leases and have
terms of 10 and 15 years and interest rates gbérdent . In 2010, the Company extended a leas@ @alditional building in Belgium that
was previously accounted for as an operating léssa. result of renegotiating the terms of the agrent, the lease is now classified as ca
and had an initial value of $3.8 million with arreof 10 years and an interest rate of 2.9 percent .

Following is a summary of significant capital lead#igations at December 29, 2012 and Decembe2(®11] :

December 29, December 31,
(In millions) 2012 2011
Gross payments $ 23.C $ 25.¢
Less imputed interest 4.2 5.1
Total capital lease obligation 18.¢ 20.t
Less current maturity 1.¢ 1.8
Capital lease obligation - long-term portion $ 16.€ $ 18.7
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Note 8: Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in foreigrrency exchange rates on the earnings, cash iodginancial position of its
international operations. Although this currendkris partially mitigated by the natural hedgeiaggrom the Company's local manufactur
in many markets, a strengthening U.S. dollar gdiygnas a negative impact on the Company. In respda this fact, the Company uses
financial instruments to hedge certain of its expes and to manage the foreign exchange impats fmancial statements. At its inception, a
derivative financial instrument used for hedgingésignated as a fair value, cash flow or net gduatige.

Fair value hedges are entered into with financisiruments such as forward contracts with the dlbof limiting exposure to certain
foreign exchange risks primarily associated witbcamts receivable, accounts payable and non-pemhartercompany transactions. For
derivative instruments that are designated andfgud fair value hedges, the gain or loss on #évdtive, as well as the offsetting gain or
loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedig&dare recognized in current earnings. In assgésedge effectiveness, the Company
excludes forward points, which are considered ta bemponent of interest expense. In 2012 , 2011122840 , forward points on fair value
hedges resulted in pretax gains of $10.3 milli$8.3 million and $6.0 million , respectively.

The Company also uses derivative financial instmisieo hedge foreign currency exposures resultio tertain forecasted purchases
and classifies these as cash flow hedges. The Gongemerally enters into cash flow hedge contrimtperiods ranging from three tovelve
months . The effective portion of the gain or lossthe hedging instrument is recorded in other aetmnsive loss and is reclassified into
earnings as the transactions being hedged aredestohs such, the balance at the end of each reggriod in other comprehensive loss
will be reclassified into earnings within the néwelve months. The associated asset or liabilityhenopen hedges is recorded in other cu
assets or accrued liabilities, as applicable. Tiarize in accumulated other comprehensive los®friak, resulting from open foreign
currency hedges designated as cash flow hedgea deferred loss of $0.2 million as of December2zd,2 and deferred gains $9.3 million
and $0.5 million as of December 31, 2011 and Deeerb, 2010 , respectively. In 2012 , 2011 and 2ah@ Company recorded, net of tax,
net losses associated with these types of heddg&4fmillion , $0.2 million and $0.3 million , nesctively, in other comprehensive loss. In
assessing hedge effectiveness, the Company exdiudesrd points, which are included as a compowpéirterest expense. In 2012 , 2011
and 2010 , forward points on cash flow hedges teduh pretax losses of $2.5 million , $2.0 milliand $2.6 million , respectively.

The Company also uses financial instruments, sadbravard contracts, to hedge a portion of itsetptity investment in international
operations and classifies these as net equity Be@enges in the value of these derivative ingnts) excluding any ineffective portion of
the hedges, are included in foreign currency teditsl adjustments within accumulated other comprsive losses. In 2012 , 2011 and 2010,
the Company recorded, net of tax, net (losses)ysgasociated with these hedges of $(8.9) mill®hl,.9 million and $(9.0) million,
respectively, in other comprehensive loss. Du&iéopermanent nature of the investments, the Comgaay not anticipate reclassifying any
portion of these amounts to the income statemetiteimext 12 months. In assessing hedge effectbgetize Company excludes forward
points, which are included as a component of isteggpense. In 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , forward pa@intnet equity hedges resulted in pretax
losses of $12.9 million , $11.2 million and $8.0lion , respectively.

While the Company's net equity and fair value hedgfenon-permanent intercompany balances mitigatexiposure to foreign exchange
gains or losses, they result in an impact to opegatash flows as they are settled, whereas thgdweitems do not generate offsetting cash
flows. For the years ended December 29, 2012 ,Dkee31, 2011 and December 25, 2010 the cash figyadt of these currency hedges
was an inflow of $2.1 million , an inflow $6.1 mdh and an outflow of $5.9 million , respectively.
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Following is a listing of the Company's outstanddggivative financial instruments at fair valuecdi®ecember 29, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 . Related to the forward corgrdice “buy” amounts represent the U.S. dollaremjant of commitments to purchase
foreign currencies, and the “sell” amounts repreiem U.S. dollar equivalent of commitments to $eleign currencies, all translated at the
period-end market exchange rates for the U.S. ddlaforward contracts are hedging net investrsantcertain foreign subsidiaries, cross-
currency intercompany loans that are not permainemiture, cross-currency external payables argivables or forecasted purchases. Some
amounts are between two foreign currencies:

Forward Contracts 2012 2011

(in millions) Buy Sell Buy Sell
U.S. dollar $ 69.¢ $ 48.F

Euro 66.€ 61.

Malaysian ringgit 17.2 5.C

Indonesian rupiah 11.c 6.€

Philippine peso 9.¢ 4.2

South Korean won 3.C 6.8

New Zealand dollar 14 4.€

Singapore dollar 0.4 $ 1.3
Swiss franc $ 53.¢ 39.2
Japanese yen 32.¢ 28.4
Mexican peso 22.C 1.8

Australian dollar 15t 17.t
Turkish lira 12.: 14.4
South African rand 6.8 0.t

Russian ruble 5.7 9.3
British pound 4.8 3.8
Indian rupee 3.7 2.C
Canadian dollar 3.k 8.€
Thai baht .3 2.€
Hungarian forint 3 2.C
Czech koruna & 1.8
Polish zloty 3 1kt
Croatian kuna 2.t 2.5
Norwegian krone 1.¢ 2.C
Brazilian real 1.7 6.2

Swedish krona 1.7 1kt
Ukraine hryvnia 0.¢ 1.3
Argentine peso — 4.3
Other currencies (net) 0.8 0.9

$ 179.7 % 183.¢ $ 1457 $ 145.(

In agreements to sell foreign currencies in exchdongU.S. dollars, for example, an appreciatiniadawersus the opposing currency
generates a cash inflow for the Company at settigmath the opposite result in agreements to lmrgifyn currencies for U.S. dollars. The
above noted notional amounts change based upogethamthe Company's outstanding currency exposures
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At the time the Company entered into the Credite®gnent in the second quarter of 2011, it had fatdoftheimoney interest rate swa
that were hedging a portion of its borrowing untter Old Credit Facility. As a result of the terntina of the Old Credit Facility, the
Company recorded $18.9 million in interest expemdech was reclassified from other comprehensigs las a result of the hedges under
related interest rate swaps becoming ineffective §waps expired in the third quarter of 2012.

The following tables summarize the Company's dékiegpositions and the impact they had on the Camigdinancial position as of
December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011 :

December 29, 2012

Asset derivatives Liability derivatives
Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments (in millions) Balance sheet location Fair value  Balance sheet location Fair value
Foreign exchange contracts Non-trade amounts receivat $  13.1 Accrued liabilites $  15.7
Total derivative instruments $ 131 $ 157

December 31, 2011

Asset derivatives Liability derivatives
Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments (in millions) Balance sheet location Fair value  Balance sheet location Fair value
Interest rate contracts Non-trade amounts receivat $ — Other liabilities $ 10z
Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments (in millions)
Foreign exchange contracts Non-trade amounts receivak 21.2 Accrued liabilities 18.7
Total derivative instruments $ 214 $ 28¢

The following tables summarize the Company's déxiegpositions and the impact they had on the Cawsaesults of operations and
comprehensive income for the years ended Decen$h@022 , December 31, 2011 and December 25, 2010 :

Derivatives designated Location of gain or Location of gain or

as (loss) recognized in Amount of gain or (loss) recognized in Amount of gain or (loss)

fair value hedges income on (loss) recognized in income on related recognized in income on

(in millions) derivatives income on derivatives hedged items related hedged items
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

Foreign exchangt
contracts Other expense  $11.¢  ($8.€) $8.5  Other expense  ($11.9) $8.E ($9.0
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Derivatives
designated as
cash flow and net

Amount of gain or (loss)
recognized in OCI on

Location of gain or
(loss) reclassified from
accumulated OCI into

Amount of gain or
(loss) reclassified fron
accumulated OCI into

Location of gain
or (loss)
recognized in
income on
derivatives
(ineffective
portion and
amount excluded

Amount of gain or (loss)
recognized in income on
derivatives (ineffective portion

and amount excluded from

equity hedged(in derivatives (effective income (effective income (effective from effectiveness
millions) portion) portion) portion) testing) effectiveness testing)
Cash flow

hedging

relationships 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Interest rate Interest

contracts $ — $4.1$ 4.€ Interestexpense $ —$— $ —  expense $ — $(189%0.2
Foreign

exchange Cost of products Interest

contracts (0.9 0.z (0.2) soldandDS&A 1.C (1.€) 0.€ expense (2.5 (2.0 (2.
Net equity

hedging

relationships
Foreign

exchange Interest

contracts  (13.9) 18.7 (14.1) Other expense — — —  expense (12.9 (11.2) (8.0

The Company's theoretical credit risk for eachwddive instrument is its replacement cost, but myanzent believes that the risk of
incurring credit losses is remote and such loséasy, would not be material. The Company is asposed to market risk on its derivative
instruments due to potential changes in foreigmarge rates; however, such market risk would biafigroffset by changes in the valuation
of the underlying items being hedged. For all @utding derivative instruments, the net accruecelmsgere $2.7 million , $7.5 million and
$24.7 million at December 29, 2012 , December 81,12and December 25, 2010 , respectively, and ree@ded either in accrued liabilities
or other assets, depending upon the net posititimeohdividual contracts. While certain of itsrfaalue hedges of non-permanent
intercompany loans mitigate its exposure to fore&gohange gains or losses, they result in an impamperating cash flows as the hedges are
settled, as did the Company's impaired interestsagp before they expired in the third quarte2@if2. However, the cash flow impact of
certain of these exposures is in turn partiallgeffoy hedges of net equity and other forward eatdr The notional amounts shown above
change based upon the Company's outstanding exptustair value fluctuations.

Note 9: Fair Value Measurement:

The Company applies the applicable accounting gquieldor fair value measurements. This guidanceigesvthe definition of fair value,
describes the method used to appropriately meéainrealue in accordance with generally acceptembanting principles and outlines fair
value disclosure requirements.

The fair value hierarchy established under thislgnce prioritizes the inputs used to measure &irer The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active negslfor identical assets or liabilities (Level 1anerement) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The tleneels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows

Level 1-Quoted prices are available in active marketsdentiical assets or liabilities as of the reportiliage. Active markets are those
which transactions for the asset or liability octusufficient frequency and volume to provide priginformation on an ongoing basis.
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Level 2-Pricing inputs are other than quoted prioeactive markets included in Level 1, which aitber directly or indirectly
observable as of the reporting date. Level 2 iretuthose financial instruments that are valuedgusiadels or other valuation
methodologies. These models are primarily industayxdard models that consider various assumpiiocisding quoted prices, time
value, volatility factors, and current market aditactual prices for the underlying instrumensswell as other relevant economic
measures. Substantially all of these assumptianstagervable in the marketplace throughout theiduth of the instrument, can be
derived from observable data or are supported sgmfble levels at which transactions are exedatdte marketplace.

Level 3-Pricing inputs include significant inpuket are generally less observable from objectivecss. These inputs may be used with
internally developed methodologies that result anagement's best estimate of fair value from tigpeetive of a market participant.

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Some fair value measurements, such as those rétaferkign currency forward contracts and interast swaps, are performed on a
recurring basis, while others, such as those laevaluating goodwill and other intangiblesifapairment, are performed on a
nonrecurring basis.

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

Description of Assets(in millions) December 29, 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Money market funds $ 21 $ 21 $ — $ —
Foreign currency derivative contracts 13.1 — 13.1 —
Total $ 152 $ 21 $ 131 $ =
Description of Liabilities (in millions)
Foreign currency derivative contracts $ 157 $ — $ 157 $ —
Total $ 157 $ — $ 157 $ =

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

Description of Assets(in millions) December 31, 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Money market funds $ 95 $ 9t $ — $ =
Foreign currency derivative contracts 21. — 21. —
Total $ 30 $ 95 $ 212 $ =
Description of Liabilities (in millions)
Interest rate swaps $ 102 $ — $ 102 $ —
Foreign currency derivative contracts 18.7 — 18.7 —
Total $ 28¢ $ — 3 28.¢ $ —

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in foreigrrency exchange rates on the earnings, cash #iodginancial position of its
international operations. The Company uses findinmts&ruments to hedge certain of its exposurestamdanage the foreign exchange impact
to its financial statements. As of December 29,228d December 31, 2011 , the Company held formigrency forward contracts to hedge
various currencies which had a net fair value afatize $2.7 million and positive $2.7 million , pextively. The fair values of forward
contracts were estimated based on quoted forwaeigfo exchange prices at the reporting date. Clsaimgiir market value are recorded
either in other comprehensive income or earningpedding on the designation of the hedge as odtim&lote 8 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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The fair value of interest rate swap contractsGh2was based on the discounted net present vathe ewap using third party quotes.
Changes in fair market value were recorded in atberprehensive income through the termination dhatke related credit facility, and
changes resulting from ineffectiveness, which werematerial, were recorded in current earninggs€tcontracts expired during the third
quarter of 2012.

Included in the Company's cash equivalents balaase$ December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011 $2etemillion and $9.5
million , respectively, in money market funds, whire highly liquid investments with a maturitytofee months or less. These assets are
classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierbyg as the money market funds are valued usingeguotarket prices in active markets.

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis

The following table presents information about &ss@d liabilities measured at fair value on a rnesurring basis as of June 30, 2012,
and indicates the placement in the fair value nidmaof the valuation techniques utilized to detexrsuch fair value.

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Description of Assetgin millions) June 30, 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Intangible Assets $ 23.C $ — 8 — 8 23.C
Total $ 23.C $ — 3 — 3 23.C

In the second quarter of 2012, the Company congligdeannual impairment test of the BeautiConteglarting units. Additionally, the
Company completed interim impairment testing fa Mutrimetics and NaturCare reporting units in Mg June of 2012, respectively. As a
result, the carrying value of goodwill allocatedie Nutrimetics and BeautiControl United Stated @anada reporting units were written off
in the amounts of $14.9 million and $38.9 milliorespectively. Additionally, intangible assets tiglg to the Company’s Nutrimetics and
NaturCare tradenames were written down to theilieddair values 0$7.9 million and $15.1 million , respectively. Refe Note 6 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for further dismn of goodwill and tradename impairments.

Fair Value of Financial | nstruments

Due to their short maturities or their insignifican the carrying amounts of cash and cash equigalaocounts and notes receivable,
accounts payable, accrued liabilities and short+eorrowings approximated their fair values at Deber 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011 .
The Company estimates that, based on current meokelitions, the value of its 4.750% 2021 Senioteddalebt was $420 million at
December 29, 2012 compared with the carrying vaf&896.5 million . The higher fair value resultedm changes, since issuance, in the
corporate bond market and investor preferencesfdinealue of debt is classified as a Level 2ilipand is estimated using quoted market
prices as provided in secondary markets that censiie Company's specific credit risk and markietteel conditions.

Note 10:  Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

December 29, December 31,
(In millions) 2012 2011
Foreign currency translation adjustments $ (218.9) $ (250.9
Pension and retiree medical benefits (52.9 (45.9
Deferred (loss)/gain on cash flow hedges 0.2 0.2
Total $ (2719 $ (295.5

Note 11:  Statements of Cash Flows Supplemental Disclost

In 2012 and 2010, the Company acquired $1.2 mikind $4.6 million , respectively, of property, glamd equipment under capital lease
arrangements. There were no such capital leasegamzents initiated in 2011.
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Employees are allowed to use shares to pay witiigpldixes up to the statutory minimum. In 20121 2and 2010 , 83,077 , 45,072 and
47,789 shares, respectively, were retained to Wutttholding taxes, with values totaling $5.1 mitlio $2.5 million and $2.2 million ,
respectively, which were included as a componestadk repurchases in the Consolidated Statemedasii Flows.

Note 12: Income Taxe:

For income tax purposes, the domestic and foreagmponents of income (loss) before taxes were &®ifsl

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Domestic $ (575 $ (152 $ (16.9
Foreign 330.: 310.t 316.(

Total $ 272¢ $ 295 $ 299.7

The domestic and foreign components of income Ylbs®ore taxes reflect adjustments as required ruceitain advanced pricing

agreements.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes was abfes:

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Current:
Federal $ 19: $ 42 $ (4.2
Foreign 110.2 79.4 85.¢
State 0.¢ 1.2 0.t
130.t 84.¢ 82.1
Deferred:
Federal (50.9) 0.2 (9.2
Foreign 0.2 (7.5 1.7
State (0.5) (0.5) (0.5)
(50.7) (7.9 (8.0
Total $ 798 $ T77.C $ 741

The differences between the provision for incomxesaand income taxes computed using the U.S. festatatory rate were as follows:

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Amount computed using statutory rate $ 95E5 $ 1032 $ 104.¢
(Reduction) increase in taxes resulting from:
Net impact from repatriating foreign earnings airéat foreign tax credite  (21.5) 8.4 (8.9
Foreign income taxes (26.9) (24.7) (21.9)
Impact of non-deductible intangible impairments 23.7 12.€ —
Impact of non-deductible currency translation Igsse 5.7 — —
Impact of changes in Mexican legislation and reson of tax assets — (20.9) (3.2
Other changes in valuation allowances for defeta@dassets 2.7 (0.3 2.1
Foreign and domestic tax audit settlement and adprsts (2.0) (3.9 (2.9
Other 21 0.8 2.€
Total $ 796 $ T77.C $ 741
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The effective tax rates are below the U.S. stayutaie, primarily reflecting the availability of eess foreign tax credits, as well as lower
foreign effective tax rates. During 2012, the Compeecognized a benefit from repatriating curr@mefgn earnings which resulted in an
excess credit benefit. The Company also incurhedges related to impairment of goodwill and infaleassets and currency translation
adjustments for which no tax benefit can be recaphiAs a result of tax law changes in Mexico, a taxtde was made in 2011 that resul
in a reduction of $20.4 million of deferred taxdikties. The Company also incurred in 2011 addisibcosts of $16.0 million associated with
the repatriation of foreign earnings. Includedhia 2010 net impact from repatriating foreign eageiand direct foreign tax credits ar§6.1
million tax benefit of repatriating high tax foreigarnings and direct foreign tax credits and $28IBon of certain previously unrecognized
foreign tax credit benefits, partially offset byet$29.6 million U.S. tax cost due to additionalajation of low tax foreign earnings in 2010.
Certain prior year components have been recladdifi€onform to current year presentation.

Deferred tax (liabilities) assets were composetheffollowing:

(In millions) 2012 2011
Purchased intangibles $ (38 $ (44.9
Other (6.€) (5.7

Gross deferred tax liabilities (45.9 (49.9)
Credit and net operating loss carry forwards (fietnvecognized tax benefits) 325.( 262.7
Fixed assets basis differences 28.2 25.2
Employee benefits accruals 71.C 60.C
Postretirement benefits 12.C 14.C
Inventory 11.¢ 11.€
Accounts receivable 117 12.5
Depreciation 11.4 9.t
Deferred costs 60.1 79.¢
Liabilities under interest rate swap contracts — 3.8
Capitalized intangibles 26.¢ 24.4
Other accruals 31.€ 30.2

Gross deferred tax assets 589.7 533.t
Valuation allowances (103.]) (96.0

Net deferred tax assets $ 441: § 388.
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At December 29, 2012 , the Company had domester&@dnd state net operating loss carry forward®df9 million , separate state net
operating loss carry forwards of $108.8 milliomddoreign net operating loss carry forwards of %44million . Of the total foreign and
domestic net operating loss carry forwards, $5@dillon expire at various dates from 2013 to 2032, whiterémainder have unlimited live
During 2012 , the Company realized net cash benefi$10.1 million related to foreign net operatiogs carry forwards. At December 29,
2012 and December 31, 2011 , the Company had estinfiareign tax credit carry forwards of $189.0lioil and $123.2 million ,
respectively, most of which expire in the years2€@irough 2023 if not utilized. Deferred costs @12 include assets of $55.5 million related
to advanced payment agreements entered into lgothpany with its foreign subsidiaries, which arpested to reverse over the next three
years. At December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011 Ctmpany had valuation allowances against certeferigl tax assets totaling
$103.1 million and $96.0 million , respectively.€le valuation allowances relate to tax assetgistjations where it is management's best
estimate that there is not a greater than 50 peprebability that the benefit of the assets wéliealized in the associated tax returns. This
assessment is based upon expected future domesiits; future foreign dividends from then curngedir earnings and cash flows and other
foreign source income, including rents and roysjtaes well as anticipated gains related to futalessof land held for development near the
Company's Orlando, Florida headquarters. In additertain tax planning transactions may be entgrtedo facilitate realization of these
benefits. The likelihood of realizing the benefitdeferred tax assets is assessed on an ongoiitg Bassequently, future material changes in
the valuation allowance are possible. Subject ttatedevelopments, it is possible that the Compaay release a material portion of the
valuation allowance in 2013. The credit and netraipeg loss carryforwards increased by $62.3 milliprimarily impacted by an increase to
federal foreign tax credit carryforwards, as wellircreases in various foreign net operating losBes decrease in deferred costs of $19.7
million is due to the timing of payments receivettlar advanced transaction agreements enteredunitigdhe current and prior year.

The Company paid income taxes in 2012 , 2011 ad@ 20$106.4 million , $95.4 million and $80.7 rah , respectively. The Compa
has a foreign subsidiary which receives a tax lglithat expires in 2020. The net benefit of thid ather expired tax holidays was $4.1
million , $3.6 million and $0.8 million in 2012 P21 and 2010 , respectively.

As of December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011Cdmepany's gross unrecognized tax benefit was $2#lion and $28.6 million ,
respectively. The Company estimates that approxiy&21.3 million of the unrecognized tax benefitsecognized, would impact the
effective tax rate. A reconciliation of the begimgiand ending amount of unrecognized tax benefiés ifollows:

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010

Balance, beginning of year $ 28¢€ $ 27 $ 531
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear 2.1 3.t 10.t
Additions for tax positions of prior year 2.7 4.€ 2.8
Reduction for tax positions of prior years (2.6) 4.7 (27.2)
Settlements (1.7) (0.2 (11.9)
Reductions for lapse in statute of limitations (4.5 (1.3 (0.9
Impact of foreign currency rate changes versuditise dollar 0.2 (0.6 0.2

Balance, end of year $ 24¢ $§ 28€ $§ 27:

Interest and penalties related to uncertain takipos in the Company's global operations are medras a component of the provision
for income taxes. Accrued interest and penaltie®g.9 million and $5.8 million as of December 2912 and December 31, 2011 ,
respectively. Interest and penalties included egdtovision for income taxes totaled $0.3 millidi,2 million and $0.8 million for 2012 ,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

During the year ended December 29, 2012 , the akfsuuncertain tax positions decreased $4.5 omiltiue to the expiration of the
statute of limitations in various jurisdictions.&hccrual also increased for positions being takeimg the year in various tax filings. The
accrual is further impacted by changes in foreigghange rates.
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During the year ended December 31, 2011 , the Coyngettled certain tax positions in various foredgiintries which included a
payment of $0.4 million of interest and taxes. Agsult of the settlement, the Company's unreceghiax benefit decreased by $3.2 million ,
and related accruals for interest and penaltiesedsed by $0.3 million . Also during 2011, the Campreduced its liability by $1.2 million
upon entering into certain advance pricing agredsaen

In the year ended December 25, 2010 , the Comparognized $22.3 million of previously unrecogniferkign tax credit benefits as a
result of the issuance of clarifying tax guidannd #avorable tax developments. In addition, thesgnanrecognized tax benefit decreased by
$1.9 million as a result of favorable audit setts in several foreign jurisdictions. During 20&@& Company settled uncertain Mexican tax
positions with a payment of $15.6 million ( $9.2lrn in tax and $6.4 million in interest), whichas subject to indemnification by a third
party. As a result, the Company's unrecognizedé&mefit decreased by $4.2 million , and relatedusts for interest and penalties decreased
by $7.7 million .

The Company operates globally and files incomerésixrns in the United States federal, various statd foreign jurisdictions. In the
normal course of business, the Company is subijeetamination by taxing authorities throughoutwweld. The Company is no longer
subject to income tax examination in the followingjor jurisdictions: for U.S. federal tax for yedesfore 2002, Australia (2008), Brazil
(2005), China (2002), France (2008), Germany (20@@la (2001), Indonesia (2006), Malaysia (2002¢xico (2005), South Africa (2007)
and Venezuela (2008), with limited exceptions.

The Company estimates that it may settle one oerfayeign audits in the next twelve months that mesult in a decrease in the amount
of accrual for uncertain tax positions of up to8tillion . For the remaining balance as of Decenfi$g 2012 , the Company is not able to
reliably estimate the timing or ultimate settlemantount. While the Company does not currently elxpeterial changes, it is possible that
the amount of unrecognized benefit with respetihéouncertain tax positions will significantly imerse or decrease related to audits in various
foreign jurisdictions that may conclude during thatiod or new developments that could also, in,timpact the Company's assessment
relative to the establishment of valuation allowesagainst certain existing deferred tax assetthisitime, the Company is not able to make
a reasonable estimate of the range of impact obdlace of unrecognized tax benefits or the impadhe effective tax rate related to these
items.

As of December 29, 2012 , the Company had forerghistributed earnings of $1.0 billion where ithetCompany's intent that the
earnings be reinvested indefinitely. Consequetitly,Company has not provided for U.S. deferredrimetaxes on these undistributed
earnings. The determination of the amount of urgatzed deferred U.S. income tax liability assodatéth these undistributed earnings is
not practicable because of the complexities astaatiaith the calculation.

The Company recognized $13.7 million , $9.3 millamd $7.3 million of benefits for deductions asatmil with the exercise of employee
stock options in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respegtividiese benefits were added directly to paid-pite and were not reflected in the
provision for income taxes.

Note 13: Retirement Benefit Plan:

The Company has various defined benefit pensiomsptavering substantially all domestic employeepleyed as of June 30, 2005,
except those employed by BeautiControl, and cegaiployees in other countries. In addition to pdovy pension benefits, the Company
provides certain postretirement healthcare andrigarance benefits for selected U.S. and Canaaigrloyees. Employees may become
eligible for these benefits if they reach normdireenent age while working for the Company or dgteertain age and years of service
requirements. The medical plans are contributoryrfost retirees with contributions adjusted aniyahd contain other costaring feature
such as deductibles and coinsurance. The medimas jihclude an allowance for Medicare for post-§& retirees. Most employees and
retirees outside the United States are coveredbgrgment healthcare programs.
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The Company uses its fiscal year end as the maasuatalate for its plans. The funded status offathe Company's plans was as
follows:

U.S. plans Foreign plans
Pension benefits Postretirement benefits Pension benefits

(In millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Change in benefit obligations:

Beginning balance $ 63€ $ 59z $ 38 $ 36 $ 176.( $ 172
Service cost 0.8 1.1 0.1 0.1 9.1 9.2
Interest cost 2.3 2.€ 1.2 1.€ 6.€ 7.3
Actuarial loss (gain) 5.C 2.3 4.0 3.3 20.2 8.€
Benefits paid (0.9 (1.9 (2.5) (3.9 (14.2) (16.9
Impact of exchange rates — — — — 1.¢ 0.8
Plan participant contributions — — — — 2.1 1.t
Settlements (3.9 (0.2) — — (3.7) (7.€)

Ending balance $ 675 $ 63€ $ 331 $ 38: $ 1981 $ 176.(

Change in plan assets at fair value:

Beginning balance $ 296 $ 27¢ $ — % — $ 80& $ 84.¢
Actual return on plan assets 4.4 2.1 — — 5.1 (0.2
Company contributions 2.1 1.8 2.t 3.2 14.¢ 14.¢
Plan participant contributions — — — — 2.3 1.¢
Benefits and expenses paid (1.2 2.7 (2.5 (3.9 (4.7 (15.6)
Impact of exchange rates — — — — 0.4 2.1
Settlements (3.9 (0.2 — — (2.7 (7.

Ending balance $ 317 $ 29¢& % — 3 — $ 86.6 $ 80.¢

Funded status of plans $ (358 $ (33 $ (33) $ (389 $ (1115 $ (959

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consisted o

December 29, December 31,
(In millions) 2012 2011
Accrued benefit liability $ (180.9) $ (167.9)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (pretax) 76.1 65.2

Items not yet recognized as a component of peresipense as of December 29, 2012 and December B1 c2bsisted of:

2012 2011
Pension Postretirement Pension Postretirement
(In millions) Benefits Benefits Benefits Benefits
Transition obligation $ 04 $ — $ 0t $ —
Prior service benefit (0.2 (5.3 1.3 (6.0
Net actuarial loss 73.t 7.€ 60.1 11.¢
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (pretédk)  73.€  $ 28§ 59 § 5.€
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Components of other comprehensive income (losshfoyears ended December 29, 2012 and Decemb20381 consisted of the
following:

2012 2011
Pension Postretirement Pension Postretirement
(In millions) Benefits Benefits Benefits Benefits
Transition obligation $ — 3 — % 0t $ —
Net prior service cost 11 0.7 0.4 0.7
Net actuarial loss (gain) 13.1 (4.9 7.2 2.8
Other comprehensive income loss (gain) $ 142 $ B7) $ 81 $ 3.€

In 2013 , the Company expects to recognize apprateiy $0.6 million of the prior service benefit adl.1 million of the net actuarial
loss, as components of pension and postretirenxgense.

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defirmzhefit pension plans at December 29, 2012 andrbleee31, 2011 wa$230.1 millior
and $208.1 million , respectively. At December 2812 and December 31, 2011 , the accumulated berifjations of certain pension plans
exceeded those plans' assets. For those plarasdbmulated benefit obligations were $224.4 milkord $170.0 million and the fair value
their assets was $109.8 million and $69.3 millisroADecember 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011 ectsply. The accrued benefit cost for
the pension plans is reported in accrued liabdliiad other long-term liabilities.

The costs associated with all of the Company'sgplegre as follows:

Pension benefits Postretirement benefits
(In millions) 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost and expenses $ 9¢ $ 10 $ 94 $ 01 $ 01 $ 012
Interest cost 8.9 9.¢ 10.C 1.2 1.7 1.8
Return on plan assets (5.6) (5.5 (6.5 — — —
Settlement/Curtailment 1.7 2.8 2.2 — — —
Employee contributions 0.3 0.3 — — — —
Net deferral 4.3 3.9 3.2 (0.4) (0.4) (0.9)
Net periodic benefit cost $ 18¢ $ 211 $ 18: $ 0¢ $ 14 $ 1t
Weighted average assumptions:
U.S. plans
Discount rate, net periodic benefit ¢ 3.7% 4.7% 5.1% 4.C% 5.C% 5.2%
Discount rate, benefit obligations 3.3 3.7 4.7 3.t 4.C 5.C
Return on plan assets 8.3 .3 8.3 n/a n/a n/a
Salary growth rate, net periodic
benefit cost 3.C 5.C 5.C n/a n/a n/a
Salary growth rate, benefit obligatio 3.C 3.C 5.C n/a n/a n/a
Foreign plans
Discount rate 3.3% 3.5% 4.2% n/a n/a n/a
Return on plan assets 4.1 41 4.4 n/a n/a n/a
Salary growth rate 3.1 3.1 3.C n/a n/a n/a
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The Company has established strategic asset atloqagrcentage targets for significant asset ctasstl the aim of achieving an
appropriate balance between risk and return. Thepgany periodically revises asset allocations, wlagmropriate, in an effort to improve
return and manage risk. The expected return ongsaats is determined based on the expected lomg-d¢e of return on plan assets and the
market-related value of plan assets. The markateelvalue of plan assets is based on long-termottions given current investment
objectives and historical results. The expecteel oateturn assumption used by the Company to méterthe benefit obligation for its U.S.
and foreign plans was 8.3 percent and 4.1 peraespgectively, for both 2012 and 2011 .

The Company determines the discount rate primasilyeference to rates of high-quality, long termpowate and government bonds that
mature in a pattern similar to the expected paymnbe made under the plans. The weighted aveliageunt rates used to determine the
benefit obligation was 3.3 percent for both the.ldu& foreign plans in 2012 , and 3.7 percent a@g8rcent , respectively, for 2011 .

The assumed healthcare cost trend rate for 2017 \8gsercent for both post-65 age participantspereb5 age participants, decreasing
to 5.0 percent in 2019 . The healthcare cost tratelassumption could have a significant effecth@enamounts reported. A one percentage
point change in the assumed healthcare cost tegad would have the following effects:

One percentage point

(In millions) Increase  Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost congris $ 01 $ 0.1
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation 1.6 1.7

The Company sponsors a number of pension plateib/bited States and in certain foreign countfié®re are separate investment
strategies in the United States and for each y@tating internationally that depend on the specificumstances and objectives of the plans
and/or to meet governmental requirements. The Cagpaverall strategic investment objectives arpraserve the desired funded status of
its plans and to balance risk and return througlide diversification of asset types, fund strategiad investment managers. The asset
allocation depends on the specific strategic olyjestfor each plan and is rebalanced to obtairndiget asset mix if the percentages fall
outside of the range considered to be acceptahkeinvestment policies are reviewed from time teetito ensure consistency with long-term
objectives. Options, derivatives, forward and fatucontracts, short positions, or margined pogstinay be held in reasonable amounts as
deemed prudent. For plans that are tax-exemptirangactions that would jeopardize this statusatallowed. Lending of securities is
permitted in some cases in which appropriate cosgtén can be realized. The Company's plans dowmest directly in its own stock;
however, this does not mean investment in insuranogany accounts or other commingled or mutuad$uor any index funds may not h
securities of the Company. The investment objestafeeach unit are more specifically outlined below

The Company's weighted-average asset allocatiobs@mber 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011 , by eatsgory, were as follows:

2012 2011
Asset Category U.S. plans Foreign plans U.S. plans Foreign plans
Equity securities 62% 2% 62% 24%
Fixed income securities 37 12 37 13
Cash and money market investments 1 7 1 8
Guaranteed contracts — 51 — 54
Other — 1 — 1
Total 10C% 100% 10C% 100%
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The fair value of the Company's pension plan asgdi®ecember 29, 2012 by asset category is asmsilo

Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
December 29, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description of Assets(in millions) 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Domestic plans:
Common/collective trust (a) $ 317 $ — $ 317 $ —
Foreign plans:
Australia  Investment fund (b) 5.€ — 5.6 —
Switzerland Guaranteed insurance contract ( 35.2 — — 35.2
Germany  Guaranteed insurance contract (c) 5.€ — — 5.€
Belgium  Mutual fund (d) 19.¢ 19.¢ —
Austria Guaranteed insurance contract (c) 0.t — — 0.t
Korea Guaranteed insurance contract ( 3.1 — — 3.1
Japan Common/collective trust (e) 7.3 — 7.3 —
Money market fund (e) 4.8 4.8 — —
Philippines Fixed income securities (f) 2.€ 2.6 — —
Equity funds (f) 2.C 2.0 — —
Total $ 118.: $ 29 $ 44.¢€ $ 44.4

The fair value of the Company's pension plan asgdiecember 31, 2011 by asset category is asmsilo

Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
December 31, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description of Assets(in millions) 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Domestic plans:
Common/collective trust (a) $ 29.¢ $ — $ 29.¢ $ —
Foreign plans:
Australia  Investment fund (b) 5.C — 5.C —
Switzerland Guaranteed insurance contract 33.¢ — — 33.¢
Germany  Guaranteed insurance contract (c) 5.€ — — 5.€
Belgium  Mutual fund (d) 16.1 16.1 — —
Austria Euro bond fund (g) 1.C 1.C — —
Guaranteed insurance contract 0.5 — — 0.t
Korea Guaranteed insurance contract (c) 2.8 — — 2.€
Japan Common/collective trust (e) 7.4 — 7.4 —
Money market fund (e) 4.€ 4.€ — —
Philippines Fixed income securities (f) 3.1 3.1 — —
Money market fund (f) 0.7 0.7 — —
Total $ 110t $ 255 $ 422 $ 42.¢
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(@)

(b)

()

(d)

()

(f)

(9)

The investment strategy of the U.S. pension plaré&eh period presented is to seek to achieveygsmta return greater than or equi
the return that would have been earned by a partifovested approximately 60 percent in equity sities and 40 percent in fixed
income securities for both periods. As of eacthefyears ended December 29, 2012 and Decembe®B1, 2he common trusts held
62 percent of its assets in equity securities, &¢gnt in fixed income securities and the remaiaimgpunts in cash and money markets.
The percentage of invested funds in equity seesrdt the end of both 2012 and 2011 , includeghe3@ent in large U.S. stocks, 20
percent small U.S. stocks and 10 percent in intemnal stocks. The common trusts are comprisedhafes or units in commingled
funds that are not publicly traded. The underlyasgets in these funds (equity securities and fixeaime securities) are valued using
guoted market prices.

For each period presented, the strategy sffthid is to achieve a long-term net return okast 4 percent above inflation based on the
Australian consumer price index over a rolling aryperiod. The investment strategy is to investnfygdn equities and property, which
are expected to earn relatively higher returns dvetong term. The fair value of the fund is detiered using the net asset value per
share using quoted market prices or other obsexvaplts in active markets. As of December 29, 281® December 31, 2011 , the
percentage of funds held in investments includagstralian equities of 34 and 35 percent , goverriraed corporate bonds of 11 and
10 percent and cash of 7 and 7 percent , respgtaved other equities of listed companies outsilAustralia of 38 percent , and real
estate of 10 percent in each year.

The strategy of the Company's plans in Austriantey, Korea and Switzerland is to seek to enswdutture benefit payments of th
participants and manage market risk. This is adddwy funding the pension obligations through goted insurance contracts. The
plan assets operate similar to investment contkaleéseby the interest rate, as well as the surreralae, is guaranteed. The fair value
is determined as the contract value, using a gteedrrate of return which will increase if the metrgkerformance exceeds that return.
The strategy of the Belgian plan in each pkpesented is to seek to achieve each year argteater than or equal to the return that
would have been earned by a portfolio invested@pprately 60 percent in equity securities and 4@et in fixed income securities.
The fair value of the fund is calculated using tie¢ asset value per share as determined by thedjowdrket prices of the underlying
investments. As of December 29, 2012 and Decenthe2@®L1 , the percentage of funds held in investmiecluded: large-cap equities
of European companies of 34 and 28 percent , stagllequities of European companies of 18 and 2fkepéer equities outside of
Europe, mainly in the U.S. and emerging marketd,1odnd 14 percent , and the remaining amountsgoprimarily from European
and U.S. governments, of 37 and 38 percent , réspbc

The Company's strategy for each period presestto invest approximately 60 percent of assebenefit from the higher expected
returns from long-term investments in equities tmthvest 40 percent of assets in short-term lovestment risk instruments to fund
near term benefits payments. The target allocdtioplan assets to implement this strategy is 5@q@ equities in Japanese listed
securities, 7 percent in equities outside of Japah43 percent in cash and other shemn investments. The equity investment has |
achieved through a collective trust that held 6d @2 percent in total funded assets as of Dece@he2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively. Of the amount held in the collectiuest as of the end of both 2012 and 2011 , 88gmtn@as invested in Japanese
equities, while 12 percent was invested in equitfesompanies based outside of Japan. The faiewaflthe collective trust is
determined by the market value of the underlyingreb, which are traded in active markets. At yedr2012 and 2011, 39 and 38
percent of the plan assets were held in a monekehfund. The money market fund is a highly ligindestment and is valued using
guoted market prices in active markets.

In 2012, the investment strategy in the Plpiliies is to achieve an appropriate balance betwsleland return, from a diversified
portfolio of Philippine peso denominated bonds aqdities. The target asset class allocations @ebdent in equity securities, 38
percent fixed income securities and 5 percent & @and deposits. The fixed income securities at ged were valued using quoted bid
prices on similarly termed government securitigse €quity index fund was valued at the closinggdtthe active market in which it
was traded. In 2011, the strategy was to invelvinrisk domestic fixed income earnings securitiesluding but not limited to
Philippine peso denominated treasury bills, treabonds, treasury notes and other government s$iesuitilly guaranteed by the
Philippine government.

In 2011, these amounts represented highhdrateo government bonds. The fair value of the Hand was determined using quoted
market prices of the underlying assets includetthénfund.
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The following table presents a reconciliation @ tieginning and ending balances of the fair valaasurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3):

Year Ending
December 29, December 31,
2012 2011
Beginning balance $ 42¢  $ 40.2
Realized gains 0.8 1.1
Purchases, sales and settlements, net (0.2 0.€
Impact of exchange rates 0.6 0.9
Ending balance $ 4.4 % 42.¢

The Company expects to contribute $16.4 millioit¢dJ).S. and foreign pension plans and $2.8 miltmits other U.S. postretirement
benefit plan in 2013 .

The Company also has several savings, thrift aofitfgharing plans. Its contributions to these glare in part based upon various levels
of employee participation. The total cost of thpkms was $8.7 million , $8.7 million and $8.9 moitl for 2012 , 2011 and 201 0espectively

The following benefit payments, which reflect extgetfuture service, as appropriate, are expectée fmaid from the Company's U.S.
and foreign plans:

Years Pension benefits Postretirement benefits Subsidy receipts Total

2013 $14.: $3.2 $0.2 $17.2
2014 21.¢ 3.2 0.2 24.F
2015 13.C 3.2 0.2 15.¢
2016 14.¢ 3.1 0.2 17.€
2017 37.¢ 3.C 0.2 40.5
2018-2022 87.1 13.2 1.7 99.2

Included in the postretirement benefits in thegadilove are expected payments for prescription lokeugfits. As a result of the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization &c2003, the Company expects subsidies of $3lmifrom 2013 through 2022
related to these prescription drug benefits.

Note 14:  Incentive Compensation Plan

On May 12, 2010, the shareholders of the Compapyoapd the adoption of the Tupperware Brands Cartpmr 2010 Incentive Plan
(the “2010 Incentive Plan”). The 2010 IncentiverPfaovides for the issuance of cash and stock-basedtive awards to employees,
directors and certain non-employee participantciSbased awards may be in the form of performamezrds, stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock awards astticted stock unit awards. Under the plan, awéndsare canceled or expire are added back
to the pool of available shares. When the 2010rtiee Plan was approved, the number of shareseo€thmpany's common stock available
for stock-based awards under the plan totaled 40080, plus any remaining shares available foragsa under the Tupperware Brands
Corporation 2006 Incentive Plan and the Tuppeniaiesmds Corporation Director Stock Plan. Shares nmlpnger be granted under these
plans. The total number of shares available fontguader the 2010 Incentive Plan as of Decembe@82 was 3,950,003 .

Under the 2010 Incentive Plan, non-employee dirsataceive one-half of their annual retainers aftirm of stock and may elect to
receive the balance of their annual retainerserfolm of stock or cash. In addition, each non-@ygé director is eligible to receive a stock
award in such form, at such time and in such amasmhay be determined by the Nominating and Gonmem&ommittee of the Board of
Directors.
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Stock Options

Stock options to purchase the Company's commork st@cgranted to employees, upon approval by thepg@aay's Board of Directors,
with an exercise price equal to the fair marketigadf the stock on the date of grant. Options gelydbecome exercisable in three years , in
equal installments beginning one year from the daggant, and generally expire 10 years from thte @f grant. The fair value of the
Company's stock options was estimated on the dafeant using the Black-Scholes optipricing model with the following weighted averz
assumptions:

2012 2011 2010
Dividend yield 2.5% 2.1% 2.7%
Expected volatility 39% 40% 40%
Risk-free interest rate 1.2% 1.€% 2.0%
Expected life 8 year: 8 year. 8 year:

Stock option activity for 2012 , under all of ther@pany's incentive plans, is summarized in thetalhg table:

Weighted Aggregate
Shares subject  average exercise Intrinsic Value
Stock options to option price per share (in millions)
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 3,153,501 $31.4:
Granted 382,85( 61.1C
Exercised (600,43 22.37
Outstanding at December 29, 2012 2,935,91! $37.1t $ 74.C
Exercisable at December 29, 2012 2,202,60! $30.5¢ $ 70.1

The intrinsic value of options exercised during202011 and 2010 totaled $23.5 million , $24.llioriland $22.0 million , respectively.
The average remaining contractual life on outstagdind exercisable options was 6.2 years and &3 yeespectively, at the end of 2012 .
The weighted average estimated grant date faieval 2012 , 2011 and 2010 option grants was $1919.37 and $15.71 per share,
respectively.

Performance Awards, Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The Company also grants performance awards, restratock and restricted stock units to employeesdirectors. The Company has
time-vested and performance-vested awards, whizbally have initial vesting periods ranging fromeoto six years Compensation expen
associated with restricted stock and restrictedkstmits is equal to the market value of the Comgfsacommon stock on the date of grant, and
for time-vested awards, is recorded on a straiigletibasis over the required service period.

The Company's performance-vested awards, granter its performance share plan, provide incentpootunity based on the overall
success of the Company, as reflected through ¢astahd earnings per share achieved over a these performance period. The program is
based upon a pre-defined number of performance shats, and depending on achievement under tHerpgance measures, the number of
shares actually vested can be up to 150 percesfitawés initially granted. The awards have been nmattee Company's common stock, and
the Company records expense on these awards basked probability of achieving the performance dtads over the three-year
performance period.

In 2012 , as a result of improved performance Ghmpany increased the estimated number of shapex®d to vest by a total of 9,435
shares for the three performance share plans rgrhiring 2012 .
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Restricted stock, restricted stock units, and perémce share award activity for 2012 under alhef€Company's incentive plans is
summarized in the following table:

Non-vested Shares Weighted average

outstanding grant date fair value
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 945,26! $34.9:
Granted 167,62 60.6¢
Performance share adjustments 9,43¢ 55.4¢
Vested (319,02) 29.15
Forfeited (3,26)) 48.71
Outstanding at December 29, 2012 800,04: $43.0:

The grant date fair value of performance awardsgrioted stock and restricted stock units veste2Dih?2 , 2011 and 2010 was $19.6
million , $17.3 million and $11.8 million , respeatly. The weighted-average grant-date fair valaeghare of these awards in 2012 , 2011
and 2010 was $60.69 , $56.26 and $46.59 , respéctiv

Compensation expense associated with performanasdayrestricted stock and restricted stock uhas $ettle in stock is equal to the
market value of the shares on the date of grantsaaretorded pro rata over the requisite serviecgeFor awards which are paid in cash,
compensation expense is remeasured each repoeiitglfpased on the market value of the sharessingdluded as a liability on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Shares outstandihgcash settled awards totaled 7,071 , 7,530 argb1&hares as of December 29, 2012 ,
December 31, 2011 and December 25, 2010 , respBctivhese cash settled awards had a fair val$® df million as of December 29, 2012
and December 31, 2011 .

Compensation expense associated with all empldpe&-based compensation was $20.1 million , $18IBom and $14.8 million in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The estim@etenefit associated with this compensation espevas $7.2 million , $6.5 million and
$5.4 million in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectivély of December 29, 2012otal unrecognized stock based compensation eepetated 1
all stock based awards was $20.9 million , whickxigected to be recognized over a weighted avgraged of 24 months.

Expense related to earned cash performance awb$@2 @ million , $18.7 million and $23.6 millionag included in the Consolidated
Statements of Income for 2012 , 2011 and 201(pectrely.

Under an open market share repurchase prograrorigatally began in 2007, the Company's Board okbtors, in February 2010,
increased to $350 million the amount that couldent on repurchases until February 1, 2015. Thegaay expected, at that time, to use
proceeds from stock option exercises and excessgeaserated by the business to offset dilution@ased with the Company's equity
incentive plans, with the intention of keeping thenber of shares outstanding at about 63 millionJanuary 2011, the Company's board
increased the authorization by $250 million to $6fiDion , in October 2011, increased the authdimaby $600 million to $1.2 billion and
finally in January 2013 increased the authorizalipi$800 million to $2 billion . The authorizatiearrently has an expiration date of
February 1, 2017.

During 2012, 2011 and 2010 , the Company repuszh&s3 million , 7.1 million and 1.3 million sharasan aggregate cost of $200.0
million , $426.1 million and $60.3 million , resgeely. Since inception of the program in May 20 through December 29, 2012 , the
Company had repurchased 15.5 million shares aggregate cost of $827.7 million .

Note 15:  Segment Informatior

The Company manufactures and distributes a broettbfpo of products, primarily through independelitect sales consultants. Certain
operating segments have been aggregated basedapsiatency of economic substance, geography, ptedoroduction process, class of
customers and distribution method.
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Effective with the first quarter of 2011, the Comgahanged its segment reporting to reflect thegggguhic distribution of its businesses
in accordance with how it views the operationsc8ithe acquisition of the direct-to-consumer busses of Sara Lee Corporation in 2005,
certain segments previously aggregated in a "Beathgr" segment changed such that both Tupperwatdaauty and personal care
products contribute significantly to sales and prefhich changed the way these businesses havedpsated. Consequently, the Company
no longer has a Beauty Other segment, and the dsssis previously reported in that segment are aparted as follows: Tupperware Brar
Philippines in Asia Pacific; the Company's Cenfalerica businesses in Tupperware North AmericaNtbgimetics businesses in Europe
and Asia Pacific (as applicable); and the busireeBs&outh America as a separate geographic seg@emiparable information from 2010
has been reclassified to conform to the new prasient

The Company's reportable segments include thevioily

Europe Primarily design-centric preparation, storage ardiag solutions for the kitchen
and home through the Tupperwarbrand. Europe also includes Avroy Shlaamd
Asia Pacific Nutrimetics® units that sell beauty and personal care prodésis. Pacific also

— sells beauty and personal care products in sorite ofits under the NaturCafe
Tupperware North America Nutrimetics® and Fullef brands.

Premium cosmetics, skin care and personal caraiptednarketed under the
Armand Dupreé€ and BeautiContrdt brands in the United States, Canada and
Beauty North America Puerto Rico and the Armand Dupfeand Fuller Cosmetic® brands in Mexico
and Central America.

Both housewares and beauty products under therFuluvo® and Tupperwaré

South America brands.

Worldwide sales of beauty and personal care predotaled $610.5 million , $679.8 million and $6&illion in 2012 , 2011 and 2010
respectively.

(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Net sales:
Europe $ 791 % 848.¢ $ 796.(
Asia Pacific 780.7 714.( 584.(
Tupperware North America 344.¢ 352.( 331t
Beauty North America 348.: 395.t 406.(
South America 318.¢ 274.¢ 182.¢
Total net sales $ 2,583¢ $ 2,585.( $  2,300.
Segment profit:
Europe $ 131¢ $ 1481 $ 147.1
Asia Pacific 172.7 147.( 111.¢
Tupperware North America 63.7 58.¢ 52.¢
Beauty North America 30.2 37.¢ 58.¢
South America 61.C 48.¢ 24.¢
Total segment profit 459.; 440.2 395.(
Unallocated expenses (62.€) (58.9) (56.¢)
Re-engineering and impairment charges (a) (22.9 (7.9 (7.6)
Impairment of goodwill and intangibles (b) (76.9 (36.2) (4.3
Gains on disposal of assets (c) 7.6 3.€ 0.2
Interest expense, net (d) (32.9 (45.¢) (26.9)
Income before taxes $ 272.¢  $ 2950 % 299.7
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(In millions) 2012 2011 2010
Depreciation and amortization:
Europe $ 20.7 % 21 % 20.2
Asia Pacific 10.1 9.2 10.€
Tupperware North America 7.€ 8.4 8.5
Beauty North America 5.2 6.4 6.¢
South America 2.1 2.1 1.2
Corporate 3.¢ 2.4 2.2
Total depreciation and amortization $ 49.¢ $ 49.¢ $ 49.7
Capital expenditures:
Europe $ 247 % 34.. % 26.1
Asia Pacific 23.: 11.€ 11.5
Tupperware North America 10.1 9.4 7.2
Beauty North America 3.8 3.¢ 3.2
South America 11.€ 6.4 4.1
Corporate 1.¢€ 8.2 3.7
Total capital expenditures $ 75.€ $ 73¢ $ 56.1
Identifiable assets:
Europe $ 385.. % 395.¢ $ 397.%
Asia Pacific 331.C 331.¢ 350.¢
Tupperware North America 140.( 143.¢ 178.5
Beauty North America 320.: 337.¢ 380.4
South America 114.¢ 105.¢ 95.1
Corporate 529.¢ 508.- 588.¢
Total identifiable assets $ 1,821.¢ $ 1,822t % 1,991

a. There-engineering and impairment chargesiticledes severance expenses and other exit cedN&e 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

b.  Reviews of the value of the intangible asselsted to the acquisition of the Sara Lee direateiesumer units acquired in 2005 and
BeautiControl acquired in 2000, resulted in theatasion that certain of the tradenames and goodhaidl been impaired. This resulted
in charges of $76.9 million related to BeautiCohtiaturCare and Nutrimetics in 2012 and $36.lionllrelated to Nutrimetics in
2011. In 2010, the Company recorded an impairme$ig @ million related to Swissgarde in connectigth a decision to cease
operating that unit as a separate business. Sex@\otthe Consolidated Financial Statements.

C. Gains on disposal of assets in 2012 include8 #ifllion from the sale of a facility in Belgiur80.2 millionfrom insurance proceeds
to a flood in Venezuela and $0.2 million from equgnt sales. In 2011, the Company recorded a pgetisxfrom insurance proceeds of
$3.0 million , net of cost, related to a flood imgtralia, as well as $0.7 million related to thke s land held for development near the
Company's Orlando, Florida headquarters. In 20 Ctompany recognized a $0.2 million gain on the shproperty by Nutrimetics
Australia.

d. In 2011, the Company recorded $19.8 milliombarest expense related to the impairment of ésterate swaps and the write off of
deferred debt costs in conjunction with the eaxiynguishment of debt. See Note 7 to the Consaidi&inancial Statements, under the
caption Use of Proceeds.
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Sales and segment profit in the preceding tablérane transactions with customers, with inter-segtofit eliminated. Sales generated
by product line, except beauty and personal carepposed to Tupperwdate are not captured in the financial statements,disclosure of
the information is impractical. Sales to a singistomer did not exceed 10 percent of total salemynsegment. Sales of Tupperware and
beauty products to customers in Mexico were $464liBon , $436.5 million and $421.0 million in 2012011 and 2010 , respectively. There
was no other foreign country in which sales wedbvildually material to the Company's total salesleS of Tupperware and beauty products
to customers in the United States were $244.7anilli$264.3 million and $265.4 million in 2012 ,120and 2010 , respectively. Unallocated
expenses are corporate expenses and other iterdgexity related to the operations of any paracidegment.

Corporate assets consist of cash and buildingsissets maintained for general corporate purposesf the end of 2012 , 2011 and
2010, respectively, long-lived assets in the WhBgates were $85.5 million , $81.2 million and f7million .

As of December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011Cdmepany's net investment in international openstiwas $562.1 million and
$566.3 million , respectively. The Company is subje the usual economic, business and politisklsrassociated with international
operations; however, these risks are partiallygatéd by the broad geographic dispersion of thef2aryls operations.

Note 16:  Commitments and Contingencie

The Company and certain subsidiaries are involadiigation and various legal matters that arengelefended and handled in the
ordinary course of business. Included among thexéens are environmental issues. The Company dutdaciude estimated future legal
costs in accruals recorded related to these mafteesCompany believes that it is remote that then@any's contingencies will have a
material adverse effect on its financial positicesults of operations or cash flow.

Kraft Foods, Inc., which was formerly affiliatedtviPremark International, Inc., the Company's farpsrent, and Tupperware, has
assumed any liabilities arising out of certain dieel or discontinued businesses. The liabilitissimed include matters alleging product
liability, environmental liability and infringemeif patents. As part of the acquisition of the dif-consumer businesses of Sara Lee
Corporation in December 2005, that company indeigthihe Company for any liabilities arising outasfy existing litigation at that time and
for certain legal matters arising out of circumstmthat might relate to periods before or afterdhte of the acquisition.

Leases. Rental expense for operating leases totaled $3Rlidmin 2012 , $34.3 million in 2011 and $29.6lhain in 2010 . Approximate
minimum rental commitments under non-cancelableaipg leases in effect at December 29, 2012 wag#&3 - $33.0 million ; 2014 - $23.7
million ; 2015 - $13.5 million ; 2016 - $8.8 millio; 2017 - $7.6 million ; and after 2017 - $9.5lioil . Leases included in the minimum ret
commitments for 2013 and 2014 primarily relategtasle agreements for automobiles which generallg hdgase term of 2 - 3 years with the
remaining leases related to office, manufacturimg distribution space. It is common for lease agw@s to contain various provisions for
items such as step rent or other escalation clarsgtease concessions, which may offer a perietboént payment. These types of items
considered by the Company, and are recorded irgerese on a straight line basis over the minimursdéarms. There are no material lease
agreements containing renewal options. Certairelessquire the Company to pay property taxes, amag and routine maintenance.

Note 17:  Allowance for Long-Term Receivable:

As of December 29, 2012, $24.5 million of longrtereceivables from both active and inactive custsmesre considered past due, the
majority of which were reserved through the Compaajlowance for uncollectible accounts.

83




Table of Contents

The balance of the allowance for long-term recdesls of December 29, 2012 was as follows (inons):

Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 23.c
Write-offs (4.¢)
Provision (a) 3.7
Currency translation adjustment 0.2

Balance at December 29, 2012 $ 22.4

(&) Provision includes $1.9 million of reclagsations from current receivables.

Note 18: Guarantor Information

The Company's payment obligations under the Séhabes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed értain "Tupperware" trademarks
and service marks owned by the Guarantor, as diedus Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statesne

Condensed consolidated financial information aB@fember 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and forettues ended December 29,
2012 , December 31, 2011 and December 25, 20IDuigperware Brands Corporation (the "Parent"), Dattistries Inc. (the "Guarantor")
and all other subsidiaries (the "Non-Guarantors'gs follows. Each entity in the consolidating fio@l information follows the same
accounting policies as described in the consoldifitmncial statements, except for the use by trem and Guarantor of the equity method
of accounting to reflect ownership interests inssdiaries which are eliminated upon consolidatiate that the Guarantor is 100% ownec
the Parent, and there are certain entities withénNon-Guarantors classification that the Paremtsoslirectly. There are no significant
restrictions on the ability of either the Parenttar Guarantor from obtaining adequate funds frogir respective subsidiaries by dividend or
loan that should interfere with their ability to et¢heir operating needs or debt repayment obtigati
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

(In millions)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Deferred income tax benefits, net
Non-trade amounts receivable, net
Intercompany receivables
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Deferred income tax benefits, net
Property, plant and equipment, net
Long-term receivables, net
Trademarks and tradenames
Other intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Investments in subsidiaries
Intercompany notes receivable
Other assets, net
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY

Accounts payable
Short-term borrowings and current portion of

long-term debt and capital lease obligations

Intercompany payables
Accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Intercompany notes payable
Other liabilities
Shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity

December 29, 2012

Parent Guarantor  Non-Guarantors  Eliminations Total
$ — $ 02 $ 119.¢ $ — $ 119¢
— — 173. — 173.

— — 313.¢ — 313.¢

4.8 46.€ 43.c — 94.¢

— 3.2 35.¢ — 39.C
152.( 378.( 415. (945.2) —
1.4 65.€ 111.( (152.9) 25.5
158.2 494.( 1,212. (1,098.) 766.5
82.¢ 174.2 102.( — 359.1
— 32.4 266.< — 298.¢

— 0.1 24 — 24.¢

— — 138.¢ — 138.¢

— — 5.C — 5.C

— 2.6 190.( — 192.¢
1,417.( 2,195.( — (3,612.() —
81.F 578.: 1,677«  (2,337.) —
4.5 7.¢ 86.2 (62.9) 36.2
$1,744.. $3,484. $  3,702! $ (7,109.) $1,821.¢
$ — $ 2€ $ 1522 $ — $ 154.¢
37.C — 166.¢ — 203.¢
343. 556. 45.7 (945.2) —
116.¢ 96.7 275.¢ (152.9) 336.:
496.¢ 655.¢ 640.2 (1,098.) 694.5
396.¢ — 18.C — 414.¢
346.¢ 1,330.! 659.1 (2,337.) —
24.¢€ 77.5 193.¢ (62.9) 233.¢
479.1 1,421 2,190.° (3,612.() 479.1
$1,744.. $3,484." $ 3,702t $ (7,109.)) $1,821.¢
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

December 31, 2011

(In millions) Parent Guarantor  Non-Guarantors  Eliminations Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ — 1¢ $ 136.: $ — $ 138.
Accounts receivable, net — — 163.% — 163.%
Inventories — — 302.t — 302.t
Deferred income tax benefits, net 5.5 44.¢ 441 — 94.2
Non-trade amounts receivable, net 0.4 10.1 37.C — 47.t
Intercompany receivables 1,674  3,757.: 257. (5,689.) —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1.2 1€ 83.C (62.5) 23.2
Total current assets 1,681.¢ 3,815. 1,024.; (5,752.) 769.4
Deferred income tax benefits, net 68.7 128.7 120.: — 317.¢
Property, plant and equipment, net — 28.7 244.¢ — 273.1
Long-term receivables, net — 0.1 23.1 — 23.2
Trademarks and tradenames — — 157.1 — 157.1
Other intangible assets, net — — 7.2 — 7.2
Goodwill — 2.6 238.t — 241.¢
Investment in subsidiaries 2,695.( 1,734.¢ — (4,429.9 —
Intercompany notes receivable 85.¢ 506.( 1,088.! (1,680.9) —
Other assets, net 34.¢ 7.8 130.( (138.9) 33.6
Total assets $4,566. $6,224.: $ 3,033.0 $(12,001.) $1,822.¢
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY
Accounts payable $ — $ — $ 157 $ — $ 157.C
Short-term borrowings and current portion of
long-term debt and capital lease obligations — — 195.% — 195.%
Intercompany payables 3,270.C 2,415t 4.2 (5,689.) —
Accrued liabilities 35.t 116.1 270.¢ (101.5) 320.t
Total current liabilities 3,305.8 2,531.¢ 627.5 (5,791.) 673.
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 396.1 — 19.1 — 415.2
Intercompany notes payable 342.¢ 1,337 — (1,680.9) —
Other liabilities 20.7 112.¢ 199.t (99.9 233.2
Shareholders' equity 500.6 2,242 2,187.. (4,429.9) 500.¢
Total liabilities and shareholders'
equity $4,566.( $6,224.. $ 3,033.0 $(12,001.) $1,822.¢
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Consolidating Statement of Income

Year Ended December 29, 2012

(In millions) Parent Guarantor Non-Guarantors  Eliminations Total
Net sales $ — 3 — $ 2,591.0 $ (7.5) $ 2,583.¢
Other revenue — 128.2 30.¢ (159.0 —
Cost of products sold — 30.¢ 992.( (166.5) 856.4
Gross margin — 97.: 1,630.: — 1,727«
Delivery, sales and administrative expenst 21.7 55.¢ 1,252.¢ — 1,329.!
Re-engineering and impairment charges — — 22.4 — 22.4
Impairment of goodwill and intangible asse — — 76.¢ — 76.¢
Gains on disposal of assets including
insurance recoveries, net — 0.t 7.4 — 7.6
Operating (loss) income (21.9) 42.¢ 285.¢ — 306.t
Interest income 1.€ 30.¢ 4.¢ (34.9 2.t
Interest expense 28.1 20.¢ 21.2 (34.9 34.¢
Income from equity investments in
subsidiaries 223.¢ 180.¢ — (404.¢ —
Other expense — 1.C & — .3
Income before income taxes 175.€ 232.7 269.1 (404.¢ 272.¢
Provision for income taxes (17.9 11.2 86.C — 79.¢
Net income $ 193.C $ 221t $ 183.1 $ (404.6) $ 193.(
Comprehensive income $ 2172 $ 248¢ $ 178.¢ $ (427.9) $ 217.:
Consolidating Statement of Income
Year Ended December 31, 2011
(In millions) Parent Guarantor Non-Guarantors  Eliminations Total
Net sales $ — 3 — $ 2,591 $ (6.1) $ 2,585.(
Other revenue — 101.¢ 12.: (114.9 —
Cost of products sold — 12.£ 970.¢ (120.9 862.t
Gross margin — 89.t 1,633.( — 1,722.!
Delivery, sales and administrative expens¢ 20.¢ 42.¢ 1,276.. — 1,340.(
Re-engineering and impairment charges — — 7.6 — 7.¢
Impairment of goodwill and intangible asse¢ — — 36.1 — 36.1
Gains on disposal of assets including
insurance recoveries, net — 3.C 0.8 — 3.8
Operating (loss) income (20.9) 49.€ 313.¢ — 342.:
Interest income 2.C 33.1 10.t (42.9 3.2
Interest expense 46.¢ 15.C 29.t (42.9) 49.C
Income from equity investments in
subsidiaries 260.t 222.¢ — (483.9 —
Other expense 0.1 — 11 — 1.2
Income before income taxes 194.¢ 290.¢ 293.t (483.9 295.¢
Provision for income taxes (23.7) 35.¢€ 65.1 — 77.C
Net income $ 2185 $ 255.( % 228« $ (483.H $ 218:
Comprehensive income $ 169.5 $ 187¢ $ 194.C $ (381.9 $ 169.
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Consolidating Statement of Income

Year Ended December 25, 2010

(In millions) Parent Guarantor Non-Guarantors  Eliminations Total
Net sales $ — 3 — 3 2,303t $ (3.2 $ 2,300.
Other revenue — 56.¢ 16.C (72.9 —
Cost of products sold — 16.1 826.2 (76.7) 766.2
Gross margin — 40.¢ 1,493.. — 1,534.:
Delivery, sales and administrative expens 17.7 49.1 1,126. — 1,193.:
Re-engineering and impairment charges — — 7.€ — 7.€
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass — — 4.3 — 4.3

Gains on disposal of assets including

insurance recoveries, net — — 0.2 — 0.2
Operating (loss) income 17.7) (8.9 355.¢ — 329.¢
Interest income 2.3 32.t 7.8 (40.7 2.t
Interest expense 28.€ 10.4 30.4 (40.1) 29.2
Income from equity investments in
subsidiaries 253.¢ 272.F — (526.9) —
Other expense — — 2.6 — 2.¢
Income before income taxes 209.¢ 286.: 329.¢ (526.9) 299.7
Provision for income taxes (15.9) 27.1 62.¢ — 74.1
Net income $ 2256 $ 2592 $ 2671 $ (526.9) $ 225.¢
Comprehensive income $ 242¢ $ 272 $ 268.2 $ (540.) $ 242«
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 29, 2012

(In millions) Parent Guarantor Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Operating Activities:
Net cash (used in) provided by

operating activities $ 6440 $ 942 $ 158t $ (157.§) $ 298.7
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures — (10.¢ (65.0 — (75.€)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plan
and equipment — 0.3 10.t — 10.¢
Return of capital 854.¢ — — (854.9) —
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities 854.¢ (10.9 (54.5) (854.9) (64.¢)
Financing Activities:
Dividend payments to shareholders (77.€) — — — (77.€
Dividend payments to parent — — (131.9) 131.5 —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 12.¢ — — — 12.¢
Repurchase of common stock (205.0 — — — (205.0
Repayment of long-term debt and capital
lease obligations — — (2.3 — (2.9
Net change in short-term debt 37.C — (31.0 — 6.C
Excess tax benefits from share-based
payment arrangements 13.t — — — 13.t
Net intercompany notes payable
(receivable) 8.2 (79.9 44.¢ 26.1 —
Return of capital to parent — (854.9 — 854.¢ —
Net cash used in financing
activities (210.9 (934.%) (120.7 1,012, (252.5
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
cash equivalents — 0.8 (0.€) — 0.2
Net change in cash and cash equivalents — 2.7 (16.7) — (18.9
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
year = 1.8 136.¢ — 138.2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of perifd _— $ 02 $ 119.6 $ — $ 119¢

89




Table of Contents

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2011

(In millions) Parent Guarantor Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Operating Activities:
Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities $ 3604 $ (232.0 $ 1298 $ 16.6 $ 274
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures — (2.7 (61.2) — (73.9
Proceeds from disposal of property, plan
and equipment — — 5.C — 5.C
Net cash used in investing
activities — (12.9) (56.2) — (68.9)
Financing Activities:
Dividend payments to shareholders (73.9) — — — (73.9
Dividend payments to parent — — (12.0 12.C —
Net proceeds from issuance of Senior Notes393.: — — — 393.:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 16.1 — — — 16.1
Repurchase of common stock (428.¢) — — — (428.¢
Repayment of long-term debt and capital
lease obligations (405.0) — (2.9 — (407.9)
Net change in short-term debt 0.2 — 193.: — 193.t
Debt issuance costs (3.0 — — — (3.0
Excess tax benefits from share-based
payment arrangements 9.C — — — 9.C
Net intercompany notes payable
(receivable) 111.¢ 195.¢ (278.9) (28.9) —
Net cash (used in) provided by
financing activities (380.9 195.¢ (99.5 (16.¢) (300.9
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
cash equivalents — (1.9 (14.0 — (15.9
Net change in cash and cash equivalents  (20.0) (50.9) (40.2) — (110.5
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
year 20.C 52.2 176.F — 248.%
Cash and cash equivalents at end of perifd _— $ 1¢ $ 136.5 $ — $ 1382
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 25, 2010

(In millions) Parent Guarantor Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total

Operating Activities:
Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities $ 437 $ (4289 $ 299.: % 82 $ 299t
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures — (4.9 (51.9) — (56.1)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plan
and equipment — — 10.C — 10.C
Return of capital 45.C — — (45.0) —
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities 45.C (4.8 (41.9) (45.0 (46.7)
Financing Activities:
Dividend payments to shareholders (63.2) — — — (63.2)
Dividend payments to parent — — (13.29) 13.2 —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 16.¢ — — — 16.¢
Repurchase of common stock (62.5) — — — (62.5)
Repayment of long-term debt and capital
lease obligations — — (2.2 — (2.2
Net change in short-term debt — — 0.2 — 0.2
Excess tax benefits from share-based
payment arrangements 7.C — — — 7.C
Net intercompany notes (receivable)
payable (360.9 485.¢ (120.9 (5.0 —
Return of capital to parent — — (45.0 45.C —
Net cash (used in) provided by
financing activities (462.9) 485.¢ (180.¢ 53.2 (103.9
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
cash equivalents — (9.9 (3.9 — (13.2)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 20.C 42.¢ 73.t — 136.:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
year = 9.4 103.( — 112.¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of periéd _20.C $ 522 § 176.5 $ — $ 248.
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Note 19:  Quarterly Financial Summary (Unaudited)

Following is a summary of the unaudited interimutesof operations for each quarter in the yeadedrDecember 29, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 .

First Second Third Fourth
(In millions, except per share amounts) quarter quarter quarter quarter
Year ended December 29, 2012:
Net sales $ 639.F $ 638.¢ $ 594.. $ 711.(
Gross margin 426.¢ 432.2 394.¢ 473.¢
Net income 58.2 12.7 47.F 74.5
Basic earnings per share 1.04 0.2: 0.8¢ 1.37
Diluted earnings per share 1.0z 0.2z2 0.8t 1.34
Dividends declared per share 0.3€ 0.3¢ 0.3€ 0.3€
Composite stock price range:
High 64.9¢ 64.6: 58.0¢ 67.82
Low 54.8¢ 51.2¢ 50.9( 52.8(
Close 63.5( 54.7¢ 53.5¢ 62.67
Year ended December 31, 2011:
Net sales $ 636.. $ 669.¢ $ 602.¢ $ 676.1
Gross margin 421.% 450.: 400.¢ 449.¢
Net income 55.¢ 65.1 10.5 86.¢€
Basic earnings per share 0.9C 1.0t 0.1¢ 1.52
Diluted earnings per share 0.8¢ 1.0z 0.17 1.5C
Dividends declared per share 0.3C 0.3C 0.3C 0.3C
Composite stock price range:
High 60.57 69.6¢ 71.9¢ 61.3¢
Low 45.1¢ 57.3¢ 52.5( 49.8¢
Close 59.41 69.6( 53.7¢ 55.9i

Certain items impacting quarterly comparability 28012 and 2011 were as follows:

» Pretax re-engineering and impairment costs d #tllion , $1.1 million , $2.0 million and $18million were recorded in the first
through fourth quarters of 2012 , respectively t&tee-engineering and impairment costs of $1.4ionil, $1.1 million , $2.2 million
and $3.2 million were recorded in the first throdgbrth quarters of 2011 , respectively. Refer twé\2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for further discussion.

* Inthe second quarter of 2012 , the Companyrdszba $76.9 million of impairment charges reldtedertain intangibles and
goodwill, related to BeautiControl, NaturCare angtiNnetics. In the third quarter of 2011, the Compeecorded a $36.1 million
impairment related to certain intangibles and gabidelated to Nutrimetics, as well as the Compardécision to cease operating its
Nutrimetics business in Malaysia. Refer to Note ée Consolidated Financial Statements for furthigcussion

* Inthe second quarter of 2011, the Company damba loss on the extinguishment of debt of $0I8amifor the write-off of
unamortized debt issuance costs, as well as $18i8min interest expense reclassified from othemprehensive loss as hedges
under related interest rate swaps became ineféectiv

* The Company's fiscal year ends on the last 8ayuof December, and as a result, the first quaft2012 contained 13 weeks , as
compared with 14 weeks in the first quarter of 2011
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Note 20:  Subsequent Ever

On February 1, 2013, in conjunction with execuiisgplanned 2013 share repurchase program, the @uyrmgntered into a 90-day $75
million promissory note with the same interest iatel covenant terms as under its $450 million Greégreement.
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Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Acounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Tappee Brands Corporation

In our opinion, the financial statements listedhia index appearing under ltem 15(a)(1) preseryfén all material respects, the financial
position of Tupperware Brands Corporation andutssidiaries at December 29, 2012 and December1L, 2and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of thedlyears in the period ended December 29, 201@nifoenity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Ametitaddition, in our opinion, the financial statamhechedule listed in the index appearing
under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all mater@spects, the information set forth therein whesad in conjunction with the related
consolidated financial statements. Also in our apinthe Company maintained, in all material retpesffective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 29, 2012 , basedriteria established imternal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comimis@COSO). The Company's management is resporfsibteese financial statements
and the financial statement schedule, for maimaieiffective internal control over financial repogt and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeing, included in Management's Report on Inte@entrol Over Financial Reporting
appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is tpress opinions on these financial statementsheffihancial statement schedule, and on
the Company's internal control over financial reéjmorbased on our integrated audits. We conduateduadits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States). Those standards requatevtb plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfalatatements are free of material misstatemedhihether effective internal control o
financial reporting was maintained in all materidpects. Our audits of the financial statemermsiited examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the éilahstatements, assessing the accounting prirsciled and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé&éstent presentation. Our audit of internal cordx@r financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dirgancial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectivenégs@rnal control based on the assessed risk.aDdits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the dtanoes. We believe that our audits provide a redse basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonablesasuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fioa reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financékestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(iiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsets that could have a material effect on theniisd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Orlando, Florida
February 26, 2013
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and plaess (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(@)1&(d)-15(e)) that are
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed in the Company's reports filed or suladitinder the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pienids specified in the Securities and Exchangar@ission's rules and forms, and that
such information is accumulated and communicatabdgdCompany's management, including the Chief &iex Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure. In desigaind evaluating the disclosure controls
and procedures, management recognized that coatidiprocedures, no matter how well designed aedatgd, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving the desired control objestiv

As of the end of the period covered by this reppdanagement, under the supervision of the Comp&hyjef Executive Officer and Chi
Financial Officer, evaluated the effectivenesshef design and operation of the Company's disclasamrols and procedures. Based upon
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chiafdncial Officer concluded that the design and apien of the disclosure controls and
procedures were effective.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finangal Reporting

The Company's management is also responsible tableshing and maintaining adequate internal cdmver financial reporting as
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). As of the ef the period covered by this report, managemarter the supervision of the
Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief FinahEfficer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Canys internal control over financial
reporting based on the framework in Internal Cdrtmtegrated Framework issued by the CommitteepufrSoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based upon that evaluatienCthief Executive Officer and Chief Financial O#ficconcluded that the Company's
internal control over financial reporting was etfee as of the end of the period covered by thire The effectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 29, 2012 has been audited by Pricewaterhoogpe@s LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm, as stated in its report ethis included herein.

Changes in Internal Controls

There have been no significant changes in the Coypénternal control over financial reporting chgithe Company's fourtiuarter tha
have materially affected or are reasonably likelynaterially affect its internal control over fir@al reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act 8419

Iltem 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.

Certain information with regard to the directorglué Registrant as required by Item 401 of Reguta8-K is set forth under the sub-
caption “Board of Directors” appearing under thptaan “Election of Directors” in the Proxy Statentealated to the 2018nnual Meeting o
Shareholders to be held on May 24, 2013 and igjiweated herein by reference.

The information as to the executive officers of Registrant is included in Part | hereof underdaption “Executive Officers of the
Registrant” in reliance upon General Instructioto@orm 10-K and Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) ofgRkation S-K.

The section entitled “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ovamgp Reporting Compliance” appearing in the Regidts Proxy Statement for the
2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held @y 4, 2013 sets forth certain information as nesguby Item 405 of Regulation ISand
is incorporated herein by reference.

The section entitled “Corporate Governance” appeain the Registrant's Proxy Statement for the 28d8ual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on May 24, 2013 sets forth certain imfation with respect to the Registrant's code oflcehand ethics as required by Item 406 of
Regulation S-K and is incorporated herein by refeee

There were no material changes to the proceduregimh security holders may recommend nomineekdaégistrant's board of
directors during 2012 , as set forth by Item 40(B(c)

The sections entitled “Corporate Governance” anddil Committees” appearing in the Registrant's y&mtement for the 2018nnual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 24, 28 forth certain information regarding the AuBilipance and Corporate Responsibility
Committee, including the members of the Committee the financial expert, as set forth by Item 4)@dand (d)(5) of Regulation S-K and
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information set forth under the caption “Congadion of Directors and Executive Officers” of tReoxy Statement relating to the
2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held ay @4, 2013 , and the information in such Proxyesteent relating to executive officers'
and directors' compensation is incorporated hdrgireference.

The information set forth under the captions “Bo@ammittees” and “Compensation and Management Dewatnt Committee Report”
of the Proxy Statement relating to the 2013 AnMieéting of Shareholders to be held on May 24, 2648 forth certain information as
required by Iltem 407(e)(4) and Item 407(e)(5) ofjfidation S-K and is incorporated herein by refeeenc

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andvlanagement and Related Stockholder Matter:

The information set forth under the captions “Saguwnership of Certain Beneficial Owners”, “SeityiOwnership of Management”
and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in th@¥ Statement relating to the 2013 Annual Meetih@hareholders to be held on
May 24, 2013, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence.

The information set forth under the captions “Tei®ns with Related Persons” and “Corporate Gaueea” appearing in the
Registrant's Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annuadtiig of Shareholders to be held on May 24, 20i8dsrporated herein by reference.

96




Table of Contents

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information set forth under the captions “Aueites,” “Audit-Related Fees,” “Tax Fees,” “All Othieees,” and “Approval of

Services” in the Proxy Statement related to the32@inual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on #4y2013 is incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

(a) (2) List of Financial Statements

The following Consolidated Financial Statement3wpperware Brands Corporation and Report of IndépenRegistered Public
Accounting Firm are included in this Report undeni 8:

Consolidated Statements of Income, Comprehenstane, Shareholders' Equity and Cash Flows - Yeaisd
December 29, 2012 , December 31, 2011 and Dece2bb@010 ;

Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 29, 201Pacember 31, 2011 ;
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements; and

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing.

(a) (2) List of Financial Statement Schedules

The following Consolidated Financial Statement Sicie (numbered in accordance with Regulation SfXjupperware Brands
Corporation is included in this Report:

Schedule lI-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts fach of the three years ended December 29, 2012 .

All other schedules for which provision is madatie applicable accounting regulations of the SéiesrExchange Commission (SEC or
the Commission) are not required under the relasiductions, are inapplicable or the informati@tied for therein is included elsewhere in
the financial statements or related notes contaamédcorporated by reference herein.

(a) (3) List of Exhibits: (humbered in accordance vth Item 601 of Regulation S-K)

Exhibit

Number Description

*3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant (Attached as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-i@dfwith the Commission on
August 5, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference

*3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of the Registaiaramended August 28, 2008 (Attached as ExhibitdBForm 8K, filed with the
Commission on August 28, 2008 and incorporatedihéngereference).

*4 Indenture dated June 2, 2011 (Attached as HExhib to Form 8-K, filed with the Commission omé#u7, 2011 and incorporated

herein by reference).

*10.1 1996 Incentive Plan as amended through Jgriéa 2009 (Attached as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10fiked with the Commission on
February 25, 2009 and incorporated herein by ratere

*10.2 Directors' Stock Plan as amended throughagn26, 2009 (Attached as Exhibit 10.2 to FormKl@iled with the Commission on
February 25, 2009 and incorporated herein by ratere

*10.3 Form of Change of Control Employment Agreaim@ttached as Exhibit 10.3 for Form 10-K, filedtkvthe Commission on
February 25, 2009 and incorporated herein by ratere

*10.4 Securities and Asset Purchase Agreementdegtithe Registrant and Sara Lee Corporation dateélAugust 10, 2005 (Attached
as Exhibit 10.01 to Form 8-K/A, filed with the Corssion on August 15, 2005 and incorporated hergireference).

*10.5 Forms of stock option, restricted stock astricted stock unit agreements utilized with Regjistrant's officers and directors
under certain stock-based incentive plans (AttacseHxhibit 10.6 to Form 10-K, filed with the Conasion on February 25,
2009 and incorporated herein by reference).

*10.6 Chief Executive Officer Severance Agreentaetiveen the Registrant and E.V. Goings amendedestated effective February
17, 2010 (Attached as Exhibit 10.8 to From 10-kediwith the Commission on February 23, 2010 ardriporated herein by
reference).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

*10.7

*10.8

*10.9

*10.10

*10.11

*10.12

*10.13

21
23
24
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2
101

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, atedrand restated effective February 2, 2010 (A&das Exhibit 10.9 to Form 10-
K, filed with the Commission on February 23, 200@ ancorporated herein by reference).

2002 Incentive Plan, as amended throughalgi26, 2009 (Attached as Exhibit 10.10 to FornKl@Hed with the Commission
on February 25, 2009 and incorporated herein reete).

Supplemental Plan, amended and restatedtieffielanuary 1, 2009 (Attached as Exhibit 10.1Edom 10-K, filed with the
Commission on February 25, 2009 and incorporateeiméy reference).

2006 Incentive Plan as amended throughalgrt6, 2009 (Attached as Exhibit 10.12 to FornKl@Hed with the Commission on
February 25, 2009 and incorporated herein by ratere

Tupperware Brands Corporation 2010 Incenkian (Attached as Exhibit 4.3 to Form S-8, filbth the Commission on
November 3, 2010 and incorporated herein by reteren

Tupperware Brands Corporation 2010 IncenENan Restricted Stock Agreement (Attached askibéhi4 to Form S-8, filed with
the Commission on November 3, 2010 and incorporagedin by reference).

Credit Agreement dated June 2, 2011 (Attdddis Exhibit 10.13 to Form 10-K/A, filed with tB®mmission on January 9, 2013
and incorporated herein by reference).

Subsidiaries of Tupperware Brands Corporatoafdebruary 25, 2013.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Adiogifrirm.

Powers of Attorney.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of @td@ef Executive Officer.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of @td@ef Financial Officer.

Certification Pursuant to Section 1350 of i26a63 of Title 18 of the United States Code kg @hief Executive Officer.
Certification Pursuant to Section 1350 of i2éa63 of Title 18 of the United States Code by @hief Financial Officer.

The following financial statements from Tuppare Brands Corporation's Annual Report on FornK10r the year ended
December 29, 2012, formatted in XBRL (eXtensiblesiBass Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Stetgsnof Income, (ii)
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncoiijeC@insolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) Consolid&etements of
Shareholders' Equity, (v) Consolidated Statemeih@ash Flows, (vi) Notes to the Consolidated Finaln8tatements, tagged in
detail, and (vii) Schedule II. Valuation and Quglig Accounts.

* Document has heretofore been filed with the€ZBd is incorporated by reference and made ehpeabf.

The Registrant agrees to furnish, upon requesteoBSEC, a copy of all constituent instruments diedithe rights of holders of long-
term debt of the Registrant and its consolidatdx$isliaries.
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TUPPERWARE BRANDS CORPORATION

SCHEDULE II-VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 29, 2012

(In millions)
Col. A Col.B Col.C Col. D Col. E
Additions
Balance at Chargedto Charged Balance
Beginning Costsand  to Other at End
of Period Expenses  Accounts Deductions of Period
Allowance for doubtful accounts, current and long
term:
Year ended December 29, 2012 $ 51z % 10 $ — $ (9.O/1 $ 53¢
0.8 /F2
Year ended December 31, 2011 52.2 11t — (10.6) /F1 51.Z
(2.0) IF2
Year ended December 25, 2010 51.2 11.1 — (8.€) IF1 52.2
(1.4) IF2
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets:
Year ended December 29, 2012 96.C 2.7 2.t 1. /F2 103.1
Year ended December 31, 2011 99.¢ 0.3 4.2 (7.8) IF2 96.C
Year ended December 25, 2010 99.C 2.1 — (1.3 /F2 99.¢

F1 Represents writeffs, less recoverie
F2 Foreign currency translation adjustm
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this Report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

TUPPERWARE BRANDS CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /sl E.V.GOINGS
E.V. Goings

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

February 26, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbiothe following persons on bet
of the Registrant and in the capacities and oréte indicated.

Signature Title
/sl E.V. GOINGS Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Directriiicipal
E.V. Goings Executive Officer)
/sl MICHAEL S. POTESHMAN Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offigerincipal

Michael S. Poteshman Financial Oﬁlcer)

/s/ NICHOLAS K. POUCHER Vice President and Controller (Principal Accountidfficer)

Nicholas K. Poucher

* Director

Catherine A. Bertini

* Director
Susan M. Cameron

* Director
Kriss Cloninger IlI

* Director

Joe R. Lee

* Director
Angel R. Martinez

* Director

Antonio Monteiro de Castro
* Director

Robert J. Murray
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* Director
David R. Parker

* Director

Joyce M. Roche

* Director

M. Anne Szostak

By: /sf THOMAS M. ROEHLK
Thomas M. Roehlk

Attorney-in-fact

February 26, 2013
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Active Subsidiaries
Subsidiary Information System
As of: February 25, 2013

The following subsidiaries are wholly-owned by the registrant or another subsidiary of the Registrant .

Academia de Negocios S/C Ltda.
Administradora Dart, S. de R.L. de C.V

Armand Dupree, Inc.

Auburn River Realty Company

Avroy Shlain Cosmetics (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd.

Avroy Shlain Cosmetics (Namibia) (Pty) Ltd.

Avroy Shlain Cosmetics (Pty) Ltd.

BBVA Bancomer Trust

BC International Cosmetic & Image Services Inc.
BeautiControl Cosméticos Do Brasil Ltda.
BeautiControl Mexico, S. de R.L.

BeautiControl, Inc.

Beauty Products, Inc.

CAV Sul Centro de Apoio de Vendas de Produtos
Centro de Distribuicao Mineira de Produtos de Plastico
Centro de Distribuicao RS Ltda.

Centro Oeste Distribuidora de Produtos Plasticos Ltda.
CH Laboratories Pty Ltd

Corcovado-Plast Distribuidora de Artigos Domesticos Ltda.
Cosmetic Manufacturers Pty. Ltd.

Dart Argentina S.A.

Dart de Venezuela, C.A

Dart Distribucion, S. de R.L. de C.V.

Dart do Brasil Industria e Comercio Ltd

Dart Industries (New Zealand) Limited

Dart Industries Hong Kong Limited

Dart Industries Inc.

Dart Latin America Financing LLC

Dart Manufacturing India Pvt. Ltd.

Dart, S.A. de C.V.

Dartco Manufacturing Inc.

Deerfield Land Corporation

Diecraft Australia Pty. Ltd.

Distribuidora Baiana de Produtos Plasticos Ltda.
Distribuidora Comercial Nordeste de Produtos Plasticos
Distribuidora Comercial Paulista de Plasticos Ltda.
Distribuidora Esplanada de Produtos Plasticos Ltda.
FC Mexican Consulting, S. de R.L. de C.V.

Fuller Beauty Cosmetics de México, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Fuller Beauty Cosmetics S. de RL de C.V.

Fuller Beauty Cosmetics Trainee, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Fuller Cosmetics - Venda Direta de Cosmeticos, Ltda.
Fuller Cosmetics SA de CV

Fuller Mexicana Holdings S de RL de C.V.

House of Fuller S de RL de CV

Inmobiliaria Meck-Mex SA de CV

International Investor, Inc.

Japan Tupperware Co., Ltd.

Latin America Investments, Inc.

NaturCare Japan KK

Exhibit 21



Newco Logistica e Participacoes Ltda.




Active Subsidiaries
Subsidiary Information System
As of: February 25, 2013

NM Holdings (New Zealand)

NuMet Holdings Pty. Ltd.

Nutrimetics Australia Pty. Ltd.

Nutrimetics France SNC

Nutri-Metics Holding France SNC

Nutri-metics International (Greece) A.E
Nutrimetics International (NZ) Limited
Nutrimetics International (Thailand) Ltd
Nutrimetics International (UK) Limited
Nutri-metics Worldwide (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Nuvo Cosmeticos S.A.

Osceola Corporate Center Master Owners' Association, Inc.
Premiere Products Brands of Canada,

Premiere Products Mexico, S. de R.L.

Premiere Products, Inc.

Premiere Servicios de Administracion S. de R.L.
Probemex SA de CV

PT Cahaya Prestasi Indonesia

PT Tupperware Indonesia

Sara Lee Direct Selling (Swaziland) (P
Servicios Administrativos Fuller, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Servicios De Administracion Integral de Personal, S. de R.L.
Tupperware (China) Company Limited
Tupperware (Portugal) Artigos Domesticos, Lda.
Tupperware (Suisse) SA

Tupperware (Thailand) Limited

Tupperware Articulos Domesticos, S.L.
Tupperware Asia Pacific Holdings Private Limited
Tupperware Australia Pty. Ltd.

Tupperware Bangladesh Private Limited
Tupperware Belgium N.V.

Tupperware Brands Argentina S.A.

Tupperware Brands Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.
Tupperware Brands Corporation

Tupperware Brands Korea Ltd.

Tupperware Brands Latin America Hol
Tupperware Brands Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.
Tupperware Brands Mexico, S. de R.L.
Tupperware Brands Philippines, Inc.
Tupperware Bulgaria Ltd.

Tupperware Childrens Foundation

Tupperware Colombia S.A.S.

Tupperware Czech Republic, spol. s.r.o
Tupperware d.o.0.

Tupperware de Costa Rica, S.A.

Tupperware de El Salvador, S.A. de C. V.
Tupperware de Guatemala, S.A.

Tupperware Del Ecuador Cia. Ltda.
Tupperware Deutschland GmbH

Tupperware Distributors, Inc.

Tupperware East Asia, LLC

Tupperware Egypt Ltd

Tupperware Espana, S.A.

Tupperware Finance Company B. V.
Tupperware Finance Holding Company B.V.
Tupperware France S.A.






Active Subsidiaries
Subsidiary Information System
As of: February 25, 2013

Tupperware General Services N.V.
Tupperware Global Center SARL

Tupperware Hellas S.A.I.C.

Tupperware HK Procurement Limited
Tupperware Holdings South Africa (Pty) Ltd.
Tupperware Home Parties, LLC

Tupperware Honduras, S. de R.L.

Tupperware Iberica S.A.

Tupperware India Private Limited

Tupperware International Capital Limited
Tupperware International Holdings BV
Tupperware International Holdings Corporation
Tupperware Israel Ltd.

Tupperware ltalia S.p.A.

Tupperware Luxembourg S.ar.l.

Tupperware Morocco

Tupperware Nederland B.V.

Tupperware New Zealand Staff Superannuation Plan
Tupperware Nordic A/S

Tupperware Osterreich G.m.b.H.

Tupperware Panama, S.A.

Tupperware Polska Sp.z o.0.

Tupperware Products Philippines, Inc.
Tupperware Products S.A.

Tupperware Products, Inc.

Tupperware Romania s.r.l.

Tupperware Services GmbH

Tupperware Services, Inc.

Tupperware Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Tupperware Southern Africa (Proprietary) Limited
Tupperware Southern Europe, Africa and Middle East
Tupperware Trading Ltd.

Tupperware Turkey, Inc.

Tupperware U.S., Inc.

Tupperware Ukraine, LLC

Tupperware United Kingdom & Ireland Limited
Tupperware, Industria Lusitana de Artigos Domesticos
Tupperware, LLC

TWP S.A.

Uniao Norte Distribuidora de Produtos

Uniao Sul Comercial

Ventas Fuller, S. de R.L. de C.V.

All subsidiaries listed above are included in the consolidated financial statements of the Registrant as consolidated
subsidiaries, except for subsidiaries owned 50% or less.
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-170305 , 333-137275,
333-137276, 333-111530, 333-04869 and 333-04871) of Tupperware Brands Corporation of our report dated February 26, 2013

relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedules and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
which appears in this Form 10-K .

/sIPricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Orlando, Florida
February 26, 2013



EXHIBIT 24
POWERS OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENT, thtte undersigned directors of Tupperware Brandp&@ation, a
Delaware corporation, (the "Corporation"), herebgstitute and appoint Thomas M. Roehlk and Miclsadtoteshman, true and
lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents of the undersey with full power of substitution and resubstdn, for and in the name,
place and stead of the undersigned, in any ar@ghplcities, to sign the Annual Report on Form 16fFkhe Corporation for its
fiscal year ended December 29, 2012, and any dadnandments thereto, and to file or cause tolbd fhe same, together with
any and all exhibits thereto and other document®imection therewith, with the Securities and Exge Commission, granting
unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents and subesitéull power and authority to do and performheand every act and thing
requisite or necessary to be done in and abouyiréraises as fully to all intents and purposes asitidersigned might or could
do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming bkt said attorneys-ifact and agents and substitutes, may lawfully dcaoise t
be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersighegte hereunto set their hand and seal this 2Qtlofdaebruary, 2013.

/sl Catherine A. Bertini

/s/ Susan M. Cameron

/sl Kriss Cloninger Il

/sl Joe R. Lee

/sl Angel R. Martinez

/s/ Antonio Monteiro de Castro
/sl Robert J. Murray

/s/ David R. Parker

/sl Joyce M. Roché

/s/ M. Anne Szostak




Exhibit 31.1

RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) CERTIFICATIONS

I, E.V. Goings, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornK16f Tupperware Brands Corporati

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to tl

period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this

report;

The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal controls over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control oveaticial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatitclosure controls and procedures and preséentai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that hatenadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer analalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the

equivalent function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal oboirer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisggmtifole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: February 26, 2013 /sl E.V. Goings

E.V. Goings
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) CERTIFICATIONS

I, Michael S. Poteshman, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on FornK16F Tupperware Brands Corporati

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this
report;

The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proesjor caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal controls over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control oveatiicial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntais report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that haenadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer antilve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the
equivalent function):

€) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisamtifole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date:February 26, 2013 /sl Michael S. Poteshman

Michael S. Poteshman
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 32.1

Form of Certification Pursuant to Section 1350 oa@ter 63
of Title 18 of the United States Code

I, E.V. Goings, the chief executive officer of Tigrware Brands Corporation, certify that, to thet loésny knowledge, (i) the Form 10-
K for the year ended December 29, 2818 complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3gr 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1
and (ii) the information contained in such FormKL@airly presents, in all material respects, thraficial condition and results of operation
Tupperware Brands Corporation.

/sl E.V. Goings
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to Tupperwaaedd Corporation and will be retained
by Tupperware Brands Corporation and furnishedéoSecurities and Exchange Commission or its atadh request.

Date: February 26, 2013



Exhibit 32.2

Form of Certification Pursuant to Section 1350 oa@ter 63
of Title 18 of the United States Code

I, Michael S. Poteshman, the chief financial offioé Tupperware Brands Corporation, certify thatitte best of my knowledge, (i) the
Form 10-K for the year ended December 29, 201% fidimplies with the requirements of Section 13¢a)%(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 and (ii) the information contained irch Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material rests, the financial condition and results of
operations of Tupperware Brands Corporation.

/sl Michael S. Poteshman
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to Tupperwaaedd Corporation and will be retained
by Tupperware Brands Corporation and furnishedéoSecurities and Exchange Commission or its gtadh request.

Date: February 26, 2013



